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1995
1995 - 2013
2011 - 2013

2013

Prospects

HOWDEN JOINERY

A young and successful business - with prospects

First 14 depots - 28 staff
529 depots open - 4,500 depot staff

£30m invested in manufacturing in North of England
Making 3.5m kitchen cabinets per year

529 depots

2 factories } 6,300 staff

1 distnbution centre

270,000 trade account holders

Over 2,800 UK suppliers of goods and services
11,500 pension members

56,000 hours of In-house training

180 apprentices and 50 more being recruited
2,100 local charities supported by our staff

Working in partnership with Leonard Cheshire Disability

700 depots - up to 1,500 new jobs
More investment in UK manufacturing

Keeping tradesmen competitive

Investing in UK manufacture and design
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Howdens is an

...that has been growing since the day it
started in October 1995

To supply from local stock nationwide the small
builder’'s ever-changing, routine...

We understand
the importance of
a working kitchen

The kitchen i1s and always has been the
focal point of the heme, which 15 why
everything In it must work In the kitchen,
we do much more than prepare, cook
and store food We spend much of our
lives In the kitchen, and we expect more
and more from the cabinets, surfaces,
fittings and appliances that go into 1t

Read more in Chief Executive's statement,
on pages 10to 16

That’s why we
focus on selling
kitchens to
professionals

The increasing complexity of the kitchen
means that it must be installed by a
professional fitter, which 15 why we only
sell to trade customers The local builder
whao installs the kitchen serves all parts
of the market, including owner-occupiers
and landlords in both private and
public sectors

Read more in Our market, on pages 4
te 5

Howdens is an
entrepreneurial
business with
529 local depots

Howdens 1s a local business Since
1995 we have built a network of 529
depots located around the country
Each depot 1s run by a manager who Is
responsible for his or her profit and loss
account Managers and their teams are
incentivised on a share of local profit
and are highly motivated to open local
accounts and help drive the growth of
the business

Read more in Our model, on pages 6
to7




original idea...

...integrated kitchen and joinery requirements,
assuring no-call-back quality and best local price.

Our business
modei is highly
differentiated

The entire Howdens model has been built
from scratch to support our mission We
contrel our own manufactuning, and our
supply chain i1s focused on supplying one
customer, the local builder, with product
that 15 1n stock locally every day, all year
round, 1In low-cost trade depots We are
extremely demanding in respect of both
gquality and cost our objective Is to offer
the best, with no waste

Read more in Chief Executive's statement,
on pages 10 to 16, and CSR report,
on pages 25to 30

We significantly
outperformed the
market in 2012

Last year we significantly 1mproved
profitability, increasing sales by 4% to
£8871m and mproving gross profit
margin by 18 percentage ponts to
61 5% Profit before tax was £112 1m
Year-end cash was £96 4m, and we are
recommending a final dividend of 2 7p,
bringing the total for the year to 3 Op

Read more in Chairman’s statement, on
pages 8 to 9, and Qperating and Financal
Review, on pages 17 to 24

We have
many more
opportunities
for growth

We have already identfied many
opportunities for further sales and
profit growth within our existing depot
network, as well as more ways to Increase
manufacturing efficiency We also plan
to open more new depots to serve the
builder's local needs, to introduce more
new product and to continue to focus on
performance improvement in every area of
the business

Read more in Chief Executive's statement,
on pages 10to 16




Our market

Understanding the builder’'s wo

The builder

rid

The bullder s an entrepreneur running a business Its
nature will vary according to where and how 1t was

established It could be a

family busingss that goes

back several generations, or it could be a newly
formed partnership it might have two employees, or
It might have twenty It might be based in a big city,
or at the end of a country lane Every job must look
good, be sturdy, and be delivered on time, complete
and at a satisfactory price Only when all of these
conditions are fulfitled will the builder get paid
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Raw materials

Rapidly evolving technologies and increasing environmental
awareness are leading to the introduction of new matenals and
fimshes for cabinets, warktops, flooring and appliances As our
tolerance of unrehability decreases, we are seeing more emphasis
on high performance, durable good looks, cost-competitiveness
and sustainability

demanding, ever-changing,

Lifestyle and design trends

We live In an increasingly design-conscious world in which new trends
are discussed and shared via the internet and social media as well as
facetoface Kitchens are becoming more complex as kitchen users
expect a well-designed, Integrated kitchen at all pnce points, accessible
to users of all ages and different abiiies Most importantly, we are
seeing the merging of cooking, eating and living space, reflecting the
growing focus on the kitchen as the centre of the home



His customers

The local buillder 18 mainly concerned with repair, maintenance and
improvement in his local area Atotal house refurbishment or a contract
to replace the kitchens In a block of flats can atternate with requests
to build a wall or install a new sink There 1$ a marked trend in kitchen
installation away from DIY and towards DFY {Done For You), so the
skilled kitehen fitter 15 in demand across the whole of the marketplace
The customer to whom the bullder sells a Howdens kitchen can be
an owner-occupler, a private landlord, a local authority, a housing
association or a small developer

Even small kitchens are becoming more timeconsuming to plan as
customers become Increasingly conscious of the need to maximise
use of space as well as to make best use of their budget

complex, interconnected

The economic picture

Fragle consumer confidence and the difficulty of obtaining credit have
reinforced the need for the builder to control costs and cash flow and
to manage his business effectively In recent years the buider has
seen many changes in the market, including decreasing public sector
spending, nsing house prices, first-time buyers strugglng to secure
mortgages and little or no increase In the rate of new housebuilding, at
least outside London All of this means it 1S more and more important
for the builder to be flexible, responsive and competitive

His working day

The builder 1s constantly jugging different jobs for different
customers with a number of other vanables, some of which are
unpredictable even a week in advance Local emergencies, heavy
rain and customers who change therr plans at the last minute all
mean that the bullder 15 managing chaos every day He has no
time to waste dealing with call centres or stuck in traffic jams, so
the combination of reliable, personal advice and the availability of
local stock of everything is allimportant to his business
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Increasing regulation

Regulation and legislation govern every aspect of kitchen
construction, installation and use, from raw matenals to electrical
and gas appliances, from child safety to energy consumption
and waste disposal The builder must keep abreast of the latest
requirements, or face penaltes, and s therefore heawvily reliant on
his kitchen and joinery supplier to do the same
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ur model

Making the builder more competitive

In stock

Howdens'

complete range of Wtchens and

associated Jjoinery and hardware 1s avallable all
the time In every depot This 15 only possible
because we have bullt a dedicated and

Range

Howdens offers a range of 40 kitchens,
plus joinery, appliances and flooring at all
pnce points that reflect the ever-changing
needs and tastes of a wide range of
customers Howdens' combination of
design, quality, avallability and price
supports the bullder's sale

efficient supply chain and logistics operation

focused on one customer, the bulder
And because everything 15 1n stock, the
bullder can complete his job and get paid
by his customer, which means he c¢an then
pay Howdens

Local

Local means on the doorstep, not half
an hour's drive away The closer he ts to
the depot, the easier it is for the builder
to collect what he needs, arrange a visit
for his own customer, or drop 1n for some
friendly advice That’s why Howdens have
already opened 529 depots across the
country and why we believe there 1s scope
for at least 700

Quality

We design and specify all our products
and control our own manufactunng and
sourcing, which means our product 15 of
consistently high guality, ensunng fast,
easy Installaton Cabinets are ngd,
not flatpack, which saves the builder
valuable time on site Howdens “no-call-
back” quality standards mean the buider
can minimise waste and maximise
his margin

proven, flexible,

Best local price

Howdens 1s able to offer best local
pnce to the buwlder because our
business 15 designed to be low-cost
High vaolumes, long runs, efficient sourcing
and manufacturing, optimised logistics,
scalable systems and straightforward
trade depots means Howdens' costs will
always be lower than those of a retailer




Trade only

Howdens sell only to trade professionals,
and our 10,000 square-foot trade depots
are suited to ther needs No retal
customers means no conflicts of Interest
in respect of product, pricing or service

Credit terms

We run local, not national, accounts,
limiting our exposure to any one
customer When a builder opens a credit
account with his local Howdens' depot,
we offer nett monthly terms, which allows
the bulder to get paid for a job by his
customer before he has to pay us We
provide the cash flow that 1s cntical to

Confidential
discount

Qur trade account customers benefit
from a confidential discount on list price,
specific to them, which enables them
to manage ther margin on each job
Discounts are set locally by managers
who know therr customers and are

his business

scalable and worthwhile

Advice

Howdens' depots are staffed by knowledgeable, professional
staff who can nurture longterm relationships with local
butders They have access to comprehensive product
information for every tem we sell, but the real value of therr
expertise 1S 1In onthe-spot problem-solving in discussion with
their customers

motivated to serve their needs
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Planning

Every successful kiichen begins with a good plan We have
invested 1n industry-leading CAD software and a team of over
1,000 wtchen designers trained 0 make best use of it Builders
and their customers benefit from our free planning service, which
includes detalled visuahsations of the kitchen and the abilty to
make modifications to the plan
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Chairman’'s statement

RESULTS

| am pleased to report that in 2012
Howden Jonery Group continued to
grow and develop in a challenging
economic environment We have
consistently cutperformed the
market through staying true to our
successful model and the principles
which underpin Howdens’ business

Strong price discipling, underpinned
by successful product introductions
and further effictency improvements
in our supply cham, led to an
Increase In gross margin to

61 5% (2011 59 7%)

Qur 2012 performance also

reflects the strength of purpose

of cur management team and the
commitment of our staff to providing
a service of value to all who depend
on Howdens | would like to take
this opportunity to thank them all for
their hard work throughout the year

DIVIDEND

The Board intends to target a capital
structure that is both prudent and
recognises the benefits of financial
Isverage and, after considering

all other uses of capital, to return
surplus capital to shareholders, by
way of either ordinary dvidends or
alternative returns of capital

The Group has a substantia! number
of property leases for the depot
network, together with a matenal
deficit in the Group pension fund
and a small number of legacy

property habilites related to the
Group's former ownership of MFI
Taking into account this underlying
financial geanng, the Board believes
1t 1s appropriate for the Group to be
able to operate throughout the
working capital cycle without
incurnng bank debt Therefore,

the Board has concluded that the
Group now has the balance sheet
strength to allow 1t to move towards
a more normalised dividend policy

The Board intends to move over the
medium-term to a dividend cover of
between 2 5x and 3 5x, with one-third
of the previous year's dividend being
paid as an intenm dividend each year
The Board will momitor the Group’s
cash balances in light of future
Investment opportunities, anticipated
peak working capital requirements
and the trading outlook

The Board 1s proposing a final
dividend in respect of 2012 of 2 7p
per share, giving a total dvidend
for the year of 3 Op per share

(2011 0 5p)

BOARD

During the year | have taken
measures to review the effectiveness
of the Board and to ensure
continued achievement of the
highest corporate standards

We are now conducting a search
for a new non-executive director
to succeed Angus Cockburn, who
has decided to step down from




the Board having served nearly
seven years as a non-executive
director Angus, who chairs the Audit
Committee, will remain on the Board
for the time being to ensure an
orderly handover to his successor

In appointing a new director, we will
seek to ensure continuing strong
governance of our audit function and
to masntain a robust, diverse and
representative Board

MANAGEMENT AND
ORGANISATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

In a rapidly evolving market,

we plan to assure the long-term
wellbeing of your Company through
the continuing development of a
competent and effective senior
management team We are currently
reviewing the roles of the Executive
Committee in order to understand
where there may be opportunities
to improve the organisation In
parallel with this work we are taking
steps to ensure that all our senior
managers have the appropriate mix
of skills and abilities to lead the
business forward

SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION

The programme of growth and depot
aopening that we have pursued since
Howdens started trading in 1995
has led to the creation of over 6,300
|obs, around two-thirds of which

are in local depots We support

the creation of local employment
opportumitres and the development
of the techrnical and commercial
skills required in the joinery trade

Howdens currently employs 180
maodern apprentices, and a further
50 apprentices are being recruited
We are also proud to support the
Howden Joinery Bursary, the first
scheme of its kind in any industry,
which funds first year wages for
apprentice joiners \n companies who
would otherwise be unable to meet
these costs themselves To date, the
Bursary has created opportunities
for 40 young people across the
country We plan to pursue this and
other successful intiatives, including
our support programme for NVQ and
diploma courses that are helping to
train the next generation of joiners

Howdens’ commercial success

15 founded on goaod relationships
between individuals who treat each
other with farrness, openness and
respect This approach s reflected
In the active involvement of our
staff members in numerous different
causes In therr local area Last
year their initiative and commitment
raised approximately £817,000

for the benefit of over 2,000
community activities

The Group’s longstanding
partnership with Leonard
Cheshire Disability continues
to thrive Howdens helps to fund
LCD's recrutment and training
programme which offers social
support and mentoring to disabled
young people, and donates
kitchens to a number of
Leonard Cheshire homes
across the country

QUTLOOK

Howdens i1s a young business
that has aiready laid strong
foundations for further growth

It has also demonstrated that it
can succeed even against an
economic backdrop that continues
to be both challenging and
uncertain We intend to continue
to invest in the service, products
and people that will enable us

to deliver long-term value to our
customers and shareholders

Will Samuei
Chairman

27 February 2013
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Chief Executive’s statement

Over the last five years we have
transformed Howdens and its
prospects We have invested

In depots, products, design,
manufacturing, systems, service
and people

We have all but eliminated MFI's
property legacy, and we have
greatly improved profitability,
adding over eight percentage
points to gross margin in a
recessionary environment

In 2012, Howdens continued to
outperform the market, and this
year’'s trading has started well

We have grown the business by
developing new product and delvering
better quality and availability with less
stock, which in tum has allowed our
managers to focus on ¢ash, profit,
costs and margin

We continued to generate more
cash, which means that as well
as making legacy payments,
we can continue to (nvest in the
future growth and development
of Howdens

Why Howdens continues to
grow market share

The first reason why our business
works well 1s that 1t 1s focused on
the small builder, because we have
always been clear that the only
way to get a kitchen installed and
working 1s to have it fitted by a
professional This 1s even more true
now than it was in 1985 when we
started the business

Today’s kitchen involves many
vanables It takes a qualfied fitter to
manage the combination of layout
and design, accurate measurement,
sophisticated surfaces and smooth
fimshing, not to mention the
installation of ntegrated apphances,
plumbing, ighting and waste
disposal, so that everything looks
good, works perfectly and conforms
to all the relevant legisliation

All of this must be done well, In a way
that makes best use of the end-
customer's budget, and as guickly as
possible, because the idea of being
without a kitchen in one’s home for

a day longer than necessary 1s too
awful to contemplate

At any one time the buillder s
Jugghng several jobs for different
customers who can change their
plans at any moment, for any reason
- and of course the weather can
change too, which affects the kind
of work he can do on a given day

So the buillder's Iife 1s complex and
ever-changing, and the end-markets
that he deals with are less fruitful
than they were only a few years ago
Buy-to-let and new build properties
are less plentiful Landlords are
refurbishing tess often, both in the
private and public sectors House
prices in many areas have stagnated
or dechned, and people are moving
house less often It seems to

be harder to obtain a mortgage,
aespecially for first-ttme buyers




At the same ttime, we all know that
our budgets are more restricted, and
so IS the space into which everything
has to fit

We should remind ourselves of
what really happens in the kitchen

It 1s not only a place to cook and
eat Today’s kitchen is also a family
room, an office, a schoolroom, a
bank, a home cinema, a repair shop,
a doctor's surgery, a vet's ¢linic,

a travel agent, a rehearsal room

and more besides In this vitally
important room, there are bad days
and good days, ordinary days and
special days M’s not just about
burnming the toast it's where people
deal with the g events in ife birth,
marriage, diverce, bankruptcy and
death — not necessarily in that order,
of course

People need more functionality from
therr kitchens, and the internet helps
them to make price comparisons,
but they still don’t have any more
time in which to make decisions
Also, we have all grown less tolerant
of poor service

The Howdens’ mode! 1s designed to
solve these problems

It 1s based on an understanding of
what 1s needed in the home and how
the builder works And the reason it
15 consistently successful 1s because
Howdens makes the bullder more
competitive than any other offer in
the marketplace

The builder 15 in business to make
money and build a reputation, and
he can only do that If avery job 15

complete and satisfactory, and he
can finish 1t on time and on budget

So the bullder must be able to

rely on having truly local stock —
preferably next door — of everything
he needs, from cabinets and ovens
to screws and glue

What the builder buys must be of
good quality He can't afford to
waste time returmng things It must
also be capable of being fitted
quickly and accurately That's why
our cabinets are rigid, which saves
days of assembly time

Howdens also offers the bullder a
trade discount, on a confidential
basis, allowing him to determine his
margin for each job, and we give
good credit terms = up to 60 days
with a nett rmonthly account

On top of this, we help the builder
to sell to his customer

The Howdens' range of kitchens
and jeinery makes good design and
quality accessible at all price points
A successful kitchen begins with a
good plan Howdens has invested
In up-to-the-minute professional
planning software and in our team
of over 1,000 expertenced planners
who are there to sit down with the
buillder and the builder's customer
to make sure everyone gets the best
possible result

1"



12

Chief Executive’s statement continued

Everything we sell1s easily viewed
by both bullder and end-user,

in pnnt and onlne We invest

in intelligent marketing and in
building the Howdens' brand on the
backbone of reliability and service

Abgcve all, we offer the builder
continurty (n a changing world
When we open a depot, it stays
open When we make a sale, itis
face-to-face When we make a
promise, we keep it

Today, 270,000 small builders all
over the country hold credit accounts
with Howdens, and the service we
provide 1s the cornerstone of ther
business For them, Howdens 15

not simply a supplier We provide
essential business support In a
challenging marketplace

} would like to underline the fact
that none of this happened by
accident When we first developed
the Howdens' model, we identified
what made a depot work well and
replicated i1t

The list begins with a 10,000 square
foot depot, with a trade counter,

not a showroom, and a warehouse
to hold everything in stock We can
fit out a depot for about £170,000
Our depots have always beenn

the same sort of places onesthat
are easy for the builder, on trading
estates, with plenty of parking The
rent on such locations 1s reasonable
We are still opening depots today
with rent at around £5 per square
foot, and our average depot rent
across the whole portfolio is less
than £5 50 per sguare foot

In each depot we put an
entrepreneunal, manager-driven
sales team, capable of cpeming
local accounts, building local
relationships, allowed to do ther
own marketing, responsible for therr
own profit and loss account and
incentivised on local profit

Then, we invested in making the
model work at scale So we bullt

a stable, focused supply chain
with our own dedicated factories
delivering well-designed product,
and a robust, flexible infrastructure
which allows us to control quality,
quantity, availability and cost

We also invested in credit
management We close inactive
accounts after 15 months, so we are
focused on active customers Last
year we added over 20,000 net new
accounts The total cost of credit
control, including bad debts, has
actually decreased to 1 2% of sales

In the longest period of continuing
economic uncertainty that many of
us can remember, we must draw
the conclusion that not only are our
credit controllers efficient, but that
our customers want the Howdens
offer — and they will pay promptly
for it

Above all, we invest in service to
builders, and it underpins margin
In fact 1t 15 Impossible to sustain
margin — and certainly not at

the levels we achieve - without
consistently offering good,
reliable service




Two key elements of this service are
more local depots and a continuous
flow of attractive new product

|.ast year we opened 20 new depocts,
bringing the total number of depots
at the end of 2012 to 529 The value
of being a local business has only
increased as demands grow on

the builder’s time and the roads
become busier every year So we are
confident there s scope for at least
700 depots, and we plan to increase
the pace of our opening programme
Meanwhile our depot pitot in France
continues, and it breaks even at
depot tevel

Back in the UK, our new depots are
performing well We now have plenty
of ewvidence to show that when we
open “infill” depots - new depots

in towns and cities where we are
already established - we achieve a
substantial iIncrease in sales, profits
and accounts in that locality Even

if the onginal depot loses some
sales and profit, it gains more time
in which to offer better service to its
local account holders and thereby to
improve sales per head

We can look at the example of what
has happened in Watford, which

1s a representative example of an
area where we cpened a new “infill"
depot Watford 1s one of our original
1995 depots, and so ts very well
established In 2011, we opened
another depot in North Watford,
Just over four miles away, and the,
outcome was that in 2012, after
only one full year of having two
depots in place, we increased sales

from the Watford area by 44%,

and improved the trading profit
attributable to these two depots by
26% Together, Watford and North
Watford now have just over 1,000
credit accounts, and they both now
have more time to trade We see
this as an investment In service,
and 1t looks like a good investment
for the future

We are learning more all the

tme from analysing individual

depot performance Qur
continuing focus on what we call
best demonstrated practice allows
each manager to see how his or her
depot measures up against the best
in the business, and helps managers
to focus on the many opportunities
for growth that exist within their own
profit and loss account

All depots are hungry for product,
and new product s cntical to
Howdens' growth Last year,
around 15% of sales were from
new product introduced in 2011
and 2012 The fact that we have
more product in the business with
less stock i1s a very important point
It results from the combmnation

of successful product design

and development, constant sales
rmonitoring, Increased manager
focus on profit, active product
discontinuation, and faster decision-
making in which depots are
directly involved, plus an adaptable
supply chain that can deliver
gualty and volume with shorter
lead times, meaning guaranteed
availability, better planning and
more predictable results

13
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Chief Executive’s statement continved

Howdens’ ability to manage this
complexity 15 a source of significant
competitive advantage

Successful new product ranges
build sales quickly, so as new trends
emerge, the ability to move fast
becomes increasingly important We
saw a good example of this recently
with our latest Greenwich Gloss
kitchen Gloss I1s 1n high demand,
and new technology means that

it 15 now possible to source it n
large volumes at reasonable cost

By introducing a gloss version of
our popular Greenwich kitchen at a
competitive price in Period 11 {our
peak autumn trading pericd) we
were able to strengthen ocur entry-
level offer, grow market share and
sustain margin growth

At a different price point, but stil
reflecting the trend to gloss and the
pace of sales growth, the Integrated
Handle kitchen in Gloss White was
our fastest growing range in 2012
After only 18 months in the market it
15 already our Number 5 seller

Another new trend we have
observed 15 the continuing shift

to solid colours Over 70% of our
latchen sales now come from white,
cream and grey Grey in particular
has taken off, with sales rnising from
3% of the total in 2011 to 9% In
2012 We can meet this growing
demand because of the capabilties
| have described

Last year we also took the
epportunity to fill out our range of
Joinery doors with a wider range
of s1zes so that we can supply
the builder’s routing needs in all

of our best-selling styles In the
first quarter of this year we will be
introducing more jomery doers,
aspecially at entry level

We are harnessing our scale

and our access to new matenals
and technologies in all product
categories to make the builder even
more competitive Last year we
launched 20 new worktops, of which
14 were square-edged, and they
are performing well Square-edged
models already represent nearly
20% of all worktop sales, and more
aptions will be introduced shortly

Qur Lamona appliances are growing
market share Last year, we sold
one milhon units of Lamona
products across all categories
including taps and sinks No less
than four of our integrated Lamona
appllances — a single oven, a
dishwasher, a fridge-freezer and a
bullt-under fndge - are now the No 1
sellers in their category In the UK

How we see the road ahead

| have enly mentioned a few of our
new product introductions We
continue to develop all aspects

of our offer, including floonng,
Jonery, hardware, sinks, taps and
accessories The objective, as ever,
is to continue to iImprove our service
to the builder

At the end of last year, we signed
an agreement to secure our supply
of moulded-skin joinery doors for
the,next five years This agreement
greatly enhances security of supply
[t brings us continuous access at
predictable prices to a key part of
our product offering



Doors account for around 10% of
sales volume, but their real value lies
in the fact that they are a judgement
point for price, quahty and availability,
and the buillder will quickly “read
across” from the basic six-panel
door and make up his mind about
the entire Howdens’ proposition

Given the scale of our operations,
securty of supply 1s very important,
and not only with doors We have
also signed a five-year agreerment
to guarantee a consistent supply of
chipboard of the nght quality for our
needs, and to underpin availability
of our products at all times

As | said earher, a flexible and
responsive supply chain s
fundamental to our ability to deliver
new product We have, as previously
reported, invested over £20m In new
manufacturing factities at Howden
and Runcorn These facilities will be
fully operational by the end of the
first half, so the full benefit of our
Investment 1s yet to come

The instalfation and commissicning
of the new equipment is going

well The largest element of the
programme 1s two new cabinet
production lines, cne at each factory
The ability to control our own
manufacturing and to retain control
as the business grows 1s at the heart
of our promise to the builder, which i
of continuing guaranteed availability,
quality and price

Having control means having
flexibiity This I1s an important point
for Howdens, especially since in our
peak autumn trading period our sales
accelerate to reach twice the level

that we see in other periods of the
year Flexibility 1s designed into our
manufacturing activity We have lots
of short assembly lines, rather than
one long one, and we have flexible
working arrangements which mean
that we can start and stop individual
lines according to demand without
Incurring extra costs, unnecessary
risk and uncertainty for our staff

Over the last nine months, by
improving cur manufacturing
operations, streamlining our
logistics and working closely with
our suppliers, we have significantly
mncreased speed to market of new
ranges and applances

This year, we are introducing new
procedures in our factones which will
allow us to monitor stock avarlability
even morea rigorously That in turn
means that we can offer an even
better service to all our depots

As we have often emphasised,

this service must be underpinned
by systems that work On our
busiest day of trading in the whole
of last year our systems handled
£20m of sales, and that is well
within our capacity There Is no

limit on the number of depots we
can support via our sales and

stock management system, and

no constrants on our capacity to
handle warehousing, logistics, point
of sale and management information
for a growing business that serves a
complex and sophisticating market

So, to summanse what | have
said, Howdens continues to focus
on growth through opening more
depots, faunching new products,

15



16

Chief Executive’s statement continved

improving productivity and
increasing efficiency - all of
which supports margin

The “Rough Diamond” project on
which we embarked in 2006 to
create valuse out of the ruins of MFI
has been successful It has delivered
sales, profit, cash, jobs and growth
opportunities for staff, customers,
investors and communities it s
tempting to speculate how much
more value it might have added to

all of these parties had it not been
for the recession, which slowed the
pace of expansion but not the extent
of our ambitions

In 2013, 1t\1s time to hone and polish
the dramond So we intend to
continue on our road to growth Itis
not unreasonable to assume that,
given the successful extension of
the Howden concept, and the fact
that “Rough Diamond” allowed the
business to become robust and
flexible encugh to weather severe
economic storms, that we can look
forward to the following trajectory

* More depct openings between
20 and 30 this year, including
“infill” where we already have
successful depots

¢ More new product we have over
60 new introductions planned
across all product categories in
the first half alone

More performance
improvernent we continue

to focus on best demonstrated
practice and the significant
organic growth that it delivers

The economic outlock remains far
from clear but, as we have already
shown, Howdens 15 abie to adapt

quickly to changtng circumstances

We have a clear strategy and a
proven, cash-generative model
that drives a business of worth and
value for all concerned We intend
to maintain both the focus and the
principles that have served us so
well as we continue to build the
future of Howdens

Matthew Ingle
Chief Executive

27 February 2013




Review of operations and finance

FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR 2012

The financial performance of the
Group dunng 2012 benefited from
the Group’s competitive position
and actions taken to improve
performance Although there was

a modest decline in the volume of
kitchen cabinets sold, the impact of
this was offset by an improved gross
profit margin and changes in the mix
of kitchen ranges sold

Total Group revenue increased

by £33 3m to £8871m
2012 2011
Revenue £m £m
Group 8871 8538
comprnsing
Howden Joinery
UK depots 8725 8387
Howden Joinery
French depots 146 151

Howden Joinery UK depot revenue
rose by 4 0% to £872 5m, increasing
1 9% on a same depot basis

In demanding market conditions,
this growth was achieved through

a number of factors and is a
testament to the strength of the
business model The slowing of the
growth rate in the second half of the
year, from 6 8% in the first half to
around 3%, reflected the benefit of
the earlier timing of the price nse in
2012 faling away on the anniversary
of the June 2011 price increase

It also reflected continuing focus

on price discipline and margin

(see below) We have continued to
see an increase in the number of
customer accounts

Sales by our French depots of £14 6m
were up over 5% on a same depot
basis in constant currency terms

Gross profit rose by £36 0m to

£545 3m As aresult, the gross profit
margmn for the year increased to

61 5% (2011 59 79%) This reflected
the continuing focus on price
discipline and margin achievement
across all depots, particularly in the

second half of the year, supported
by our focused supply chan, and
an exchange rate gain on the cost
of goods purchased from overseas
of £5m

Selling and distrbution costs, and
administrative and other operating
expenses increased by £31 5m to
£425 5m The increase reflects the
costs of new depots, investment

in growth, increased marketing
expenditure, and the impact of
inflation, particularly on payroll
costs Also reflected in the increase
are the impacts of around £5m of
costs arising from the inclusion of a
53rd week 1n 2012 and certain one-
off credits of around £5m in 2011

Operating profit from continuing
operations increased by £4 5m
to £119 8m

The net interast charge rose

by £3 4m to £7 7m, due to an
Increased finance expensse in
respect of pensions The net
result was profit before tax from
continuing operations rose by

£11m to £1121m For 2013, the
finance expense in respect of
pensions will decrease by £4m,
albeit that this (s expected to
reverse In 2014, when a revision
to JAS 19 1s implemented

As previously announced, there was
a loss attributable to discontinued
operations before tax of £4 4m In
respect of the closure of two non-
core support businesses

The tax charge on profit before tax
from continuing operations was
£24 1m, an effective rate of tax of
21 5% There was a tax credit of
£0 6m in respect of the loss from
discontinued operations

17
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Review of operations and finance continued

Basic earmings per share from
coniinuing operaticns were 14 Op
{2011 13 5p) Basic earnings

per share from continuing and
discontinued operations were

13 4p (2011 121p)

We have seen a strong performance
in cash flow 1n 2012, with underlying
working caprtal decreasing shghtly
The performance Is in part due

to timing changes in capital
expenditure, iegacy property
payments and the resolution of a
tax dispute

There was a net cash inflow from
operating activities of £64 9m

This was after payments relating to
legacy properties totalling £16 4m
and a cash contnibution to the
Group’s pension schemes, in excess
of the operating charge, of £41 7m

Excluding the legacy property
payments, underlying working
capital decreased by £2 1m A small
decrease in stock (£2 6m) was
partly offset by a small increase

In debtors {£0 7m), creditars being
virtually unchanged

Also included within net cash flows
from operating activities was tax
paid totaling £16 9m

Payments to acquire fixed and
intangible assets totalled £24 2m
(2011 £19 6m)

Reflecting the above, there was a net
cash inflow of £32 3m in 2012, the
Group having net cash of £96 4m at
the end of the year (24 December
2011 £57 1m net cash)

At 29 December 2012, the pension
deficit shown on the balance sheet
was £154 5m (24 December 2011
£136 9m) An increase in the
scheme's assets, ansing from the
Group’s contribution to fund the
dehcit and better than expected
asset returns, was more than offset
by higher habilities, ansing from a
decrease in the discount rate

Dividend

The Board intends to target a capital
structure that 1s both prudent and
recognises the benefits of financial
leverage and, after considering

all other uses of capital, to return
surplus capital to shareholders, by
way of either ordinary dividends or
alternative returns of capital

The Group has significant
property leases for the depot
network, and currently has a material
deficit in the Group pension fund
and a small number of remaining
legacy labtlities related to the
Group's former ownership of MFI
Taking into account this underlying
leve! of gearing, the Board believes
it 1s appropriate for the Group to
be able to operate throughout

the working capital cycle without
incurring bank debt

The Board has concluded that the
Group now has the balance sheet
strength to allow it to move towards
a more normalised dividend policy
As a result, it ntends to move over
the medium term to a dwvidend cover
of between 2 §x and 3 5x, with cne
third of the previous year's dividend
being paid as an intenm dividend
each year

The Board will monitor the cash
balances in ight of the Group's future
nvestrnent opportunities, expected
peak working capital requirements
and the trading cutlook To the extent
the Group has sustainable levels

of capital in excess of expected
requirements, the Board expects to
return it to shareholders

For the 2012 financial year, the
Board Is proposing a final dividend
of 2 7p per share, giving a total
dividend for the year of 3 Op per
share (2011 0 5p)

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

The business model of Howden
Joinery 1s “To supply from local
stock nationwide the small builder’s
ever-changing routine integrated
kitchen and joinery requirements,
assuning ne-call-back quality and
best local price”

In July 2010, in our Half Yearly
Report, we said that the opportunity
to transform the scale of the
business was apparent and that,

as the performance of the business
was improving and legacy 1ssues




were diminishing, we were stepping
up investment in the future growth
of Howden Joinery

Since then, this Investment in
growth has not only seen a step-

up In capital expenditure but also
Increased expenditure n a number
of other areas, to support the growth
of the business and Its performance
in demanding market conditions

Depot network and operations
During the course of 2012, 20 new
depots were opened in the UK,
bringing the total trading at the

end of the year to 529 In addition,
16 depots were extended and one
depot was relocated In France, two
new depots were opened

We have introduced a system that
allows us to provide our builder
customer’s clients with a video of
the kitchen that has been designed
for them

Qur account base continues to
grow, having increased by over
20,000 net new credit accounts

In 2012 While there has been a
significant increase in accounts In
recent years, our debt collechon
performance continues to improve

Product and marketing

We continue to enhance our
product offering, having introduced
a number of new products during
2012 across all our product
categories Notable amongst these

were eight new kitchen ranges,
amongst which we introduced
grey options in four of our kitchen
families, across all price points,
and we extended gloss options
to our lower priced Greenwich
family, twenty new worktops and
assoclated accessorigs, including
14 new square-edged and five
contemporary 3mm radius matt
laminate worktops, significant
changes to our sinks and taps
categories, an extension of tall
wall units offered, a range of black
apphances, and a range of sliding
wardrobe doors

Throughout the year, we again held
a serigs of roadshows with our
Kitchen designers and other depot
staff to help nform our new product
development programme These
roadshows considered how sales
of various product categories could
be improved through the sharing of
ideas and selling tools, learning from
successful existing products and
identifying gaps in our offering

Supporting our sales effort, In
addition to updating our extensive
product literature, we introduced a
wider format joinery brochure and a
new hardware catalogue We have
also implemented a Howdens You
Tube channel, accessible through
our website (www howdens com),
which offers an extensive range of
videos showcasing products and a
number of cookery demonstrations
using Lamona appliances

Manufacturing and

logistics operations

Our UK-based manufactunng and
logistics operations play a key

role in ensuring that we are able to
supply our small bullder customers
from local stock nationwide

We continue to invest in these
operations so as to ensure that this
key aspect of the Howdens' model
1S never comprormsed

The £20m two-year programme of
investment in our two manufacturing
sites 13 on schedule, with the new
cabinet production line facilities due
to be fully operational at Howden by
the end of the first quarter of 2013
and at Runcorn by the end of the
first half of 2013

A new painted skirting board and
architraves production facility
costing £1 5m has been nstalled
in our Howden factory, and will be
fully operational in the first quarter
of 2013

A new stock planning system was
implemented that provides improved
infermaticn for our manufacturing
scheduling and product purchasing
tearns This has helped improve
service and stock efficiency through
our central warehouses
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Review of operations and finance continued

GROUP DEVELOPMENTS

Legacy properties
The Group continues to reduce 1ts
legacy property portfolio

During 2012, the leases of five
properties were terminated, at a
cost of £11 7m, mitigating future
llabiities that would have totalied
over £27m Since the year-end, two
properties have been released early,
with less than cne year of each lease
remaining, at a cost of £1 4m, with
small savings being made

As a result, the number of legacy
properties now stands at 14,
compared with 21 at the end of
2011 Included within this are seven
properties that are fully or part
occupled by tenants

The net annual rent and rates of the
remaining properties s less than

£4m By the end of 2014, all other
things being equal, both the number
of leases remaning and the net annual
rent and rates will have approximately
halved, as leases expire The leases
remaining thereafter will all have
expired by 2025

CURRENT TRADING AND
OUTLOOK FOR 2013

Howden Jomery UK depot sales

in the first two penods of 2013 (to
23 February) were up 17% on the
same penods last year This reflects
the benefit of an additional week of
trading in the first period of 2013

It also reflects the earhier timing of
a price change, which will shortly
annualise last year's price increase
The pattern and volurmne of sales in
the first two penods 13 1n line with
our expectations and, given the
cne-off nature of these iImpacts, we
expect the rate of UK depot sales
growth to normalise through the
coming pencds

For the rest of 2013, we expect
market conditions to continue to
be challenging and we remain
cautious about the outlook Asin
recent years, we will quickly and
appropriately adapt our business
model to the market and economic
conditions we encounter

The Group remains committed to its
view that the number of depots in the
UK can be increased from its current
level of 529 and believes that this
number could be around 700 During
the course of 2013, we are currently
planning to open around 20 to 30
depots as part of our iInvestment in
the next stage of Howdens' longer
term growth and development

Since Its inception In 1995, Howden
Joinery has grown rapidly and has
ganed a significant share of the

UK kitchen market Even in these
challenging market conditions, we
would expect to continue to benefit
from the opening of new depots and
from the growth of our depots that
have yet to reach maturity

KEY FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Group uses a number of
financial performance indicators to
measure operational and financial
activity in the business Non-
financial indicators are discussed
further in the corporate social
responsibility report on pages
2510 30

Total sales growth

Growth in sales of the UK

Howden Joinery depots I1s key to
enhancing shareholder value This
measure, along with monitoring
our programme of depot openings,
tracks the ability of the Group to
grow the business

Operating profit

The Group targets steady growth in
operating profit before exceptional
items over the mediurmn term



Earnings per share (EPS)

We beheve that EPS, while not
perfect, 1s an accessible measure of
the returns we are generating as a
Group for our shareholders, and also
has the mert of being auditable and
well understood The key measure
of short-term financial performance
Is basic earnings per share before
exceptional items

Depot cpenings

The business model is based on
individual depots providing kitchens
to small builders within a local
community The continuing dnve to
open new depots in new localities
13 therefore key to the Group’s
growth prospects Howden Jomnery
currently intends to open between
20 and 30 depots in 2013 we have
the ability to adjust the rhythm of
the gpening proegramme in ine with
economic conditions

PRINCIPAL RISKS
AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board considers that the
Group's principal nsks and
uncertainties, together with an
indication of actions taken to
manage and mitigate them, are

as detalled below They do not
compnse all isks assoclated with
the Group and are not set out in any
order of prionty Additional risks not
presently known {0 management

or currently deemed to be less
material may also have an adverse
affect on the Group's business in
the future

Market conditions

The Group's products are
predominantly sold to small local
builders for installation in public
and private housing, mainly in
the repair, maintenance and
improvement markets

The Group's results are
consequently dependent on levels
of activity in these markets, which
are impacted by many factors
nciuding general economic
conditions, consumer confidence,
interest rates and credit availability,
unemployment, demographic
trends and, in the short-term,
weather A severe downturn in
market conditions could impact on
our abiiity to achteve our sales and
profit forecasts This could in tum
put pressure on our cash availlability
and banking covenants

We monitor the market closely

and can take swift management
action as necessary 1n response to
adverse changes, with the aim that
the business Is allghed to market
conditions and, consequently, that
we should have sufficient cash
facilittes for business needs and
adequate covenant headroom

Failure to implement the Group’s
business model and culture

The future success of the business
depends on the successful
implementation of the Group's
business model and locally-enabled,
entrepreneurial culture

in particular, if the Group fails to
implement its business model in
the locally enabled, decentralised
marnner envisaged, there may be an
adverse affect on the Group's future
financial condition and profitability

Led by the actions of the Board and
Executive Commuttee, the business
model and the Howdens culture are
at the centre of the activities and
the decision-making processes

of the Group, and are continually
emphasised The Executive and
senior management ragularly visit
our depots and factones, and hold
regular events duning which they
reinforce the mportance of the
Group's business model and culture
Throughout the business, successful
implementation of the Group's
business maodel and culture forms
the basis of the incentive structure

Failure to maximise exploiting the
growth potential of the business
The Group considers that there s
significant patential for growth, and
has identified this as a strategic
opportunity and aim

If the growth opportunities are

not understoed and exploited tin
line with our business model, or (f
current structures and skills within
the Group are not aligned to meet
the challenges of growth, there may
be an adverse affect on the Group's
ability to obtain maximum benefit
from this growth potential




22

Review of operations and finance continued

The Group places continuing focus
on the opportunities, challenges and
additional requirements related to
growth The potential for growth 1s
incorporated into Group strategic
plans and budgets, and existing
structures and skills are reviewed in
the context of growth, and adjusted
where necessary

Continuity of supply

The Group's bustness model
requires that every depot can
supply preduct from local stock

Any disruption to the relationship
with key supphers or interruption
to manufacturing operations could
adversely affect the Group's ability
to iImplement the business mode!

With suppliers, the Group tries

to maintath dual supply wherever
possible to mitigate the effects if a
key supplier was unable to deliver
goods or services We also enter
into long-term contracts to secure
supply of our key maternals Good
suppher relations are maintained
by prompt settlement of invoices,
regular communication and an
annual supplier conference Within
our manufacturing operations, we
adopt best practice health & safety
and fire prevention procedures
Business continuity plans are

in place for key production
processes The Group continues
to make significant investment
inits manufacturing facilities, to
enable manufacturing capacity

to match our expected growth as
well as providing further cabinet
production capactty which

will provide additional cover in
the event of an interruption to
manufacturing operations

Loss of key personnel

The skills, experience and
performance of key members of
the Group’s management team
make a large contribution to the
Group's success

The loss of a key mernber of
the Group’s management team
could adversely affect the
Group's operations

The Group uses the Remuneration
Commuttee to ensure that key

team members are appropriately
compensated for their contributions
and incentivised to continue their
careers with the Group

Input pnice pressure
The Group's gross margin
performance dnives profitability

The Group’s financial success
could be adversely affected by
increasing commaodity prices,
inflationary pressures and
currency fluctuations

The Group adopts a number of
measures to mitigate input price
pressure As well as conducting
regular reviews of the market and
of price trends, these measures
include negotiation with suppliers,

consideration of longer-term
supply deals, “make vs buy”
decisions where appropriate and
product pricing decisions The
Group also has an ongoing review
process to dnve efficiency and
identify opportunities to reduce
costs in the supply base, to protect
margin and profitability

Financial position

The growth of the business relies
in some part on our ability tc open
new depots, develop and introduce
new product, and to invest n
manufacturing capacity

if the Group’s financiat position

was to detenorate, limiting financial
resources to meet 1ts obligations and
to fund the growth and development
of the business, this would impact
on future growth

The Group regularly forecasts its
cash availability and its complhance
with banking covenants, with the
aim that there 1s sufficient cash
and/or avallable credit under our
banking faciity to meet planned
future expenditure and investment
requirements These forecasts are
closely monitored throughout the
year and reviewed against actual
performance, and actions are
taken to realign the position
where necessary



USE AND MANAGEMENT OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, AND
EXPOSURE TO FINANCIAL RISK

The Group holds financial
instruments for one principal
purpose to finance its operations
The Group does not currently use
denvative financial nstruments to
reduce Its exposure to interest or
exchange rate movements The
Group finances its operations

by a mixture of cash flows from
operations and longer term loans
from banks Treasury operations
are managed within policies and
procedures approved by the Board

The man nisks ansing from the
Group’s financial iInstruments are
funding and hquidity nsk, interest rate
nsk, counterparty nsk and foreign
currency risk discussed below

No speculative use of dernivatives,
currency or other instruments 1s
permitted The Treasury function
does not operate as a profit centre
and transacts only in relation to the
underlying business requirements

Funding and hquidity

The Group’s objective with respect
to managing capital 1s to maintan
a balance sheet structure that I1s
both efficient in terms of providing
long-term returns to shareholders
and safeguards the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern As
appropriate, the Group can choose

to adjust its capital structure by
varying the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, returns of capital to
shareholders, 1ssuing new shares or
the level of capital expenditure

During 2012, the Group had a £160m
asset-backed bank faciity which 1s
due to expire In July 2016

The Group's committed borrowing
facility contains certain financial
covenants which have been met
throughout 2012 The covenants

are tested every four weeks and are
based around () fixed charges, (11}
tangible net worth, and () earnings
before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation (EBITDA) for Howden
Joinery Limited

In addition, our pension trustees,
who carry a charge over the share
capital of Howden Joinery Limited,
have a separate covenant test
around the EBITDA of Howden
Jomery Limited

The current economic conditions
create uncertainty around the
Group's trading position, particularly
over the level of demand for the
Group's products and the exchange
rate between sterling and both the
Euro and the US dollar The Group's
latest forecasts and projections have
been stress-testad for reasonably
possible adverse vanations in
trading performance and show that

the Group will operate within the
terms of Its borrowtng facility and
covenants for the foreseeable future

The cash drawdown against

the bank facility at the year-end
was £2 1m and, after taking into
account other utiisation of the
facilities for terminable indemnities,
the Group was left with £126 Om of
available funds

interest raterisk

The Group's exposure to interest
rate fluctuations on its borrowings
may be managed when necessary
by borrowing on a fixed rate basis
and entering into rate swaps, rate
caps and forward rate agreements
The Group's policy objective has
been to undertake transactions

of this nature only when net debt
exceeds £150m Net debt has not
exceeded £150m during the year

Counterparty risk

Group Treasury policy on
Investment restncts counterparties
to those with a minimum Standard
and Poor's/Moody’s long-term
credit rating of AA- and a short-term
credit rating of A-1/P-1 Investments
mainly consist of bank deposits
and certificates of deposit The
Group continuously reviews the
credit qualty of counterparties,

the imits placed on indiwvidual
credit exposures and categories

of Investments
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Principal exchange rates 2012 2012 2011 2011
versus UK pound (£) Average Year-end Average Year-end
United States doliar (US$) 158 161 160 157
Euro (€) 123 122 115 120

Foreign currency risk

The most significant currencies
for the Group are the US dollar
and the Euro It s difficult to

pass the prescribed tests under
IAS 39 “Financial Instruments
Recognition and Measurement”
to ensure the ability to hedge
account for derivative currency
transactions As the resultant
volatility cannot be avoided in the
Income statement, 1t 18 the view of
the Board that routine transactional
conversion between currencies

I1s completed at the relevant spot
exchange rate This policy I1s
reviewed on a regular basis

The net impact of exchange rates
on currency transactions in the year,
compared to the previous year, was
£5 0m The Group does not have
many overseas assets/liabilities, so
the impact of currency translation 1s
not matenal

Set out In the table above are the
principal exchange rates versus the
UK pound affecting the profits of
the Group

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
No new accounting standards which
have an implication for the Group
came into effect duning the year

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Certain statements in this Annual
Report are forward-loocking
Although the Group believes that
the expectations reflected In
these forward-looking statements
are reasonable, we can give ne
assurance that these expectations
will prove to have been correct
Because these statements contain
risks and uncertainties, actual
results may differ materially from
those expressed or implied by
these forward-looking statements
We undertake no obligation te
update any forward-looking
statemnents whether as a result

of new information, future events
or otherwise

By order of the Board

Mark Robson
Chief Financial Officer

27 February 2013



Corporate social responsibility report

INTRODUCTION

Howden Joinery Group’s business

1 centred on the manufacture

and sale of kitchens and joinery to
trade customers With 529 depots
throughout the UK, we are a local
business with national scale and
therefore have unique responsibilities
to all of the communities in which we
operate Our business 1s built on the
relationships our depots have with
their customers but we recognise
that we have wider responsibilities
with regard to our product, our
environment and how we aperate

As such, we continue to focus on
our five key responsibilities which we
have cited in previous years

* Responsibility to manufacture safe
and sustamnable product

— Our kitchens must not only
function properly and comply
with regulations and legislation
but they must be produced 1n
a way which 1s mindful of the
wider environmental impact
both of our own operations
and the product we sell

* Responsibihty to our staff

- With over 6,300 employees,
we recognise the importance
of our business to our staff
and their families

* Responsibility to customers
and suppliers

— Qur 270,000 trade account
holders rely on our products
and services to ensure the
growth and prospenty of their
own businesses

— Our international supply base
of over 200 suppliers provides
opportunities and employment
in a wide range of trades

* Responsibility to local communities

—~ Each of our sites I1s an integral
part of the community in which
it operates, and helping those
commumtes to flourish s
important to everyone who
lives and works in them

+ Responsibility to future generations

— Through apprentice
programmes and college
support schemes, we aim to
help both our own staff and
aiso the next generation of
builders and tradespeople

As our business grows, so does
the /mpact of our actions To that
end, the 2012 CSR report shows
how we have been committed to
maintaining our relationships with
all of our stakehelders, improving
our products and reducing our
overall environmental impact
Through the setting of rolling and
extended KPls we hope that 1t
also demenstrates our long-term
commitments in these areas

For sase of reading and compariscn,
the report is 1n a similar format

to previous years, and, unless
otherwise stated, the report covers
the entirety of our business

MEASURING ACHIEVEMENTS

The Group continues to measure
its performance in respect of
environmental issues through the

use of a number of Key Performance
Incicators {KPIs) These relate to

* our use of wood,
* how we manage our waste, and

+ our ability to offer energy
efficient products to consumers

These KPis, which are discussed in
detail below, help us to ensure that
the action we take to reduce our
environmental impact 1s targeted
where it will have most benefit, and
that our progress 1s measurable and
motvational for all those involved

RESPONSIBLE MANUFACTURING

We remam committed to UK
manufacturing and continued to
invest in our two manufacturing
faciities (Howden, East Yorkshire 25
and Runcorn, Cheshire) during
2012 In July 2011 we announced
that we would be investing some
£20m in new facilities at these
locations over a two year period
and we firmly believe that investing
in local manufactunng ensures that
we can maintain the quality of our
product, protects the long-term
competitiveness of our business
and benefits our commurittes

During 2012, our UK-based
manufactunng teams
produced around

* 3 5 milon cabinets,

* B00,000 kitchen worktops
and breakfast bars, and

* 2 million kitchen frontals
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MANAGING QUR IMPACT
ON THE ENVIRONMENT

Wood

Manufactured Product

Given that wood based products are
central to our business, we continue
to set challenging targets for the
respansible use of wood based
products and paper products Our
rolling KPI to monuter the provenance
of our wood based product Is

“To ensure that 100% of our
wood based product used in
our manufacturing processes
comes from certified sources.”

In 2012, we used 198,000 cubic
metres of chipboard and 13,000
cubic metres of MDF 1n our
manufactuning process As has
been the case every year since
2008, all of this came from
certified sources

We set similarly challenging targets
for our use of cardboard packaging,
with our KPi being that all packaging
should be sourced from recycled

or certified sources In 2012 we
used 3,100 tonnes of cardboard
packaging all of which came from
recycled sources It is our Intention
to achieve a similarly high standard
mn the future

All of the kitchen ranges which
are manufactured at our factones
are certified by the UK Forest
Stewardship Council {UK FSC})
and over 99% of all products we
manufacture in-house are FSC
comphant (2011 99%)

Bought-in product
Ethical and environmental sourcing
contthues to be an important

factor when we deterrmine which
suppliers we use In order to
ensure consistency with our
manufactured product, we aim
to source from suppliers who
have similarly high standards
and internabionat accreditation

* As part of our continuous
improvement programmes all
our key suppliers are regularly
audited The audit programme
operates across some 14
countrnies and incorporates
measures relating to Qualty,
Environment, Health
& Safety, Employment and
Business Continuity

In 2012, as in 2011, 92% of

our European timber based
product suppliers were certified
as sourcing timber from a
sustainable supply

Howden Joinery has been certified
by the FSC and the European
Programme for the Endorsement
of Forest Certification (PEFC)
since February 2008 At the end of
2012, 22 of our 40 kitchen ranges
{55% of our kitchens) were fully
compliant with FSC requirements
{compared to 50% in 2011 and
43% in 2010) We aim to mantain
a similar proportion 1n 2013

Energy

Our efforts to reduce energy use
across the business are recognised
by our acereditation under the
Carbon Trust Standard For over

10 years prior to the introduction

of the Carbon Trust accreditation,
the Group's manufacturing faciities
had enjoyed accreditation under the
standard's predecessor, the Energy
Efficiency Accreditation Scheme

As well as assessing the Group's
overall reduction in energy usage
over a three-year penod, the
Standard also looks at general
energy management systems
across the business and the

ways In which energy reduction 1s
encouraged across all sites The
Carbon Trust's assessors also noted
our commitment to supply energy
efficient products to our customers
where possible

Manufacturing

* One of our key metrics for
energy usage In the factories 1s
the electricity we consume per
cabinet produced Qur baseline
measurement in 2008 was
3 62kWh per cabinet, and we
are pleased that this figure has
significantly decreased over the
last four years In 2012, we made
significant improvements in our
energy management through the
efforts of our employees and the
application of new technology Our
achievements in 2012 resulted in
the figure dropping to 2 B4kWh
per cabinet 2011 3 36kWh) We
managed to achieve this 15%
reduction in cur consumptton
per cabinet by installing energy
efficient variable speed dnve
compressors in our Howden site
thereby reducing the energy used
inigading We also introduced
a programme of lighting system
upgrades in all factories and
the Northampton Distribution
Centre warehouse, making a
significant improvement 1n energy
consumption whilst also iImproving
the working environment Given
the progress made in 2012, our
target for 2013 1s to maintain the
consumption per cabinet level
achieved in 2012




* All our Supply division sites
= manufacturing, distnbution
or warehouse related — have
maintained compliance with
therr ISO 14001 standard for
Environmental Management as
well as helping the Group retain
Its certification under the Carbon
Trust Standard

Truck Fleet

The Company operates a fleet of
104 trucks We continue to work with
our hauller partners through traffic
sharing arrangements and maxtimise
the use of backhaul capacity All of
our trucks remain Euro 5 compliant

We implemented a new tracking
system across the truck fleet during
the year By monitening and directing
improvements in driving style,

this system has resulted iIna 2 4%
reduction in CO, emissions across
the fleet since its intreduction

Car Fleet

We have now completed our plan
to replace our manager and sales
representatives’ vehicles with
more eco-friendly models Where
practical, we also continue to
introduce the latest fuel efficient
models as they become availlable
from our vehicle supplier

Products

Our KPI In this area, which we set for
a three year period (2010-2012), was
aimed at improving the efficiency of
our best selling own-brand preducts
both in terms of energy consumption
and water usage The targets were

“To improve the etficiencies of our
best selling own brand electric
ovens by reducing the kilowatt
consumption per hour by 5% or
more over the 3 year period *

“To reduce the water consumed
per cycle by 5% or more for own
brand laundry and dishwashers
over the 3 year period "

Excellent progress has been
made over the last three years
in raspect of our ovens, with
energy consumption n our own
brand “Lamona” appliances
reduced by 12% overall and by
5% for cur best selling ranges

In the last year we have also
reduced water consumption by
10% with our new dishwashers
and laundry appliances

Qur aim 1s to extend this type of KPI
over the next two year penod to see
if we can also reduce the electricity
consumption of our dishwashers

by 5% (measured on a kilowatt
consumption per hour basis)

In addition to measunng our
perfarmance against our chosen
KPls, we are committed to
gaining Energy Savings Trust
{EST) certification for some of
our apphances We now have
fifteen apphances certified and
recommended by EST (2011 6)
and we continue to seek
certification for a number of other
applances Where appropriate,
we will design new apphances in
line with EST recommendations

Waste

Our employees are encouraged to
consider how we can improve our
environmental performance in afl
areas by reducing consumption,
reusing matenals and recycling
wherever possible

In 2012, our Supply division reduced
overall waste by 13% and continued
to recycle waste in hne with therr
roling KPI which 1s

“To recycle more than 95% of all
manufactunng waste produced ”

+ Of the 33,000 tonnes of waste
produced (2011 37,900), 98%
was recycled (2011 98%)

+ One element of waste from
the manufacturing process I1s
sawdust In 2012 we converted
14,700 tonnes of sawdust into
energy at our Howden and
Runcorn sites (2011 16,600
tonnes), with sawdust fuelling
five wood combustion boilers
that burn this waste to heat our
factones This equates to approx
75k MWh of energy generated
from sawdust in 2012

* We also supplied 4,700
tonnes of milled sawdust to
a local manufacturer of animal
bedding where the sawdust 1s
recycled for use in bedding for
horses, cattle and other livestock
(2011 5,000 tonnes)

We continug with the initiative
started 1n 2007 to recover and
repair pallets which would
otherwise have been scrapped
Last year we recovered or
repared more than 125,000
pallets (2011 138,000)
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During the year, our trade division
engaged with a waste contractor to
implement a recycling programme
to reduce the waste sent to landfill
from our trade depots To date this
programme has been rolled-out

to 248 depots, with inihal results
showing that there has been an
overall reduction in excess of 50% in
waste being sent to landfill We will
continue to roll the programme cut
further in 2013

SUPPORTING OUR WORKFORCE
TO ACQUIRE AND PRACTICE
CORE SKILLS

Employee responsibility

We take our responsibilities as

an employer seriously We aim to
provide a positive work environment
for ali our staff, whether they work
in factories, warehouses, depots

or offices Our culture emphasises
the importance of individual
accountabtlity, which means the
personal responsibility of each of us
towards those we work with every
day We are proud of this culture,
which encourages openness and
transparency within the business
and has been wital to 1ts growth and
development since 1995 This culture
1s reinforced by our commitment to
certain core principles

* Recognising by reward the hard
work of all employees,

* nvesting in training and
development across the
business, and

* ensuring that recruitment, career
success and progressicn are solely
determined by an employee’s
abiities and achievernents

Supporting learming and
development in the community
Howden Joinery’s heritage and
culture means we place a high

value on the whole range of

skills - technical, commercial and
Interpersonal - that are practised by
local tradespeople We are keento
promote the use of these skills in the
workplace and interest in themn the
wider community

Developing apprenticeshlps
in-house

During 2012, we continued

our partnershup with The Real
Apprenticeship Company to
further promote the use of
apprenticeships within the
workplace The Group currently
employs 10 modern apprentices in
our Supply division and 170 within
the depot network, with a further
50 apprentices currently being
recruited During 2012, the business
saw 115 apprentices gain therr
apprenticaship qualification

Pioneening bursary scheme for
apprentice joiners

As well as helping promote the
value of apprenticeships in-house,
we also continue to help the next
generation of builders and joiners
by supporting apprentices in the
wider community In partnership
with CITB-ConstructionSkills {the
Sector Skills Council and Industry
Training Board for the construction
industry), we continue to offer the
Howden Jeinery Bursary for new
apprentice joiners The scheme was
the first of its kind in the ¢ountry, its
aim being to fund first year wages
for apprentice joiners in companies
which wouid otherwise feel

unable to afford to fund an
apprentice Cther than stipulating
that the money be used specifically
to fund apprentice joiners, Howdens
has no involvement in choosing
either the apprentices or the
companies mvolved

Having funded 20 places over the
first two years of the scheme, n
September 2012 we agreed to
extend the funding to accommodate
a further 20 places, creating
opportunities for 20 more young
people across the country We are
pleased with the feedback from the
scheme to date not only from the
newly quatified joiners themseives
but also from the companies who
now see the value of apprentices
and are committed to employing
more of them in the future, this time
without the help of a bursary

Partnerships with Further
Education colleges

In addition to running the bursary
scheme, we also support frainee
builders and joiners m their local
community as they go through therr
courses and develop therr skills To
do this, we continue to encourage our
depots to build on therr relatiocnships
with construction departments in
local colleges of Further Education
As well as donating discontinued
products on which students can
practise, depots also sponsor end

of year awards and prizes Just over
three years ago we started a separate
programme of support for colleges
that offer NVQ/Diploma courses

that include a module on kitchen
installation We provide each college
with a supply of equipment tailored to
therr indwidual requirements for both




practice and examinattons When
requirements are finalised for our
latest recruit to this project, we will
have fulfilled our initial cbjective of
recruiting one college in each of our
eight regions across the country

Training at Howdens

Ongaing BTEC programmes

Our commitment to tramning

does not, however, stop with
apprenticeships Qur training
team in our Trade division continue
to deliver the BTEC Level 2 Award
In Trade Business Services and
recently launched the BTEC Level
3 Certificate in Trade Business
Management through internal job
related traiming This course 1s
unique to Howden Joinery By
the end of 2012, 481 employees
had successfully been awarded
the Level 2 award, and 23
members of management had
enrolled to complete the Level 3
certificate programme

Management development

In 212, our Supply diviston also
focused specifically on management
and leadership development to
support the future growth of the
business During the year, our
Supply division training team
achieved “accredited centre” status
with the Instrtute of Leadership
Management which enables us

to deliver a Level 3 accredited
management development
programme {Institute of Leadership
Management) for Shift Managers
and Group Leaders

Other internal courses
As well as supporting staff to gain
accreditations, our staff have also

benefited from our iInvestment in
internal courses, with over 56,000
traiming hours completed during
the year Courses are offered in
subjects ranging from HR skills to
manual handling, from diversity &
inclusion to health & safety, from
environmental awareness to LGV
and fork-Iift truck driving We plan
to continue 1o iINvest In training
and development in 2013 as well
as maintain a strong in-house
delivery capability as we continue to
encourage staff to achieve training
qualfications themselves

Health & safety (depots,
manufacturing & distribution)
In the depots

There were 23 reportable health &
safety Incidents in our 529 depots
during 2012 (2011 31) and we are
pleased to report that the overall
accident trend over the last five
years continues downward

To ensure we maintain a health &
safety culture in the Trade division,
we continue to run a number of
courses including

* Qur defensive driving course
which runs for those staff
across the depot network who are
required to dnve as part of ther
day-to-day role this year a total of
321 drivers completed this course

Management of safety in a depot,
where managers continue to be
trained every three years During
2312, 239 managers and 166
assistant managers completed
this course

In our manufacturing, warehouse
and distribution sites

All three sites achieved the
prestigious “Internatiorral Safety
Award” given by the Bntish Safety
Counctl For our Howden site 1t

1s the fourth consecutive year of
entry and the second time it has
achieved a “Distinction” In thewr
first year of entry, our Runcern and
Northampton sites have both been
awarded “Distinctions”

Additionally, all three sites retained
therr OHSAS BS 18001 certification
and maintained “5-Star” status i the
British Safety Council 5-Star audit,
achieving over 95% comphance

During 2012, there were seven

reportable health & safety incidents

{2011 16) This continues a

downward trend in reportable 29
accidents which have declined

by 89% over the past five years

Average time lost per incident has

fallen by 79% over the same five

year period

Across the Group there were no
prosecutions, prohibitions or
improvement notices by either the
Health & Safety Executive (HSE} or
the Environment Agency (EA)

PLAYING AN ACTIVE ROLE
IN OUR COMMUNITIES

Each depot, manufacturing site,
distribution and support centre
fulfils an important rofe in the hife

of the area 1t serves So as a locally
driven business, 1t s our policy to
encourage staff at each of our sites
to support and engage with locai
community activities
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During 2012, our staff were
responsible for 2,126 donations

to local good causes (2011 2,229)
amounting to some £817k across the
Group (2011 £814k) Cash and stock
donations together with employee
fund raising initratives, typically
supported a broad cross section

of local causes including schools,
colleges, village halls, care homes,
hospices, sports clubs, scouts,
guides and youth groups

Moare than eight years ago we
formed a partnership with Leonard
Cheshire Disability Like Howdens,
this chanty works closely with local
commumities, supporting thousands
of disabled people across the
country Since its foundation in
1948, volunteers have always been
important to Leonard Cheshire
Disability For the past six years
Howdens has funded many areas
of their volunteer recruitment and
training programme, including the
“Gan Do" project

This itiative offers social support
and personal mentoring to young
disabled people For many of them,
the support network they had
always relied on invariably comes

to an end when they firush fulf

time education The objective 15 to
prevent social exclusion by including
themn n local activities and giving
them the support to find [ong-term
volunteering positions that may ina
few cases lead to employment Last
year “Can Do” supported over 1,600
volunteering opportunittes which led
to nearly 5,000 hours of volunteering
by 521 people

Earher this year Leonard Cheshire
Disabibity officially opened therr
first training kitchen for young
disabled people, operating from
their care home Bell’s Piece In
Farnham, Surrey This was a

Jjoint Howdens/Leonard Cheshire
Disability project involving the
partial conversion of a large
existing outbuilding In the first four
months of cpening, 50 students,
supported by “Can Do”, each
completed five healthy eating
workshops at the centre These
accredited courses are led by
professional staff and offer the
possibihty that some students
could go on to gain qualfications
and employment

Inspired by working with ther
residents, our inclusive kitchen
research with the charity continues
to enable us to offer affordable
kitchen solutions to people of all
abiities In addition to the kitchen

in Bell's Piece, we installed three
further activity centres in three other
homes as well as revisiting two
kitchens to carry out modifications
following feedback from staff

and residents As well as offering
many therapeutic and recreational
benefits, these installations also
enable Individual homes to offer life-
skills retraining both to residents and
day centre visitors

Every year our staff take up

vanous fundrarsing challenges ‘o
raise funds for Leonard Cheshire
Disability Howdens' team entry

for the Great North Run has now
become a regular event, with some
30 individuals competing every year

They raise about £10k each year with
funds going towards an adapted
minibus for one of the charity’s
homes We also had three entries

i1 the new multi-ability trnathlon “Tn
Together” in south London, five in
the London Marathon and four in the
Great South Run

Last August, 65 members of our
product and marketing team, spent
two of their annual team building
“away days” working as volunteers
on a community allotment project
called Green Patch in Kettering
This site 1s run by the environmental
regeneration chanty Groundwork
UK The team took on eleven
separate projects ranging from
barbecue, shed and path building
(improving disability access) to pond
clearance and fence building

Our “Truly Local” book, which we
have published for a number of years
and distributed through our depot
network, 1s avallable online at hitp #
www howdens com/about-us/a-
truly-local-business/ This provides
a snap-shot of just some of the
activities in which we are involved
but are not necessarily documented
n this report

Matthew Ingle
Chief Executive

27 February 2013




Board of directors

NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

Will Samuel

Will was appointed a non-executive
director and Charrman designate in
July 2006 and became Chairman in
October 2006 He s Senior Adviser
to Lazard & Co Ltd, Charrman of
Ecclesiastical Insurance Group ple
and Deputy Ghairman of Inchcape
ple He was also appointed a Senior
Adwviser to the Financial Services
Authonty {FSA) in January 2012
Prior to this he was a director of
Schroders plc, Co-Chief Executive
Officer at Schroder Salomon Smith
Barney {a division of Citigroup

Inc) and Vice Chairman, European
Investment Bank of Citigroup Inc,
Chairman of H P Bulmer plc and a
non-executive director of Edinburgh
Investment Trust plc Heis a
Chartered Accountant

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Matthew Ingle

Matthew was appointed Chief
Executive in October 2005 He set
up Howden Joinery in 1995 and has
been responsible for its growth into
a successful business today Prnor
to joining the Company he had been
Managing Director of the Magnet
Trade operation He was elected to
the Board of the Company in 1998

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mark Robson

Mark joined the Board in Apnl 2005
as Chief Financial Officer Mark
spent the previous six years as
Group Finance Director at Delta plc
Prior to this, he had held a number
of senior financial pesitions with I1CI
plc between 1985 and 1998 Heisa
Chartered Accountant and qualified
with Price Waterhouse

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mark Allen

Mark was appointed non-executive
drector in May 2011 Mark is CEO
of Darry Crest Group plc Aftera
brief perod at Shell between 1986-
1991, Mark joined Dairy Crest In
1991 as a general manager and,
after beng promoted through a
vanety of roles including Sales

& Operations Director and two
divistonal Managing Drirector roles,
he was appointed to Dairy Crest's
main Board in 2002, becoming Chief
Executive in 2006 He s Chairman
of The Prince’s Rural Action
Programme and a Trustee for The
Prince’s Countryside Fund

Angus Cockburn

Angus was appointed a non-
executive director in October 2006
He has been Chief Financtal Officer
of Aggreko ple since 2000, having
previously been Managing Director
of Pringle of Scotland and Regional
Finance Director Central Europe for
Pepsico Foods He was appointed
non-executive director of GKN plc
in January 2013 He i1s a Chartered

Accountant and qualfied with KPMG

Peat Marwick

Tiffany Hall

Tiffany was apponted a non-
executive director in May 2010
Currently UK Marketing Director at
BUPA, Tiffany was previously Head
of Marketng at British Airways She
was also Chairman of Airmites and
BA Holidays Prior to that, she held
vanous positions at Bnhsh Airways
including Head of Global Sales
and Distnbution and Head of UK
Sales and Marketing Tiffany was
previously a non-executive director
of Think Lendon

Michael Wemms

Michael was appointed a non-
executive director in November 2006
Michael was Chairman of House of
Fraser pic from 2001 until November
2006 and was an executive director
of Tesco plc from 1989 to 2000

He 15 a non-executive director of
Moneysupermarket com plc He
was Chairman of the British Retall
Consortium from 2004 until 2006
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Directors’ report

The directors have pleasure in
submitting their report and the audited
financial statements for the 53 week
penod ended 29 December 2012
Comparative figures relate to the 52
weeks ended 24 December 2011

PRINCIPAL GROUP ACTIVITIES,
BUSINESS REVIEW AND RESULTS

The principal actmity of Howden
Joinery Group Plc and its
subsidiaries 1s the sale of kitchens
and Joinery products, along with
the associated procurement,
manufacture and distribution of
these products Further information
on our business and the Howden
model can be found on pages 110 7

The Company 1s required by the
Compames Act 2006 to include

a business review in this report

The information that fulfils the
requirements of the business
review can be found in the following
sections which are incorporated in
this report by reference

* Chairman's statement on pages
8109

¢ Chief executive's statement on
pages 10 to 16

Review of operations and
finance on page 17 to 24
(including a review of principal
risks and uncertainties and key
performance indicators) and the
\llustrated business model on
pages2to 7

Corporate governance report
including Going Concern
statement on pages 50 to 57

* Audit Committee report on
pages to 58 to 62

+ Corporate social responsibility
report on pages to 25 to 30

containing environmental
matters, social & community
I1ssues and additional information
on employees

The full results for the period are
shown in the financial statements
on pages 63 to 115

Information about the use of financial
Instruments by the Company and its
subsidiaries 1s given in note 29 to the
financial statements

The subsidiary and associated
undertakings principally affecting
the profits or net assets of the Group
In the year are listed in the table

of parent company and principal
subs:diary undertakings on page

116 There have been no significant
events since the balance sheet date

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the
payment of a final dividend of

27 pence per ordinary share to be
paid on 21 June 2013 to ordinary
shareholders on the register on
24 May 2013 (2011 0 5 pence) An
intenm dividend of 0 3 pence was
pad dunng the year (2011 ni)

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the issued share capital,
together with details of the
movements in the Company’s 1ssued
share capital during the year are
shown in note 24 The Company has
one class of ordinary share which
carry no night to fixed income Each
share carries the nght to one vole at
general meetings of the Company

There are no specific restrictions
on the size of a holding nor on the
transfer of shares which are beth
governed by the general provisions

of the Articles of Association and
prevailing legislation The directors
are not aware of any agreements
between holders of the Company's
shares that may result in restrichons
on the transfer of securities or an
voting nghts

Details of employee share
schemes are set out In note 27
Shares held by the Howden
Joinery Group Plc Employee
Share Trust abstain from voting

No person has any special nghts
of control over the Company's
share capital and all 1ssued
shares are fully paid

With regard to the appointment

and replacement of directors, the
Company Is governed by its Articles
of Association, the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Companies
Act and related legislabon The
Articles may be amended by special
resolution of the shareholders

The business of the Company 1s
managed by the Board who may
exercise all the powers of the
Company subject to the provision
of the Articles of Association, the
Companies Act and any ordinary
resolution of the Company

There are a number of agreements
that take effect, alter or terminate
upon a change of controf such as
commerctal contracts, bank loan
agreements and employee share
plans The only one of these which 1s
considered to be significant in terms
of Iikely impact on the business

of the Group as a whole, I1s the

bank facility (as described in note
21} which requires majority lender
consent for any change of control




Should such consent not be
forthcoming, a change of control
would trigger a mandatory
repayment of the entire facility

The directors are not aware of any
agreements between the Company
and its directors or employees that
provide for compensation for loss
of office or employment that occurs
because of a takeover bid

ESSENTIAL CONTRACTS

The mission of the Group relies on
product of “no-call-back quality”
being in stock at all imes in order
to service the needs of the builder
The Group benefits from a number
of contracts which are key to
providing the volume of product
required to enable the Group to
fulfil this mission but 1s nevertheless
confident that other commercial
solutions would be availlable should
these contracts be terminated

Contracts with key personnel are
discussed In the review of pnncipal
risks and uncertainties on page 22

DIRECTORS AND THEIR
INTERESTS

Details of the diractors in office
on 29 December 2012 are shown
on page 31

All of the directors will retire at the
Annual General Meeting (AGM)

in accordance with the UK
Corporate Governance Gode and
each will offer themself for re-
elsction In accordance with Article
118 of the Articles of Association

In proposing their re-election,

the Chairman confirms that the
Nominations Committee has
considered the formal performance
evaluation in respect of those

directors seeking re-election and
the contribution and commitment
of the directors that are required

to offer themseives for re-election
He has confirmed to the Board that
their performance and commitment
1s such that the Company should
support their re-election

Having served nearly seven years as
a non-executive director and Char
of the Company’s Audit Committee,
Angus Cockburn has informed the
Board that he intends to resign

as a non-executive director once

a suitable candidate had been
recruited to replace hum In order to
ensure a smooth transition, Angus
will continue as non-exacutive
director and Chairman of the Audit
Committee until after the AGM

and thereafter until such time as
areplacement can be appointed
Angus will therefore offer himsaelf for
re-election at the AGM along with
the other directors The Nominations
Committee has appointed an
executive search agency to assist in
finding a suitable candidate

Information on the directors’ service
agreements, options and mnterests
of the directors and their famifies in
the share capita! of the Company,

1s set out In the separate Directors’
remuneration report on pages 35 to
49 Details of ndemnity provisions
made for the benefit of directors are
given in the Gorporate Governance
report on pages 50 to 57

SUPPLIERS’ PAYMENT TERMS

The Group and Company's policy, In
relation to all Its suppliers, is to settle
its terms of payment when agreeing
the terms of the transaction and to
abide by those terms provided that

it 1s satisfied that the supplier has

provided the goods or services in
accordance with the agreed terms
and conditions

The number of days’ purchases
outstanding for payment by the
Group at the period end was 45
days (2011 48 days) and nil
(2011 nd) for the Company

FIXED ASSETS

There 15 no matenal difference
between the book value and the
current open market value of the
Group’s interest in land and buildings

CHARITABLE AND
POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Kitchen and joinery products

and services donated to various
charities, as well as charitable
donations made during the period
amounted to £817k {2011 £814k)

The Group made no political
donations dunng the current and
previous period

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS

As at 27 February 2013, the
Company had been notifited in
accordance with Chapter 5 of the
Disclosure & Transparency Rules,
of the fotlowing voting nghts as a
shareholder of the Company

Standard Life Investments Ltd 14 16%

Blackrock Inc 994%

Jupiter Asset Management Ltd | 5 28%

Cazenove Capttal

Management Ltd 518%
Old Mutual Assat Managers
{UK) Ltd 411%

EES Trustees International Ltd
(as Trustee of Howden Jonery
Group Employee Benefit Trust) | 3 35%

Legal & General Assurance
(Pensions Management) Ltd 318%
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The percentage interest 1s as stated
by the shareholder at the time of
notification and current interasts
may vary

ACQUISITION OF THE COMPANY'S
OWN SHARES

At the end of the year, the

directors had authonty under the
shareholders’ resolutions of 16

May 2012 to purchase through the
market 63,391,533 of the Company’s
ordinary shares at prices ranging
between 10p and the higher of {(a)
105% of the average middie market
quotation for an ordinary share as
denved from the London Stock
Exchange Daily Official Lust for the
five business days immediately
preceding the day on which the
ordinary share 1s purchased and

(b) an amount equal to the higher

of the pnce of the last independent
trade of an ordinary share and the
highest current independent bnd for
an ordinary share as derived from
the London Stock Exchange Trading
System The authornity expires at the
conclusion of the next AGM or 15
months from the date of passing

EMPLOYEES

The average number of employees
and their remuneration are shown in
note 8 to the financial statements

At the year end, the Group had 6,300
employees (2011 6,397) throughout
the United Kingdom and overseas
and strives to engage 1ts employees
wherever possible In its business
goals by means of regular regional
and local staff meetings

The Board remains committed

to inking reward to business
budgets and targets thereby giving
employees the opportunity to share
in the financial success of the
Group In keeping with the structure
of the business, the Company I1s
committed to applying this policy
locally, and as a result, staff of

all tevels regularly benefit from
achieving local targets throughout
the year The Board also recognises
employees for their contribution
through the use of employee
incentive plans and share plans
within overall remuneration

The Group promotes the importance
of diversity and adopts an Equal
Opportunities Policy under which
training and career development
opportunities are avallable to zll
employees, regardless of gender,
religion or race The Group 15
commutted to meeting the code

of practice on the employment of
disabled people and full and far
consideration 1s given to disabled
applicants for employment [t

aims to do all thats practicable

to meet its responsibility towards
the employment and training of
disabled people and welcomes,
and considers fully, apphcations by
disabled persons, having regard

to therr particular aptitudes and
abilittes

It 15 also the Group's policy to
retain employees who may become
disabled while in service and to
provide appropriate training

AUDIT INFORMATION
AND AUDITORS

Each of the persons who 1s a
director at the date of approval
of this Annual Report confirm that

* so far as each of the directors
Is aware, there Is no relevant
audit information of which
the Company’s auditors are
unaware, and

the director has taken all the

steps that he ought to have taken
as a director in order to make
himself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that
the Company's auditors are aware
of that information

The confirmation 1s given and
should be interpreted In accordance
with the provisions of 5418 of the
Companies Act 2006

Deloitte LLP have expressed their
willingness to continue In office as
auditors and a resolution to reappomnt
them will be proposed at the
forthceming AGM

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The Annual General Meeting Is to
be held at UBS Investment Bank,

1 Finsbury Avenue, London, EC2M
2PP on 9 May 2013

By order ﬁthe Board

\
ol iIshop
Secreta

-

27 February 2013




Directors’ remuneration report

STATEMENT TO SHAREHOLDERS
FROM THE CHAIR OF THE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Dear Shareholder,

On behalf of the Board, | am

pleased to present the Remuneration
Commuittee’s Report for 2012 for
which we will be seeking approval
from shareholders at our AGM on

9 May 2013

The subject of executive
remuneration has continued to
receive significant focus from both
shareholders and the wider public
Of particutar note ts the ongoing
consultation by the Department for
Business, Innovation & Skills (BIS)
and its new regulations relating

to the disclosure and shareholder
approval of executive remuneration
Whilst these regulations do not
come into force untl Howdens' 2013
financial year, we have nevertheless
tncorporated a number of changes
this year in response fo the draft
regulations to help make our
Remuneration Report clearer and
easier to understand As part of
this, the report has been split into
two sections a forward looking
policy report, which sets out the
pay policy agreed by the Committee
for the Group’s executives, and a
backward-looking implementation
report, which provides details on
remuneration related outcomes over
the past year

Context to the Committee's
decisions

In 2012 the Group faced another
year of uncertain trading conditions,
with continued pressure on costs
and little in the way of economic

growth to shimulate customer
spending In spite of this, the Group
has continued to perform well with
revenues up 4 0% on 2011 This has
been driven by strong growth on a
same depot basis, and centinued
Investment in future growth with 20
new depots opened this year At the
same time, the Group has continued
to strengthen its balance sheet

The share price has reflected this
combined performance mcreasing
from £1 00 at the beginning of 2012
to £1 73 at the end

Similarly, performance has been
strong in terms of profit and cash
generation, the two key metnics
dnving our incentive schemes
Continued good profit performance
has resulted in the performance
conditions applying to the 2010 grant
of market value options being met

in full Also a year of outstanding
cash generation, as discussed in the
Operations and Finance Review on
pages 17 to 24, has led to the cash
flow component of the annual bonus
bemng met in full

However the challenging targets

set by the Committee mean that
performance against the profit
component of the annual bonus 1S
below target Combined with the
cash flow gutcomes this means

an aggregate bonus payout at the
target level Given the Group's overall
performance and the progress made
towards its long-term strateqic goals,
the Committee feels these levels

of vesting are appropriate and has
approved them

Key Committee decisions

The Commitiee 1s comfortable

that cur pay decisions reflect
performance whilst demeonstrating
responsibility and ensuring our
arrangements appropriately reward
our management team for delivenng
strong, sustanable performance and
sharehoider value The key decisions
for 2013 are highhghted below

Moderate salary increases for
executive directors of 3%, in ine
with the broader employee budget

Approval of 2012 annual bonus
payouts at 103% of salary,
following a year of strong Group
performance

Approval of the vesting of the

2010 market priced options

in full, following three years of

exceptional profit growth 35

Agreeing an improved definition of
cash flow for use with the annual
bonus to incorporate the efficlency
with which working capial 1s used
into the defintion

Confirmation that the incentive
structure used in 2012 will

again be used in 2013 This
maintams the simpltcity within the
remuneration package of using
one annual and one long-term
component, both focused on our
core strategic measures of profit
and cash generation However, to
recognise the increasing matunty
of the business the Committee has
chosen to reduce the significance
of the cash flow component of the
annual bonus by half, meaning the
maximum opportunity under this
component will be 20% of salary
in 2013 {40% of salary in 2012)
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* Confirmation that no amendments
are to be made to the normal
remuneration cycle to take
advantage of the change in
UK income tax rate

Further details of the changes in
remuneration structure for 2013 are
set out In the pay policy table on
pages 37 and 38 The Committee

will continue to monitor the current
arrangements and remuneration
policy to ensure they remain effective
in supporting the Group's long-term
business goals

Finally, | would hke to thank my
fellow Committee members

and those other individuals who
supported the Committee for their
hard work and commitment over
the past year

On behalf of the Board

Michael Wemms
Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee

POLICY REPORT

This policy report sets out the pay
policy agreed by the Committee for
the Group’s executives

The key elements of pay

The Commuttee has an overall
remuneration policy on which
it bases decisions on executive
directors’ pay, as follows

* The remuneration package
should be simple and support the
continuing growth of Howdens
while continuing to encourage an
entrepreneurial culture

Where appropnate, remuneration
polictes and performance
measures are cascaded
throughout the business from the
CEO down to the depot managers

Upper quartile levels of total
remuneration should be available
for truly supenor performance with
at least two-thirds of the executive
directors’ total potential reward
being performance-related

+ Profit growth and cash
management, which are within
management's control and
influence, are considered to be
the key performance drivers of
shareholder value The Company's
targets are considered achievable
but still at the top-end of
stretching performance

* The overall reward policy
encourages executives to
own and thvest in Howden
Jomnery Group shares
aligning perfarmance over the
longer term Executives are
encouraged to invest in shares
in the Company and to build
and maintain a shareholding of
at least one times salary over a
reasonabte time frame {two times
salary for CEQ)

Remuneration 1s benchmarked
against rewards available for
equivalent roles in a suitable
comparater group [n addition to
benchmarking, the Committee

also consrders general pay and
employment condiions of all
employeas within the Group and

15 sensitive to these, to prevailing
market conditions, and to
governance trends when assessing
the level of salanes and remuneration
packages of executives The table
on pages 37 and 38 sets out the key
components of executive directors’
pay packages, including why they
are used, how they are cperated in
practice and changes for 2013




Purpose and how it 2012 Approach and
Element supports the strategy opportunity/level performance measurement |Changes for 2013
Basge salary Base salary recognises CEQ £5655,000 | Base salaries are reviewed Salaries to be increased
the market value of the annually, taking into account | by 3% in line with the salary
exacutive's role, skill, CFO £389,300 | the performance of the increases for the wider
responsioiities, individuals, changes in workforce, to the following
performance responsibilities and satary CEC £571,700
and experience lavels for similar roles in
comparable companies (policy | oroy £401,000
is to pay median) Internal
relativities and the level of
total remuneration against the
market are also considered
Fees for The fees reflect the Chairman fee £170,000 | The fess for the non- The fees for the Charrman
non-executive | time commitment and exocutives are datermined and non-executive directors
directors responsibilitios of the roles NED base £35,000 | by the Chairman and Chief will be reviewed during 2013
Accordingly the committee Executive
chairmanship, membership SID £3,000 | The fee tor the Chalrman
and 51D feas are in addition 18 determinad by the
to the NEDs' basic fee The Committee Remuneration Committes while
committee charmanship Chair £8,000 | tha Chairman is apsent
and membership fees
apply only to the Audit and Committee
Remuneration Committees member
£2.500
The Chairman receivas
no faes in addition to the
Charrman's fae
Benefits To provide a competitive level | Comprises receipt of a car | Benefits are provided in No changes for 2013

of benefits

allowance, non-exclusive
use of a driver, health
msurance and death-in-
service insurance payable

by the Company

accordance with market
practice

Annual bonus

Incentivises annual profit

and cash flow performance
over the financial year Profit
and cash flow are key to the
Group's strategy and are core
dnivers of shareholder value

The deferred element has
no further performance
conditions Shares are

paid out in equal tranches
on the first and second
anniversary of the deferral
date Payment is subject to
continued employment This
links the bonus payout to
Group performance over the
madium term

Maximum bonus of 200%
of salary for the CEQ

and CFO (although this
represents a notional
cap on the profit share
component and the
Committee do not
envisage this level of
payout being attained)
Any bonus in excess of
100% of salary ts deferrad

intoc shares

Parformance 13 assessed
annually against cash flow
and PBT targets The cash
flow element can result in a
payout of up to 40% of salary
Achievement agamst PBT
targets can result in a payout
of 0% up to 200% of salary
Howaver as the total bonus
recelvable by executives
cannot exceed 200% of
salary, the maximum payqut
under PBT i1s lrmited by the
achieverment against cash
flow targets

The opportunity available
under the cash flow
componant of the annual
bonus (s to be halved
meaning a maximum payout
under this component of
20% of salary in 2013 This
change has been made

to reflect the increasing
maturity of the business
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Incentive Plan
(LTIP)}

the Company at the AGM In
2009 Awards of restncted
shares or share options may
be made under the LTIP
Although this plan was not
used in 2012, the Committea
has the option to use it in
future years as an alternative
to the CIP

awards to ba granted to would vast after a three year
participants of up to 100% | vesting penad subject to

of salary in restricted performance against PBT
shares or 200% of salary in | growth targets

market value options PBT pertormance would be
measured over a three year
period The targets would be
sat atthe start of the three
year performance penod

Purpose and how it 2012 Approach and
Element supports the strategy opportunity/level performance measurement | Changes for 2013
Co-Investment | Executives have the The CEO can invest up The shares vest after a three | No changes for 2013
Plan (CIP) opportunity to participate in to the lesser of 650,000 year vesting period subject

the CIP on an annual basts shares or 150% of salary to performance against PBT

The CIP operates over athree | The CFO s able to invest | growth targets

year cycle The long-term PBT | gn equivalent propertion | PBT performance is

growth targets used focus of salary measured over a three year

management’s attention on Each ivested share s period The targets are set at

tonger term PBT growth than | patchad by the Group with | the start of each three year

addressed by the annual bonus two shares performance pencd

and is key to the generation

of shareholder valua The

investrment 1s funded by the

axecutives themselves
Long-Term A new LTIP was adopted by Tha plan allows for The sharas or options As In 2012, there Is no

intention to use the plan
m 2013

Howden
Joinery Group
Pension Plan
(the Plan)

To provide compettive long-
term savings opportunities

The Plan is 2 hybrid definad benefit, occupationa! penslon
plan The defined benefit pension accrues on a Career
Average Revalued Earnings (CARE) basis at the rate of
1/50th of actual pensionable pay ineach year (currently
capped at £135,000)

In addition the Company will match any voluntary
member contribution made to the defined contribution
top-up section to a maximum of 8% of pensionable

pay Alternatwely a participant may receive a salary
supplement of 8% of salary i lreu of this defined
contribution opportunity

A pension supplement system operates concurrently with the
Plan which recognises that pension entitlement in respect of
the CARE part of tha Ptan 1s capped Thus supplement 13 30%
of basic salary above the Plan Cap to reflect competitive
market practice The GEQ has chosen to opt out of
membership of the Plan and consequently receives a salary
supplemnent of 30% of salary in lieu of pension

This Plan is now closed 1o new entrants If an executive
director joins who is not already a member of the Plan, they
will be able to participate in the new auto-enrolment defined
contribution scheme or to recelve a supplement payment of]
30% of total Basic Salary

For 2013 the Cap will
Increase to £138,000 in
line with inflation

No changes have been made to the policy except where identified above




Remuneration policy for other employees

The remuneration policy described in the previous tabte applies specifically to executives of the Group However,
the Remuneration Committee believes it 1s appropriate that all senior management’s reward is directly linked to

the performance of the Company and aligned with shareholder value Accordingly Executive Committes members
participate in the same incentive schemes as the executive directors at a reduced level to ensure alignment between
the leadership team with each other and with our shareholders

Below this level, a system of profit shanng and the encouragement of share ownership 1s cascaded through all tiers
of management Individuals who sit within the upper tiers of the organisation participate in a similar bonus plan
that i1s inked to PBT and cash flow These individuals also receive share awards which vest dependent on the same
performance measures as the long-term incentive plan awarded to executive directors

Share grants are made at a reduced level to a wider poputation within Howdens that do not use performance
conditions These awards are made In order to encourage share ownership throughout the Company

2013 remuneration scenanos

The remuneration package for the executive directors 1s designed to provide an appropnate balance betwesn fixed
and vanable, performance-related components, with a significant proportion of the package weighted towards
long-term vanable pay The Committee 1s satisfied that the composition and structure of the remuneration package
Is appropriate and does not Incentivise inappropnate risk taking and reviews this on an annual basis

The composition and value of the executive diregtors’ remuneration packages m a range of performance scenanos are
set out In the charts below These show that the proportion of the package delivered through long-term performance is
n line with our remuneration policy and changes significantly across the performance scenanos As a result, the package
promotes the achievement of superior long-term performance and aligns the interests of the executive directors with
those of other shareholders A brief descnption of each remuneration scenario 1s set out below the charts

Base salary corresponds to 2013 salary Benefits figure uses 2012 actual benefits as per the emoluments table as an indication for 2013 benefits Pension
represents 2013 salary supplemaent for CEO and an sstimate of the 2013 pension provided to the CFQ in line with HMRC methodology Below target no
incentives vest. Bonus reflacts 100% of salary for the target scenano and 200% of salary for the maximum scenane This 200% bonus level represents a
cap rather than a maxirnum award and the Committee do not envisage this level of payout being attaned under normal creumstances Tha LTIP figuras
reflect the midpaint of the threshold and maximum vesting for the target scenano and full vesting for the maximum scenario. Share price mavement has
not been incorporated into the above figuras.

Non-executive directors do not recarve performance related pay Therr fees are disclosed in the policy table
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Consideration of conditions elsewhere in the Group

When making decisions on executive reward, the Remuneration Committes considers the wider economic
environment and conditions within the Company In particular the Committee considers pay conditions across
the Gompany when reviewing base salaries for executive directors

Addiionally some of the Company's workforce are uniomsed or belong to a works council Howdens maintains
open ines of communication with these bodies and the Commitiee I1s always made aware of any relevant information
n relation to remuneration policy

Accordingly the salary increase for the wider workforce for 2013 was 3% on average, which was in line with the
ncrease provided to the CEQ and GFO

Consideration of sharehglder views

The Committee remains committed to maintaining an ongoing and transparent dialogue with its shareholders Durnng
the year, open channels of dialogue were maintained with our major shareholders and shareheclder representation
bodies The Committee Charrman also sent a letter to the Group’s top ten shareholders in advance of the publishing
of this remuneration report summarising the contents and the key areas for shareholders’ attention This allowed
shareholders to raise any 1ssues or concerns they may have had in advance of the final publication date

Shareholders were generally supportive and did not highlight any areas for change in policy during this year's dialogue

Service contracts

The Company's policy on service contracts and termination arrangements Is set out below As an overrniding principle,
1115 the Company’s policy that there should be no element of reward for falure The Committee's approach when
constdering payments in the event of termination 1s to take account of the Individual circumstances including the
reason for termination, contractual obhgations of both parties as well as share plan and pension scheme rules

All executive directors’ employment contracts have twelve months’ notice of terminatton on beth sides In the

event of termination by the Company, there will be no compensation for loss of office due to misconduct or normal
resignation In other circumstances, executive directors may be entitled to receive compensation for loss of office
which will be paid monthly for a maximum of twelve months Such payments will be equivalent to the monthly salary
that the executive would have received if still in employment with the Company Executive directors will be expected
to mitigate their loss within a twelve month pericd of ther departure from the Company

In their service contracts, executive directors have the following remuneration related contractual provisions
* Receipt of a salary, which 1s subject to annual review
* Receipt of a car allowance and non-exclusive use of a dniver

* Health insurance and death-in-service insurance payable by the Group

Ehgibility to participate in any bonus scheme or arrangement which the Company may operate from time to time,
subject to the plan's rules

s Participation in the Company’s pension plan, subject to the approval of the Board




{MPLEMENTATION REPORT

This implementation report outlines remuneration related activities and outcomes over the past year Those sections
of this report which have been audited are indicated in the title to the section

The Committee and its advisers

Membership of the Committee

The Remuneration Committee compnses four ndependent non-executive directors who have ne personal financial
interest, other than as sharehelders, in the matters to be decided Dunng the year, the members of the Commitiee were

¢ Michael Wemms (Charman of the Remuneration Commitiee)
* Mark Allen

¢ Angus Cockburn

« Tiffany Hall

Under its terms of reference {published in the Governance section of Howden Joinery Group Plc website at
http //www howdenjoinerygroupplc com and reviewed on an annual basis) the Committee 1s responsible for
determining the broad policy and specific remuneration packages for executive directors, the Company
Secretary and other members of the Executwe Committee, including pension rights and, where applicable,
any compensation payments The Committee I1s also reqularly updated on pay and conditions applying te other
employees in the Company

The Committee met three times during 2012 and attendance of the Committee 1s shown n the table in the Corporate
Governance report The mestings covered the following key areas

* Approve salanes for the Executive Board members and Executive Committee

= Review the developments in corporate governance best practice and compstitive market practice trends dunng the
course of the year

Review and approve the Remuneration Report to shareholders

Review and approve the Charrman's fees

Review and approve the terms and conditions of the annual bonus and long-term incentives awarded for 2011,
including determining the appropniate performance targets

Review and approval of annual bonus payouts for 2011

Review and approval of share-based awards vesting for 2011

Review and approve the terms of reference of the Committee

* Initral review of the ongoling appropriateness and relevance of the remuneration policy and incentives for 2013

Review of the balance between nisk and reward to ensure that the incentives are cormnpatible with the Company’s
nsk policies and systems The Commitiee concluded that the incentives did not expose the Company to any
excessive nsk and were appropriately managed

4
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Adwvice to the Committee

The Commuttee regularly consults with the Chief Executive on matters concerning remuneration, although he 1s never
present when his own reward I1s under discussion The Company Chairman attends the Remuneration Committee

by invitation except when his own remuneration s determined The Company Secretary acts as secretary io the
Committee but 1s never present when her own reward 1s determined

The Committee also has access to detalled external information and research on market data and trends from
ndependent consultants PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC)1s the Committee’s retained independent advisers and
provided advice to the Committee durning the year PwC also undertook a review of the Group's internal audit function
during 2012 (see the Audit Committee report on pages 58 to 62 for further details}

Statement of shareholder voting
The table below shows the voting outcome at the May 2012 AGM for the approval of the 2011 Remuneration Report

For Against Abstain

Votes 96 7% 17% 16%

The Committee was pleased with the strong vote In favour of the report the Group received from shareholders

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (AUDITED)
The following table sets out the directors’ emoluments for the 53 weeks to 29 December 2012

Emotuments table

Basic Annual cash Ponsion S53weeksto 52 wooksto
All tigures In £000 salary Fees Banefits incontive®  supplement® 29Deoc 2012 24 Dec 2011
Charrman
Will Samuel - 170 - - - 170 170
Executive directors
Matthew Ingle 555 - 18 555 165 1,293 1,255
Mark Robson 389 - 32 389 108 918 867
Sub-total 944 170 50 944 273 2,381 2,292
Non-executive directors
Mark Allen - 40 - - - 40 23
Angus Cockburn - 48 - - - 48 48
Tiffany Hall - 40 - - - 40 40
lan Smith# - - - - - - 29
Michasgl Wemms - 51 — - - 51 51
Total 944 349 50 944 273 2,560 2,483

1 The benefits column incorporates benefits in kind which refate In the main to the provis:on of a fully axpansed car or cash equivalent, private medical
cover and use of the company driver

2 Total bonus outcome for Messrs Ingle and Robson was 103% of salary Any amount earned in excess of 100% of salary (s deferred into shares half
of which will be held in trust for a further year and half being held n trust for a further two years

3 Pension supplements are paid every six months in arrears and the next payment 1s due in March 2013 The table above icludes an accrued amount
for the period from 1 October 2012 to 2@ December 2012 Further details of the pension supplement are given on page 38

4 lan Smith retired from the Board on 21 September 2011




STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDING

In order that their interests are aligned with those of shareholders, executive directors are expected to build up and
mamntain a personal sharehelding in the Company

Under the share ownership guidelines the Chief Executive 15 required to held a personal shareholding equal to twice
his basic salary Other executive directors are required to hold a personal shareholding equal to their basic salary

There are no shareholding guidelines for non-executive directors

The table below sets out the total shares in the Group held or potentially held by directors and the extent to which the
executive directors have met the shareholding guidelines

Shares held Options held
Subjaect to Subject to Current

Shareholding Qwned performance Subjectto Owned performance shareholding Guideline
Director requirement | outright conditions  deferral  outright conditions (% salary)* met?
Matthew Ingle 200% |3,285,280 2,600,000 107,862 4,569,941 1,333,333 977% Yes
Mark Robson 100% {1,417,739 1,825,256 70,011 4,022,874 892,193 601% Yes
Will Samuel n/a 40,000
Mark Allen n/a 3,000
Angus Cockburn n/a 3,000
Tiffany Hall n/a 3,000
Michael Wemms nfa 42,000

*Based on a share price of £1 65, being the 3 manth average shere price to 29 December 2012 (source Datastream)

BASE SALARIES IN 2012

The Committee’s policy 1s to position base salary for each director at the median level compared to market practice
Base salanes are reviewed annually and are determined by taking into account the performance of the indmduats,
changes in their responsibilities and information from independent remuneration consuttants on the levels of salary
for similar jobs having regard to the size of the Company - its turnover, market capitalisation and complexity The
Committee also takes into account internal relativities and the total remunerabon of the executives compared to the
market Base salary 1s the only element of remuneration which 1s pensicnable In addition, benefits are provided to
executive directors in accordance with market practice

The salary increases for 2012 and 2013 are set out in the table below The increases provided are in hne with salary
increases provided to the wider warkforce The CEQO's increase in 2012 was his first increase since 2008

2012 2013

Salary Increase on prior yaar Salary Increase on prior year

Matthew Ingle £555,000 3% £571,700 3%
Mark Rebseon £389,300 3% £401,000 3%
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VARIABLE PAY OUTCOMES FOR THE YEAR ENDING 29 DECEMBER 2012

2012 bonus

In line with the current policy, the bonus opportunity for 2012 was capped at 200% of salary with any payment over
100% of salary deferred into shares The performance measures were made up of pre-excephional profit before tax
(PBT) and cash flow targets as shown below

Under the PBT component, no bonus is payable for achieving below Threshold performance In 2012, this was set
at £99m PBT At Threshold performance, 10% of salary can be earned rising to 77% of salary for achieving a Target
level of PBT performance with straight-line vesting between these points Above Target, the bonus 1s determined on a
“profit share basis” whereby participants earn a bonus based on a fixed percentage of the Company’s PBT In 2012,
the profit share percentages for the CEQ and CFO were 0 43% and 0 30% respectively

In respect of the cash flow element of the bonus, executives can earn up to 40% of salary based on achieving
pre-determined cash flow targets The cash flow measure used in 2012 1s based on net cash flow from operating
activities, taking into account the efficlency with which working capital 15 used, and adjusted for exceptional tems
15% of salary is payable for achieving threshold performance and 40% of salary 1s payable for achieving maximum
performance, with payments determined on a straight-ine basis between these points No bonus in respect of the
cash flow element will be paid below threshold

Annual bonus outcomes Matthew Ingle Mark Robson
Cash flow component achievement and outcome Achleved £139m cash flow
Outcome 40% of salary
PET component achievement and outcome Achieved £112m PBT
OQutcome B3% salary Outcome 63% salary
Details of any discretion exercised No discretion was exercised In respect of annual
bonus cutcomes in the year under review
Total paid £572,726 401,734
—delivered in cash £555,000 £389,300
~delivered in shares £17,726 £12,434

2010 Market Priced Options

Market priced options were granted to executives on 25 March 2010 under the Howden Joinery Long-Term Incentive
Plan, which vest on 25 March 2013 The share options vest in full if 2012 PBT has grown by RP| + 8% p a on 2000
PBT and lapse if growth was below RPI

Over the performance penod the Group's PBT increased at a rate of 14% p a n excess of RPl Therefore, the
maximum profit targets under the plan were significantly exceeded In addition the share price increased over the
period from 76p on 27 December 2009 (the beginning of FY10)} to 173p on 28 December 2012 (the end of FY12) In
light of this, and given the Group’s overall performance and the progress made towards its long-term strategic goals,
the Committee feels this level of vesting 1s approprate and has approved them




FIVE YEAR TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN (AUDITED)

Under the Directors’ Remuneration Repart Regulations 2002 (“the Regulators”) the Company ts required to include
in this report a graph showing the Company's total shareholder return (TSR) performance over the most recent five
years compared to an appropnate index The graph below Ilfustrates the Company's TSR performance relative to the
constituents of the FTSE 250 index {(excluding Investment Trusts) of which the Company 1s a constituent

It shows that over the past five years Howden Joinery Group has generated significantly higher returns than the FTSE
250 (excluding Investment Trusts)
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DETAIL ON VARIABLE PAY AWARDED IN THE YEAR

During 2012, the executive directors were invited to participate in the Co-Investment Plan The plan operated on
the same basis as the awards which were granted n 2011, as follows

The CECG was able to invest up to the lesser of 650,000 shares and 150% salary of kus own shares into the plan
for three years At the time of award, 650,000 shares equated to 149% of salary (based on a closing share price
of £1 275 on the day prior to grant)

The CFO was able to invest up to the same proportion of salary as the CEO
Both the CEO and CFO invested the full amount

Under the plan, each invested share s matched by up to two additional shares which vest subject to the
achievement of stretching PBT growth targets

in setting the performance targets, the Remuneration Committee aims to align management’s reward with
longer term PBT growth which 1s central to the achievement of Howdens strategy

The table below provides further details of this award

Nature of award Restricted shares awarded under the Co-Investment Plan
Level of award Executive Number of Maximum potential Face value of
Invested shares matching shares CIP award
CEQ 650,000 1,300,000 £1,657,500
CFO 455,937 911,874 £1,162,368
PBT component PBT growth performance condition Number of matching shares that
vesting schedule would vest peor invested share
2% pa 2
Straight-line vesting between these points Straight-line vesting between these points
6%pa 05
Lessthan 6% p a 0
Performance period Performance measured from FY11 to FY14
Vesting date 26 March 2015

LOSS OF OFFICE PAYMENT
No exit payments were made in the year under review




TOTAL PENSION ENTITLEMENTS (FOR DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEMES) (AUDITED)

Executive directors can participate in the Howden Joinery Group Pension Plan (the Plan) The Plan i1s funded and
HMRC approved With effect from 1 September 2006 the basis changed to a hybrid defined benefit, occupational
pension plan

Its main features are

+ the defined benefit pension accrues on a Career Average Revalued Earnings {CARE) basis at the rate of 1/50th of
actual pensicnable pay in each year (currently capped at £135,000), post-retirement increases are linked to the
increase In the retail prices index with a maximum of 2 5%,

* members contribute 8% of pensionable pay to the CARE plan,

in addition to the defined benefit section, the Company will match any voluntary member contnbution made to the
defined contrbution top-up section to a maximum cf 8% of pensionable pay The member may opt to receive a
salary supplement of 8% of salary in ieu of this defined contnbution oppeortunity,

ife assurance cover of six times pensionahle pay for those members with dependents and two times for those
without dependents,

pension payable in the event of Il health, and
* spouse's pension on death in retirement of 2/3 of deceased’s penston
Pensionable pay ts imited to the member's basic salary

A pension supplement system operates concurrently with the Plan which recognises that pension entitlement in
respect of the CARE part of the Plan has included maximum benefit restnctions which was £135,000 for 2012 This
supplement 1s 30% of basic salary above the Plan Cap to reflect competitive market practice

If a director chooses to opt out of membership of the pension plan, then the supplement payment will be 30% of
total basic salary During the year, Mark Robson parttcipated in the Plan Matthew Ingle had a fully funded pension

posttion In 2006 and hence has chosen to opt out of membership of the Plan Mr Ingle consequently recelves a salary

supplement of 30% of basic salary in lieu of pension

The table below sets out the accrued pension for both executive directors

Accrued pension

Date pensionable at 29 Dac 2012 Pensionable service
Name service commenced £000 (complete years and months)
Matthew Ingle 12 April 1985 458 10 years 11 menths

Mark Robson 12 April 2005 219 7 years 8 months
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The table below shows the accrued pension should the director leave employment as at the financial penod end

Transfer
valua of real Increase /

Real Increase Other {decrease) Accrued Transfer
Transfer increase Increase In accrued changes In transfer pension value
value at in i pension fless to value less at at
24 Dec accrued accrued directors® transfer directors’ Directors’ 29 Dec 29 Doc
2011 pension Inflation pension contributions) value ..otributions  contributions 2012 2012
£009 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Matthew
Ingle 6B57 - 10 10 - (52 4) 52 4) - 458 6333

Mark

Robson 346 8 27 04 31 46 6 11 1) 355 - 219 3823

1 Matthew Ingle opted out of the pension plan on 5 Apnl 2006 and consequently receives a 30% salary supplement from this date Mark Robson
recaives a salary supplement of 30% on basic eamings over and above the eamings cap

2 Employese pensicn contrloutions are paid on a Salary Sacrifice basis and tharefora aggregate psnsion costs paid by the Company in respact of the
directors’ quahfying services werae £19,760 (2011 £30 060) The amount pald in respect of the highest paid director was £19,760 (2011 £30 060)

SHARE CPTIONS (AUDITED)
Details of share options of those directors who served duning the year are as follows

Lapsed / Exercise Earliest
At 24 Dec axpired At 29 Dec price date of Expiry
Director 201 Awarded unexercised Exercised 2012 {pence} exercise date
Matthew Ingle
2000 Share Option 26 May 26 May
Ptan (Section 3) 275,483 - - - 275,483 1065 2008 2015
2000 Share Option 16 Apnl 16 Apnl
Ptan {Section 2} 2,862,972 - ~  (715,743) 2,147,229 500 2012 2019
2000 Share Option 16 April 16 Apnl
Plan {Section 2) 2,862,972 - - (715,743) 2,147.228 250 2012 2019
25 March 25 March
Howden Jomnery LTIP 1,333,333 - - - 1,333,332 807 2013 2020
Mark Robson
2000 Share Option 26 May 26 May
Plan {Section 3) 191,388 - - - 191,388 106 5 2008 2015
2000 Share Option 16 Apnl 16 Apnl
Plan (Section 2) 1,915,743 - - - 1,915,743 500 2012 2019
2000 Share Option 16 April 16 Apnl
Plan (Section 2) 1,915,743 - - - 1,915,743 250 2012 2019
25 March 25 March
Howden Joinery LTIP 892,193 - - - 892,193 807 2013 2020

12,249,827 - (1,431,486) 10,818,311

1 The options outstanding are exercisable at prices between 25 pence and 106 5 pance Intha penod the highest middle market closing price was
176 3 pence per share and the lowest middle market closing price was 99 1 pence per share The riddle market price on 28 December 2012 (the
last businass day before the financia! year end) was 173 2 pance per share

2 Options granted under Sections 2 and 3 of the 2000 Share Cption Plan Portfolo and these granted under the Howden Jonary Group LTIP are
not normally exercisable unless challenging targets are met These options have been dwded into the following performance conditions.




+ For the options granted in 2005, 40% of the option became exercisable subject to growth In EPS, calculated on an (IMR basis, being equal to
RPI + 40% over three years, ncreasing on a straight-line basis up to 100% of an option becoming exercisable where EPS growth equals or exceeds
RPI + 100% aver three years Options lapsed on 26 May 2008 to the extent that these targets were not satisfied Targets are not restated

* For the options granted in 2009, options vested 1if the Group achieved a cumulative pre-exceptional PET of £90m over the three financial years ending
2009, 2010 and 2011

+ For the options granted in 2010, 15% of the options will vest if the Group achieves growth in pre-exceptional PBT equivalent to RPI over the
performance period, 100% will vest If pre-exceptional PBT growth equivalent to RPI + 8% 13 achieved

CONDITIONAL RIGHTS TO ORDINARY SHARES (AUDITED)

Detalls of the Company's ordinary shares over which those directors who served dunng the year have conditional
rights under the LTIP are as follows

End of the
period for
Scheme qualifying
interest at conditions to Lapsed / At
Director 24 Dac 2011 Awarded be tulfilled axpired Vested 29 Dec 2012
Matthew Ingle
Co-Investment Plan (2011 grant) 1,300,000 = 31 Dec 2013 - - 1,300,000
Co-investment Plan (2012 grant) - 1,300,000 31 Dec 2014 - - 1,300,000
Mark Robson
Co-Investrment Plan (2011 grant) 913,382 ~ 31 Dec 2013 - - 913,382 49
Co-Investrment Plan (2012 grant) - 911,874 31 Dec 2014 - - 911,874
2,213,382 2,211,874 - - 4,425,256

1 For both awards under the Group's Co-Investment Plan, each invested share will be matched by an award of up to two shares if PBT growth of 12%
13 achieved over the three year performance period, 25% of the maximum match will be earned If PBT growth of 6% 1§ achieved over the performance
penod The awards will vest on a siiding scale between these two points

2 From 2009 onwards, the directors have been required to defer any part of their annual bonus payment earned In excess of 100% of salary into
shares The shares are bought out of taxed income Half of these shares will be held in trust for one year and the remaming 50% will ba held In
trust for two years Mr Ingle has 107,862 shares held in Trust under this arrangament and Mr Robson 70,011 shares

DIRECTORS' AWARD OF FREESHARES - SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN (AUDITED)

The aggregate awards of free shares made to the executive directors under the Share Incentive Plan are as follows

Executive No of Shares

Matthew ingle 311

Michael Wemms
Remuneration Committee Chairman

27 February 2013
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INTRODUCTION AND STATEMENT
OF COMPLIANCE

The Company remains committed
to the pnnciples of corporate
governance contaned in the UK
Corporate Governance Code

{the “Code") for which the Board
1s accountable to shareholders
Throughout the 53 weeks ended
29 December 2012, the Company
has been in compliance with the
provisions set out in the Code
applicable to accounting periods
commencing before 1 October 2012

The Company has appled the
principles set out in the Code,
including both the man and
supporting principles, by complying
with the Code as reported above
Examples of how the principles and
supporting principles have been
applied are set out below and in the
Remuneration report and Committee
reports The Board received a formail
update in November 2012 on the
amendments made to the Code by
the FRC duning the year and continue
to apply the Code in the spirit In
which 1t was adopted

HOWDENS’ APPROACH TO
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As stated previously, as & locafly
empowered, entrepreneurial
business, Howden Joinery is reliant
on a strong, effective and consistent
governance culture throughout the
business The Board takes seriously
1ts responsibility for leading the
corporate governance agenda

and cascading throughout the
business the values and standards
which contribute so much to our

culture and therefore ultimately to
our success Importantly, it also
recognises that good governance
lies not merely with following codes
and popular trends but ensuring that
appropnate structural safeguards
are in place to mmimse risk and
ensure that the Company can
achieve its long-term ambitions

of stability and success

THE BOARD

Role

The Board has responsibility

for the overall management and
performance of the Howden
Joinery Group They are collectively
responstble for challenging and
assisting in the development of
strategy and ensuring that there are
sufficient resources in place to meet
the strategic objectives which have
been set

The directors are also responsible
for determining the nature and
extent of significant nsks and
maintaining sound risk management
and internal control procedures
throughout the Group

The Board reviews the performance
of and provides counsel to the
senior management in their day to
day running of the business, and

15 ullimately responsible for the
safeguarding of its shareholders’
Interests and ensurng its own
effectiveness

Decisions reserved for consideration
by the Board are detalled in

a schedule which is reviewed
annually These inciude decisions
about strategy, acquisition and

disposals, nsk management and
internal control, capital projects over
a defined level, annual budgets,
Group borrowing facilities and
consideration of significant financial
and operational matters The

Board also considers legislative,
environmental, health & safety,
governance and employment issues

Board compesition

The Board 1s structured to ensure
that there 1s a clear distinction
between the strategic functions

of the Board and the cperational
management of the Company The
Board currently comprises two
executive directors, the Chairman
and four non-executive directors

Detalls of the individual directors
can be found on page 31

Will Samuel was the nan-executive
Charrman dunng the whole period

Executive directors

There were no changes to the
executive directors during the
penod Matthew Ingle and Mark
Robson continued in their roles
as Chief Executive and Chief
Financial Officer Mr Ingle was
appomnted to the Board in 1998,
Mr Robson in 2005

Non-executive directors

The non-executive directors have
been selected for the diversity of
their backgrounds as well as therr
personal attributes and expenence
The current board members bring a
wide range of skills and experience
to the Board and all activety
contribute in discussion




The Board considered that the
following directors were deemed to
be independent dunng the perod

¢ Mark Allen
* Angus Cockburn
« Tiffany Hall

¢ Michael Wemms {Senior
Independent Director)

The Chairman, Will Samuel, was
considered to be independent on
appomtment as outhined in the Code

At all times during the period the
Company adhered to provision

B 1 2 of the Code which provides
that at least half of the Board
excluding the Chairman must be
independent and to the provisions of
the Code related to the composition
of the Audit, Remuneration and
Nominations Committees

The Board 1s proposing that all of
the directors will be subject to re-
election at the 2013 AGM However,
having served nearly seven years as
a non-executive director and Chair
of the Company's Audit Committee,
Angus Cockburm has informed the
Board that he intends to resign as

a non-executive director after the
AGM once a suitable candidate has
been recruited to replace him In
order to ensure a smooth transition of
responsibiities, Angus will continue
as a non-executive director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee
after the AGM and until such time as
a replacement has been appointed

Angus will therefore offer himself for
re-election at the AGM along with the
other directors

Division of responsibilities

The roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive are separate and

clearly defined The Chairman s
primarily responsible for leadership
of the Board and has a pwotal

role in creating the conditions

for individual director and board
effectiveness ncluding ensuring a
culture of openness and debate in
the boardroom The Charrman is
responsible for setting the Board's
agenda and works closely with the
Company Secretary in this regard
He ensures that adequate time for
discussion 1s afforded to all agenda
items at meetings It 1s also the
responsibihity of the Chairman to
ensure effective communication
with the shareholders The
executive directors, and in
particular the Chief Executive,

are responsible for satisfactory
execution of the policies and
strategy agreed by the Board

In accordance with the Code,
the Board has established Audit,
Remuneration and Nominations
Commuittess, each with defined
terms of reference The membership
and terms of reference of

these commitiees are reviewed
annually and are available on the
Group's website at http /fwww
howdenjcinerygroupplc com/
investors/governance/ The work
of each of these committees 1s
considered in detail below

The Board has also established a
Pensions Committee dealing with
matters associated with the Group's
pension scheme and a Disclosure
Committee which considers matters
which could give nse to an obhgation
to make a market anncuncement
under the FSA Listing Rules

In addition to these standing
commuttees, the Group has an
Executive Commuttee comprising
those members detailed on
page 119 The principal purpose
of the Committee, which meets
at least twice a month, or more
frequentiy if required, 1s the
implementation of the Group's
strategy and operational plans
The Committee monitors

the operational and financial
performance of the business, as
well as being responsible for the
optimisation of resources and
the identification and control of
operational risk within the Group

Attendance

The Board holds regular meetings
and receives accurate and timely
information During 2012, the Board
held seven formal Board meetings
and a number of other meetings
and teleconferences to discuss and
review progress on 1ssues affecting
the Group during the year
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Board Audit Remuneration Nominations

Actual Possible Actual Possible Actual Possible Actual Possible
Wil Samuel 7 7 - - - - 2 2
Matthew Ingle 7 7 - - - - - -
Mark Robson 7 7 - - - - - -
Mark Allen 7 7 3 3 3 3 2 2
Angus Cockburn 7 7 3 3 3 3 2 2
Tiffany Hall 7 7 3 3 3 3 2 2
Michael Wemms 7 7 3 3 3 3 2 2

Denotes Chairman

The table above shows the number
of mestings individual directors
could have attended {taking account
of ehigibility, appointment and
retirement dates during the year)
and ther actual attendance For the
Committees, only the attendance
of members of that committee 1s
shown, although other directers,
where appropriate, have often also
attended at the inwvitation of the
charrman of the committee

If a director 1s unable to attend a
meeting, they are nevertheless
provided with all the papers and
information relating to the meeting
and are able to discuss the 1ssues
ansing directly with the Chairman
and executive directors

The non-executive directors also
met twice during the year without
the executive directors present

Diversity

The Board recognises the
importance of ensuring that there 1s
diversity of perspective, background
and approach n its management

team and on its Board Since the
business was established in 1995
It has sought to enable individuals
to progress within the organisation
regardless of age, gender,
background or formal qualifications
We have appointed one femazle
director and one male director to
our Board since May 2010, which
means that currently 14% of Board
members are women

We believe that it 15 1n the

interests of the business and of

its shareholders for us to builda
stable, cohesive and representative
Board The Nominations Committee
wili continue to seek diversity of
mndset as well as of gender and
background when considernng new
appointments in the period to 2015
More widely, we are commutted to
developing a long-term pipeline of
executive talent that reflects the
diversity of Howdens' business and
of allits stakeholders Currently 33%
of the members of our Executive
Committee are female (2011 25%)

Board evaluation

A formal review of the Board's
effectiveness was conducted
following the September Board
meeting In accordance with

the Board's formal process for
reviewing its own effectiveness
During the year, the Board

agreed that, as in 2011 and in
accordance with provision B 6 2 of
the Code, the 2012 review would
be undertaken by the Company
Secretary and the 2013 review
would be externally facilitated The
2012 review was conducted within
a methodology previcusly agreed
by the Board and compnised a
series of interviews with all Board
members and a questionnaire
Interviews were also conducted
with a number of investors

The formal evaluation addressed
key topics which included

* the composition of the Board,

s the extent and quaity of
information provided to the
Board and Committees,




¢ the conduct of Board meetings
and processes,

the extent to which the Board
engages in strategic planning,

talent management and
continuity planning,

* the performance of the Chairman,
of Board committees and of
ndividual members,

* the quality of debate within the
Board, and

= the extent to which actions anising
from the 2011 evaluation exercise
had been implemented effectively

The report of the evaluation was
presented to the Board in February
2013 and the Board accepted its
findings and recommendations

The Senior Independent Director
met with the non-executive directors
in the absence of the Chairman to
assess the Charrman’s psrformance

There 1s a procedure for all directors
to take ndependent external

advice, at the Company's expense,
in the course of theirr duties via

the Company Secretary Working
with the Chairman, the Company
Secretary 1s responsible for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed
and all directors have access to her
advice and services

Directors’ indemnity & insurance
In accordance with the Articles

of Association, the Company

has provided indemnities to the
directors (to the extent permitted

by the Companies Act) In respect of
habilities incurred as a result of their
office In additicn the Company

maintains appropriate insurance
cover against legal action brought
against it or its subsidiaries,
directors and officers Neither the
indemnity nor insurance provides
cover In the event that the director
is proved to have acted dishonestly
or fraudulently

AUDIT COMMITTEE

A detalled review of the work of the
Audit Committee can be found in the
Audit Committee report on pages 58
to 62

To view the Audit Commuttee terms
of reference please refer to the
Company website at http /Awww
howdenjomnerygroupplc com/
Investors/governance/audit/

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A detalled review of the work of

the Remuneration Committee can
be found in the Remuneration
Committee report on pages 35 to 49

To view the Remuneration Committee
full terms of reference please refer

o the Company website at http //
www howdenjoinerygroupplc com/
investors/govemance/remuneration/

NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

To view the Nominations Committee
full terms of reference please refer
to the Company website at http /
www howdenjoinerygroupplc com/
Investors/governance/nomination/

GComposition

In accordance with the Committee's
terms of reference, the Nomnations
Commuttee consists of five
members the Charrman of the
Board, who (in accordance with

provision B 21 of the Code)
also chairs the Committee,
and the independent non-
executive directors

Only members of the Committee
have the right to attend Committee
meetings However, other
individuals such as the Chief
Executive and external advisers
may be invited to attend for all or
part of any meeting, as and when
appropnate Appointments to the
Committee shall be for a period of
up to three years, which may be
extended for two further three-
year periods, provided the director
remains independent

More information on the Board's

commutment to diversity in the

Howdens' Board and senior

management can be found on 53
page 52

Function

The Committee keeps under
review the size, composition

and structure of the Board and
makes recommendations to the
Board for all new appeintments
and reappointments In recent
years, the Board as a whole has
chosen to consider succession
planning rather than delegate it to
the Nominations Committee As
part of that work, a review of all

the Executive Commuttee roles is
currently being undertaken in order
to understand better where there
may be opportunities to improve
the organisation, as well as looking
more broadly at how we ensure that
all our senior managers have the
appropriate mix of skills and abilities
to lead the business forward
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During 2012, the Norminations
Committee met twice to consider

* the reappointment of directors
at the 2012 AGM,

* the renewal of non-executive
director contracts in relation to
Will Samuel, Angus Cockburn and
Michae! Wemms, and

* the performance of the Committee
and the appropriateness of the
Committee’s terms of reference

INDUCT{ON AND
ONGOING TRAINING

There were no new appointments
to the Board during the year and
therefore no directors undertook
the Group induction programme
Future appointments to the

Board will undertake an induction
programme tallored to the needs of
the mdividual However, the Group's
induction programme for newly
appointed directors will continue to
be centred on famihansation with the
Group's operations and will Include
meeting directors and executives
individually, visiting operational
locations, and discussions with the
Company's external advisers

The Chairman meets with individual
directors annually to discuss,
amongst other things, individual
training and development needs
Ongoing training and development
for the directors includes attendance
at formal conferences and internal
events as well as bnefings from
external advisers

Directors are also encouraged
to attend external seminars and
briefings as part of theswr

contmuous professional
development The non-executive
directors are also encouraged to
meet with Howdens' employees
at all levels in order to maintain a
broad purview of the business

RELATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers its
relationship with both mstitutional
and private investors to be important
and readily enters into dialogue

with investors The Company

has consulted extensively with

its principal shareholders in the
course of 2012 in relation to the
onhgoing progress of the Company
and also in relation to identifying
appropnate executive incentive
arrangements The Company s
aware of the stewardship obligations
of mstrtutional investors as set out In
the UK Stewardship Code and will
continue to work with its institutional
investors to ensure that they are able
to satisfy these regquirements

Both of the executive directors,

the Charrman and the Senior
Independent Director met with
shareholders during the year and all
of the directors make themselves
avallable for meetings with
shareholders as required

The Company's website (www
howdenjoinerygroupplc com)
incledes a specific investor
relations section and provides
an effective channel for
communication with existing and
potenttal investors The Board
receives regular reports from
the CFO with regard to relations
with the major shareholders and

developments and changes in
their shareholdings The Board
also commissions regular
feedback reports from the
Company’s joint brokers, UBS
and JP Morgan Cazenove

The Annual General Meeting (AGM)
provides shareholders with an
opportunity to discuss the Group's
progress and operations directly
with the Board At the AGM, the
Company proposes separate
resolutions on each substantially
separate 1ssue and the numbers

of proxy votes cast for and against
each resolution are made available
to shareholders when voting has
been completed The nctice of the
AGM i1s sent to shareholders at
least twenty working days before
the meeting

RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the
Group's system of internal control
and for reviewing its effectiveness,
whilst the role of management 1S

to implement Board policies on

nsk and control Such a system s,
however, designed to manage rather
than elimmnate the risks of failure

to achieve business objectives In
pursuing these objectives, intemal
controls can only provide reasonable
assurance against misstatement or
loss The UK Corporate Governance
Code recommends that the

Board at least annually reviews

the effectiveness of the Group’s
system of internal controls, including
financia), operational and ¢complance
controls and nsk management

The Board has conducted reviews
of the effectiveness of the system

of intemnal controls through the




processes described below

and s satisfied that 1t accords
both with the Code and with the
Turnbull Guidance In accordance
with [AA recommendations, a
comprehensive external review of
the effectiveness of the Internal
Audit funchon was undertaken by
PrcewaterhouseCoopers during
the year Subject to this review and
during the course of its own review
of the system of internal control, the
Board has not identified or been

advised of any fallings or weaknesses

which it has determined to be
significant, therefore a confirmation in
respect of necessary actions has not
been considered appropnate

A description of the Group's
principal risk and uncertainties can
be found on pages 21 to 24 of the
Review of Operations and Finance

Risk management

The Board can confirm that, for
the 2012 financial year and up to
the date of approval of the Annual
Report and financial statements,
there has been an ongoing process
for identifying, evaluating and
managing the significant nsks faced
by the Group which Is reviewed
regularly by the Board and accords
with the Turnbull Guidance Under
the guidance of the Chief Financial
Officer, it 1s the responsibility

of the Executive Commuttee to
review the effectiveness of the

risk management process and
internal controls on behalf of the
Board The Executive Committee
regularly reports to the Board on
how risks are being managed In
addition, there 1s a mechanism in
place to report significant control
breakdowns or sk occurrences

to the Executive Committee

An ongoing process for the
effective management of risk has
been defined by the Board and 1s
embedded throughout the various
tiers of the organisation Itis
operated in the following stages

* Each operating division and
central function identifies key
risks through the adoption of
both a “bottom-up” and “top-
down” process These key nisks
are regularly reviewed by the
senicr management team in
each division The key risks to
each business area's objectives
are identified and scored for
probabilty and impact The key
controls to manage the risks to the
desired level are identified

A local database of nsks and
controls 1s maintained within

each operating division and
central service functton This s
consolidated into a central register
which becomes the key risk
register for the Group The Group
Risk department facilitates the
identification of these rnsks and
provides an independent appraisal
of the interpretation of the scorng
mechanism, to ensure that the

key risks are brought forward

to the Executive Committee

The Executive Committee then
reviews the key risks to assess
the effectiveness of the risk
management strategies

The sentor management team
within each division and within the
central functions are responsible
for the ongeing review of

their functions’ nisk registers
Regular reporting on internal and
external changes that affect

the rnisks or their mportance
to the business, and any risk
occurrences, are reported
upwards through their register
to the Executive Committee

Key risks and their
management and any areas
for mprovement are regularly
reported to and discussed at
the Executve Committes

A review of the nsk process
and nsk management systems
1s undertaken by the Audit
Committee annually

Key nsks aristng within the
business are formally discussed
by the Group Board every six
months given that overall nsk 1s a
matter reserved for the Board as
awhole

In order to gain assurance

that the Group’s nisk process

15 effective a perntodic review of
both the Audit and Risk Process
15 conducted by an appropnately
qualified and expenenced external
assurance service provider This
1s conducted every five years and
was undertaken dunng 2012 The
Audrt Committee were satisfied
with the conclusions of the review

Internal control

The Group has an established
framework of internal controls, which
includes the following key eiements

* The Board reviews Group

strategy and the executive
management are accountable
for their performance within
the agreed strategy
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The Group and its subsidiaries
operate control procedures
designed to ensure complete and
accurate accounting of financial
transactions, and to hmit exposure
to loss of assets or fraud
Measures taken include physical
controls, segregation of duties In
key areas and periodic Internal
Audit reviews

The Audit Committee meets
regularly and its responsibilities

are set out in the Audit Committee
Report It receives reports from

the Internal Audit function on the
results of work camed out under an
annually agreed audit programme
The Audrt Committee has full and
independent access to the internal
and external auditors

Internal Audit facilitates a process
whereby operating entities provide
certified statements of compliance
with specified and appropnate key
financial controls These controls
are then cyclically tested by the
Internal Audit Department to
ensure they remain effective, and
are being consistently applied

The Audit Committee will annually
assess the effectiveness of the
assurance provided by the internal
and external auditors Every five
years, an external assessment

will be undertaken with regard to
the assurance provided by the
Internal Audit department An
external review was undertaken by
PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2012

GOING CONCERN

The Group’s business activittes,
together with the factors likely

to affect its future development,
performance and position are set
out in the Chairman’s statement on
pages 8 to 9, the Chief Executive's
statement on pages 10 to 16 and the
Review of Operations and Finance
on pages 17 to 24 The Review of
Operations and Finance describes
the financial posthion of the Group,
its cash flows, hquidity position,
borrowing facilities, and the Group's
objectives, policies and processes
for managing its commercial and
financial nsks The Group's financial
risk management objectives and

1fs exposures to credit nsk and
hqwidity nsk in relation to financial
instruments are described in note 29
to the financial statements

The Group meets its day to day
working captal requirements through
cash generated frorn operations, and,
when required, by utiising an asset-
backed lending facility of £160m The
faciity has been extended during
2012 and now runs to July 2016,
having previously run to May 2014
The current economic conditions
create uncertainty, particularly

over (a) the level of demand for

the Group's products and, (b) the
exchange rate between Sterling and
both the Euro and the US Dollar
which would affect the cost of the
Group's operations

The Group's forecasts and
projections have been stress-tested
for reasonably possible adverse
variations in trading performance
The results of this testing show that

the Group should be able to operate
within the level of its current facility
and covenants

After making due enquiries the
directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company

and the Group have adequate
resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future
Accordingly, they continue to adopt
the going concern basis in preparnng
the Annual Report and Accounts

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS'
RESPONSIBILITIES

The directors are responsible
for preparing the Annual Report,
Drirectors' Remuneration Report
and the Financial Statements in
accordance with apphcable law
and regulations

Company law requires the directors
to prepare financial statements

for each financial year Under that
law the directors are required to
prepare Group financial statements
in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union and Article 4 of the 1AS
Regulation and have chosen to
prepare the parent company financial
statements in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (Umted
Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable law) Under company law
the directors must not approve the
accounts unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company
and of the profit or loss of the
Company for that period




In preparing the parent company
financial statements, the directors
are required to

select suitable accounting policies
and then apply them consistently,

make judgements and
accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent,

state whether apphcable UK
Accounting Standards have
been followed subject to any
material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial
statements, and

prepare the financial statements
on the going concern basis
unless It Is Inappropriate to
presume that the Company will
continue in business

In prepanng the Group financial
statements, International Accounting
Standard 1 requires that directors

* properly select and apply
accounting policies,

* present information, including
accounting policies, in a manner
that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable
information,

* provide additional disclosures
when compliance with the
specific requirements in IFRSs
1s insufficient to enable users
to understand the iImpact of
particular transactions, other
avents and conditions on the
entity’s financial position and
financial performance, and

* make an assessment of the
Company's abllity to continue
as a going concern

The directors are responsible for
keeping adeguate accounting
records that are sufficient to

show and explamn the Company's
transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company
and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They are also
responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregulanties

The directors are responsible for
the maintenance and integnity

of the corporate and financial
information included on the
Company's website Legtslation in
the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY
STATEMENT

We confirm to the best of our
knowledge

+ the financial statements,
prepared in accordance with
the relevant financial reporting
framework, give a true and fair
view of the assets, habilities,
financial position and profit or
loss of the Company and the
undertakings including the
consolidation taken as a
whole, and

* the review of operations
and finance along with
other documents which are
incorporated into the Directors’
Report, together include a fairr
review of the development and
performance of the business and
the position of the Company and
the undertakings including the
consolidation taken as a whole,
together with a descniption of the
pnincipal risks and uncertainties
they face

By order of the Board

Matthew Ingle
Chief Executive

Mark Robson
Chief Financial Officer

27 February 2013
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Report of the Audit Committee

To view tha Audit Committee terms
of reference please refer to the
Company website at http /www
howden|oinerygroupplc com/
investors/governance/audit/

The Board 1s dependent on the Audit
Committee to review the Group's
internal financial controls, to assess
the work and independence of the
external auditor, the effectiveness

of the interpal audit function and

risk management processes, and

to ensure integnty of the financial
reporting As such it s crucial that
the Committee conducts itself in

an informed and efficient way This
Report of the Audit Committee
provides an overview of the make-up
of the Committee and the matters it
considered during the year

ROLE OF THE CHAIRMAN
OF THE COMMITTEE

As Chairman of the Audit Committee
| have ultimate responsibility for
approving the Committee’s agenda,
ensuring that key audrt 1ssues are
reported to the Board in an effective
and timely manner and maintaining
key relationships with the Group's
senior management, Head of Risk
and Internal Audit, the Company
Secretary and senior representatives
of the external auditors

| have been a member of the Audit
Committee since my appontment
as a non-executive director in
October 2006 and have chaired the
Committee since March 2007 lam a
qualfied chartered accountant and
Chief Financial Officer at Aggreko
plc and as such the Board considers
that | have the requisite recent and
relevant financial experience to
satisfy Provision C 31 of the UK

Corporate Governance Code The
Board also considers that | have
the commercial, financial and audit
experience necessary to address
any complex accounting, audit and
risk 1ssues which may anse

COMPOSITION

In compliance with the Code and

the Committee's terms of reference,
during the year the Audit Committee
comprised wholly of independent
non-executive directors Angus
Cockburn, Michael Wemms, Tiffany
Hall, and Mark Allen The quorum for
business I1s two members Subject

to successful annual re-election

to the Board as provided by the

UK Corporate Governance Caode,
appointments to the Audit Committee
are for a perod of three years and
are extendable by two additional
three year periods An inductron
programme 1s provided for new Audrt
Committee members as part of the
wider induction to the Board

We review membership of the
Committee as part of the review
of Board effectiveness This year's
review concluded that the current
mix of financial and commercial
experence of the Audit Committee,
and that of its advisors, 1s such
that the Commuttee can effectwvely
exercise Its responsibilities to

the Group in relation to risk

and controls The Committee I1s
permitted by Its terms of reference
to obtain independent external
advice at the Group’s expense

The Audit Committee's terms

of reference include all matters
indicated by Disclosure and
Transparency Rule 71 and the Code
A new iteration of the Commuittee's

terms of reference was approved

at our meeting In November 2012
which had been updated in ine with
the FRC's revised version of the UK
Corporate Governance Code and its
Guidance on Audit Committees both
published in September 2012

MEETINGS

The Audit Committee met three
times during 2012 Our agenda 1s
predominately linked to events in the
Group's financial calendar but, as in
previous years, we sought to ensure
the agenda in 2012 was as fresh and
relevant as possible incorporating
elements of training and professional
development for the Committee as
well as reviewing specific areas of
the business where appropriate

The agenda I1s ultimately approved
by me as the Committee Chairman
but each Committee member retains
right to require reports on matters

of interest in addition to the annually
recurring items

The Charrman of the Board along
with the Chief Executive, Finance
Director, the Head of Risk and
Internal Audi, representatives from
the Finance function and senior
representatives of the external
auditors are regularly invited to
attend all or part of meeting as
and when appropnate The Audit
Commuttee reserves the nght

to request any non-members to
withdraw from any meeting

SUMMARY OF THE ROLE OF
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee i1s responsible
for ensuring that the Group's
financial systems provide accurate
and up-to-date information, that




the Group’s published financial
statements represent a true and
fair reflection of this position and
for ensuring the effectiveness and
rigorousness of the internal control
framework on behalf of the Board

Specifically, the Audit Committee 1s
responsible for

* monitoring the integnty of the
financial statements of the Group
and any formal announcements
relating to the Group's financial
performance and reviewing
significant financial reporting
judgements contained theren,

* reviewing the Group’s internal
financiat controls and the Group’s
internal control systems,

reviewing the Group's nsk
management processes and
systems (although the Board as
a whole remains responsible for
overseeing the overall nsk profile
of the business),

ansunng that information flows
from the senior management and
external auditors are such that
the informatton the Committee
recelves 1S complete, accurate,
timetly and robust,

monitoring and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group's
internal audit function,

making recommendations to

the Board in relation to the
appointment of the external auditor
and approving the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the
external auditor,

* raviewing and monitoring the
external auditor's independence
and objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process,
taking into consideration relevant
UK professional and regulatory
requirements, and

developing and implementing a
policy on the engagement of the
external auditor to supply non-
audit services, taking into account
relevant ethical guidance regarding
the provision of non-audit services
by the external audit firm

We are also responsible for reporting

to the Board, identifying any

matters in respect of which action

or improvement 1s needed, making
recommendations as to the steps

to be taken and monitoring the

effectiveness of any resulting activity 59

OVERVIEW OF THE ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE TO DISCHARGE ITS DUTIES
Curing the year, the Committee discharged its responsibilities through the following activities

Financial Reporting
and External Audst

* raviewing the Group's 2011 annual report and financial statements, the half yearly financial
report published in July 2012 and the intenm management statements As part of this review

we received a report from the external auditor on their audit of the annual report and financial
statements and review of the half yearly financial report which tock into account the Group’s key
risks and going concern considerations,

» considering the processes In place to generate forecasts of cash flow and accounting valuation
informatlon, including the choice and consistent use of key assumptions A description of the
Group's significant accounting policies can be found in note 2 of the consolidated financial
statements on page 68,

* reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s internal financial controls {with specific reference to
controls in place on a divisional basis) and reviewing the disclosures made in the annual report
and financial statements on this matter,

* receving reports from the external auditors on the conduct of therr audit, their review of accounting
policies, areas of jJudgement and their comments on the effectiveness of Internal controls,

* reviewing the proposed plan of work presented by the extemal auditors, including terms of
engagement and fees,




Report of the Audit Committee continued

Financial Reporting = undertaking an assessment of the qualfication, expertise and resources, and independence of

and External Audit the external auditor and the effectiveness of the audit process This Included consideration of a

continued report on the audit firm’s own quality contro! procedures and the audit flrm’s annual transparency
report This report included the results of the AQRT's {formerly AlU) annual inspections in respect
of the auditor’s overall performance in the market over a period of four years,

* assessing the risk of a possible withdrawal of the external auditors from the market, and

* holding confidential sessions with the independent auditors and the head of internal audit in the
absence of executive directors and Company executives

Internal Audit and * reviewing the processes used by the Group for identifying, evaluating and mitigating risks,
Control
= gvaluating the performance of the Intemal Audit function, which this year included an independent

report of the function by PricewaterhouseCoopers, and agreeing a programme of work,

* receiving reports from the Internal Audit function on its work and monitoring the status of
actions taken in response to its findings,

» recelving reports from our divisional Finance Directors in respect of the control environment
withun therr divisions, and

» reviewing activity reported under the Group’s whistleblowing policy

Governance * reviewing our own effactiveness as an Audit Committee as part of the Board's evaluation process,
« raviewing the Group's pollcy on the employment of ex-audit firm personnel,
* reviewing the Group's polley for the allocation of non-audit work,

* considering the revised Guidance on Audit Committees and relevant provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code as Issued by the Financial Reporting Council, and

* reviewing the Committee's terms of reference and recommending that a version updated in line
with the FRC's amended version of the UK Corporate Governance Code and Gurdance on Audit
Committees be approved by the Board

We invite semior management from the business to come and talk about the financial controls in therr business areas
Duning 2012, the Finance Directors of the two divisions made presentations on the control environments In their areas

As In previous years, experts from Deloitte were invited to update the Commuttee on recent developments in the areas
of governance, accounting and reporting All members of the Committee are members of the Deloitte Academy which
provides in depth updates on financial and reporting matters

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

As a Committee we are responsible for the development, implementation and momitoring of the Group's policy on
external audit in line with relevant ethical standards and guidance The current policy sets out the categories of non-
audit services which the external auditors will and will not be allowed to provide to the Group, subject to de mmimis
levels All relevant fees proposed by the external auditors must be reporied to and approved by the Audit Committee
No services were provided by the external audrtor pursuant to contingent fee arrangements




Duning the year, the external
auditors continued to provide tax
advice relating to the Group's
obligations in respect of former
MFI properties and its overseas
subsidiaries We reviewed the
ongoing nature and cost of

this work during the year The
Committee approved the continued
involvement of Deloitte LLP in this
regard as it was concluded they
were best placed to supply such
tax services in a cost effective
manner due to the expenence and
qualifications of the individuals
providing such services, their
knowledge of the Group and its
tax affarrs and the best interests
of the Group were served by
engaging them

Details of Deloitte LLP's fees for
audit and non-audit work during
2012 are included in note 7 to the
financial statements on page 78

The Board recogrises that the

fees relating to non-audit services
are in excess of the total audit

fee Thisisin part due to the audit
related assurance review of the
Intenim accounts {c 25% of the total
non-audit fee) but in the main due
to fees charged in respect of the
aforementioned tax advice (c 50%
of the total non-audit fee) Given the
specific nature of the fees incurred,
and having reviewed the safeguards
Deloitte LLP has in place to protect
their independence as auditors,

we are satisfied this work has not
Impaired therr ndependence

The Audit Committee also has a
policy in relation to the employment
of former members of the external
audrit teamn, which was reviewed
dunng the year This policy states
that, whitst the Group would not
normally employ a former member
of the external audit team, if
appropriate, iIndividual cases

may be considered by the
Charrman of the Committee

and Chief Financial Officer

We recogruse that auditor
independence I1s an essential part
of the audit framework and the
assurance it provides To fulfil

our responsibilities regarding the
independence of the external
auditors, we undertook a
comprehensive review dunng 2012
encompassing the following

* review of the Independence of
the external audiors and the
arrangements which Deloitte LLP
have in place to identify, report
and manage conflicts of interest,

¢ raview of the changes in key
external audit staff for the current
year and the arrangements for the
day to day management of the
audtt relationship In accordance
with the ethical standards, having
held office for five years the lead
statutory audit partner changed in
March 2012 at the end of the 2011
year end audit,

consideration of the effectiveness
of the external auditors through

a review of ther plan of work and
the outputs ansing from the audit,

& consideration of the overall extent
of non-audit services provided by
the external auditors, in addition
to case by case approval of the
provision of non-audit services as
appropriate, and

consideraton of the likelihood of

a withdrawal of the auditor from
the market and note taken of the
fact that there are no contractual
obligations to restnct the choice of
external auditors

To assess the effectiveness of the
external auditor, we reviewed

¢ the arrangements for ensuring the
external auditor's independence
and objectvity,

the external auditor's fulfilrnent
of the agreed audit plan and any
variations from the plan,

the robustness and perceptiveness
of the auditor in their handiing

of the key accounting and audit
judgements, and

the content of the external
auditor’s report on internal centrol

The external audit was last tendered
in 2002 Ths resulted in a change
to the Group's external auditor,
with Deloitte LLP replacing the
previous Incumbent audit firm

As reported above, the Audit
Committee has noted the changes
to the UK Corporate Governance
Code, introduced by the FRC in
September 2012, and in particular
the requirement contained in the
Guidance on Audit Committees to
put the external audn contract out
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Audit Committee report continued

to tender at least every ten years
Although the updated version of the
Code 1s applicable to accounting
penods beginning on or after

1 October 2012, the FRC has

set out transittonal arrangements
which propose that tendering should
normally fit the five year cycle of lead
audit partner rotation Whilst being
mindfu! of the revised guidance

of the FRC, but also taking into
account the rotation of the lead
audit partner and as a result of our
work above, we concluded that

the independence criterta under
the relative standards continued to
be met and accordingly it was not
necessary to tender for the audit
work at this time The Committee
has therefore unanimously
recommended to the Board that a
proposal be put to the shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting

that Deloitte | LP be reappointed

as external auditors and that the
directors be authonsed to fix their
remuneration At the year end the
independent auditors formally
confirmed therr independence and
objectivity had been maintained

INTERNAL AUDIT

We are also required to assist the
Board to fulfil its responsibilities
relating to the adequacy of the
resourcing and plans of the Internal
Audit department Dunng the year,
we reviewed

Internal Audit's programme of
work and progress made against
planned activity,

results of key audits and other
significant findings includ:ng
the adequacy and timeliness of
management'’s response,

the level and nature of non-audit
activity performed by Internal
Audit, and

staffing, reporting and
effectiveness of divisional audits

As previously stated, an
independent review of the Internal
Audit function was undertaken

by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
presented their findings to the
Audit Committee durtng the year
Their report concluded that Internal
Audit was an effective and well-led
function with a well-defined remit

An external review of this functionis

conducted every five vears

The Group's whistleblowing policy
contains arrangements for the
Head of Internal Audit to receive,

in confidence, complaints on
accounting, nsk issues, internal
controls, auditing issues and related
matters for reporting to the Audit
Committee as approprate |Issues
raised and investigated under

this policy were formally reviewsd
during the year The Committee
reviewed and approved the Group's

whistleblowing policy during the year

OVERVIEW

As aresult of its work during
the year, the Audit Committee
has concluded that it has acted
In accordance with its terms of
reference and has ensured the
independence and objectivity of
the external auditors

| will be available at the Annual
General Meeting to answer any
guestions about the work of the
Audit Committee

Angus Cockburn
Charrman of the Audit Committee

27 February 2013




Consolidated income statement

53 weeks to 52 waeks to
29 Decamber 2012 24 Decembaer 2011
Notes £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue - sale of goods 4 8871 8538
Cost of sales {341 8) {344 5)
Gross profit 5453 5083
Selling & distnbution costs (359 1) (333 2}
Administrative expenses {66 4) {60 6}
Other operating expenses - 02
Operating profit 7 198 153
Finance income 9 02 -
Finance expense 10 86 {12)
Other finance expense — pensions 10 {73) 31)
Prohit before tax 1121 1110
Tax on profit 11 (24 1) (29 2)
Profit after tax 880 818
Discontinued operations- '
Loss on discontinued operations (4 4) ©3)
Tax on loss 06 08
Loss after tax on discontinued operations 5] (3 8) {8 5)
Profit for the period attributable to the equity holders of the parent 842 733
Earnings per share
From continuing operations
Basic earnings per 10p share 12 14 0p 13 5p
Diluted earnings per 10p share 12 139p 131p
From continuing and discontinued operations
Basic earnings per 10p share 12 13 4p 121p
Diluted earnings per 10p share 12 133p 11 8p




Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

53 weeks to 52 woeks to

29 Decomber 2012 24 December 2011

£m £m

Profit for the period 842 733

Itams of other comprehensive income

Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension scheme 52 0) (31 4)

Deferred tax on actuanal losses on defined benefit pension scheme 130 85

Effect of change In UK tax rate on deferred tax on cumulative actuarial loss {7 5) & 5)

Current tax on share schemes 20 -

Deferred tax on share schemes 19 03
Effect of change in UK tax rate on deferred tax on cumulative balance

on share schemes ©4 -

Currency translation differences {0 3) 0 3}

Other comprehensive Income for the penod 43 3) (294)

Total comprehensive income for the penod attributable
to equrty holders of the parent 409 439




Consolidated balance sheet

29 December 2012 24 December 2011

Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
Goodwill 14 - 25
Other intangible assets 15 40 47
Property, plant and equipment 16 893 817
Deferred tax asset 17 481 434
Bank borrowings net of prepaid fees 21 10 -
140 4 1323
Current assets
Inventones 18 158 1185
Trade and other receivables 19 960 953
Cash at bank and 1n hand 19 967 594
3086 2132
Total assets 4490 4055
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 20 (1371) {1391)
Current tax liability (169) (16 9)
Current borrowings 21 02 1)
{155 2) (ns71)
Non-current liabilities
Non-current borrowings 21 o1 12
Pension liability 22 {154 5) (136 9)
Deferred tax liability 17 43) 4 8)
Provisions 23 221) (35 3)
(181 0) (178 2)
Total habilities (336 2) (335 3)
Net assets 1128 702
Equity
Called up share capltal 24 642 634
Share premlum account 872 851
ESOP reserve (190 (22 8)
Other reserves 281 281
Retained loss w77 (83 6)
Total equity 1128 702

The financial statements were approved by the Board on 27 February 2013 and were stgned on its behalf by

Mark Robson
Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Called Share
up share premium ESOP Other Retained
capital account reserve rgserve loss Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 25 December 2010 634 851 (26 0) 281 {127 5) 231
Accumulated profit for the perrod - - - - 733 733
Net actuarial foss on defined benefit scheme - - - - 229 {22 9)
Effect of change in UK tax rate on deferred
tax on cumulative actuarnal loss - - - - B5) (6 5)
Currency translation differences - - - - 03 03
Net movement in ESOP - - 32 - - 3z
Deferred tax on share schemes - - - - 03 03
At 24 December 2011 634 851 (22 B) 281 {83 6) 702
Accumulated profit for the penod - - - - 842 842
Net actuanal loss on defined benefit scheme - - - - (390 (38 0)
Effect of change in UK tax rate on deferred
tax on cumulative actuanal loss - - - - (7 5) (7 5)
Current tax on share schemes - - - - 20 20
Deferred tax on share schemes - - - - 19 19
Effect of change in UK tax rate on deferred
tax on cumulative balance on share schemes - - - - {04 04
Currency translation differences - - {0 3) 03)
Net movement in ESCP - - 38 - - 38
Issue of new shares 08 21 ~ - - 28
Diwvidends declared and paid - - - - 50 (50)
At 29 December 2012 64 2 872 (19 0} 281 477 1128

The ESOP reserve includes shares in Howden Joinery Group Plc with a market value on the balance sheet

date of £37 8m (2011 £25 3m), which have been purchased in the open market and which are held by the Group's
Employee Share Trusts in order to satisfy share options and awards made under the Group's various share-based

payment schemes

The Other reserve was created in the period to 30 April 1994, following a Group reconstruction




Consolidated cash flow statement

53 weeks to 52 weeks to
29 Decernber 2012 24 December 2011
Notes £m £m
Group operating profit before tax and interest
Continuing operations 1198 114 3
Discontinued operations 6 44 83)
Group operating profit before tax and interest 154 106 0
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation ingluded in operating profit 169 176
Share-based payments charge 27 27
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets - 02
Discontinued exceptional items (before tax) 33 83
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 138 3 134 8
Movements in working capital and exceptional items
Decrease/increase) In stock 26 (13 0)
Increase in trade and other receivables 07) 03)
Decrease in trade and cther payables and provisions (16 2) {25 5)
Difference between pensions operating charge and cash paid t:30rg] (33 3)
Net cash flow — discontinued exceptional items 05) -
{56 5) (721}
Cash generated from operations B18 627
Tax paid (16 9) (22 5}
Net cash flow from operating activities 25 649 402
Cash flows used in investing activities
Payments to acquire property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (24 2) {19 8)
Interest recelved 02 -
Receipts from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 03 -
Redemption of iInvestment - 20
Net cash used In investing activities 237) {17 6)
Cash flows used in financing activities
Interest paid ©8) 10)
Recelpts from issue of share capital 29 -
Receipts from release of shares from share trust 11 05
Decrease In loans 22 11)
Repayment of capital element of obligations under finance leases 1) 04)
Decrease 1n other assets - 02
Dividends paid to Group shareholders (50) -
Net cash used in financing activities (3 9) {18)
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents 373 208
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of penod 594 386
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 25 967 594

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents are included net of any overdrafts payable on
demand These overdrafts are excluded from the definition of cash at bank and 1n hand disclosed on the balance sheet
There were no such overdrafts at the current or prior period end

Cash flows from discontinued operating activities are shown in note 25 There are no cash flows from discontinued
investing or financing activities
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Howden Joinery Group Plc s a
company incorporated in the United
Kingdom under the Companies Act
2006 The address of the registered
cffice 1s given on page 119 The
nature of the Group's operations and
principal activities are set out in the
Directors’ Report on pages 32 to 34

These financial statements are
presented in UK pounds sterling,
being the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the
Group operates

Foreign operations are included In
accordance with the policies set
out in note 2

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Basis of presentation

The Group's accounting

period covers the 53 weeks to

29 December 2012 The comparative
period covered the 52 weeks to

24 December 2011

Statement of compliance and
basis of accounting

The Group's financial statements
have been prepared n accordance
with the IFRSs adopted for use in the
European Union and International
Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (“IFRIC™) interpretations
and with those parts of the
Companies Act 2006 applicable to
companies reporting under IFRS
They therefore comply with Article 4
of the EU |IAS Regulation

The financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost
basis, and on the going concern
basis, as descnbed in the going
concern statement in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 50 to
57 The principal accounting policies
are set out below

At the date of authonisation of
these financial statements, the
following standards, amendments
to standards, and interpretations,

which have not been applied in these
financial statements, were In 1ssue
but not yet effective for the Group

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 10 Consolidated Statements
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in
other entities

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

1AS 1 (June 2011) Presentation of
items of other comprehensive income

IAS 12 Deferred tax — Recovery
of Underlying Assets

IAS 19 Employee Benefits

IAS 28 (revised May 2011)
Investments in associates
and joint ventures

IAS 27 {revised May 2011)
Separate financial statements

IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

Once the revisions to 1AS 19
become effective, they will have the
result that the expected return on
pension scherme assets will have

to be calculated with reference to
the discount rate rather than (as

at present) the expected return on
assets This s expected to resultin a
reduction of the expected retum on
assets and therefore an increase in
the net pensions finance charge The
materiality of this effect will depend
upon the difference between the
discount rate and the expected
return on assets at the time when
the revised IAS 19 becomes
applicable The discount rates and
return on assets assumptions used
in the current and prior periods are
shown n note 22

The directors anticipate that the
adoption of the other standards
and interpretations mentioned
above will have no matenal impact

on the Group’s financial statements
when the refevant standards come
into effect

Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over
which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating
policies so as tc obtain benefits
from ther activities Subsidianes
are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred
untll the date that control ceases
Control 1s achieved where the
Group has the power to govern the
financtal and operating pohicies of
an investee entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities

Intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between Group companies are
eliminated on consofidation

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the

fair value of the consideration
recewved or receivable and
represents amounts recevable
for goods and services, based

on despatch of goods or services
provided to customers outside
the Group, excluding sales taxes
and discounts Interest iIncome s
recognised in the income statement
as It accrues, using the effective
interest method Dividend income
from investments s recogrised
when the nght to recewve payment
has been established

Inventones

Inventones are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value
Cost includes an attributable
proportion of manufacturing
overheads based on budgeted
levels of activity Cost s calculated
using a standard cost which 1s
regularly updated to reflect average
actual costs Provision 1s made for
obsolete, slow-moving, or defective
items where approprate




Property, plant and equipment
On adopting IFRS, the Group
adopted the transitional provisions
of IFRS 1 to use previous
revaluations of freehold properties
as the new deemed cost at the date
of transition to IFRSs

All property, plant and equipment

1s stated at cost {or deemed cost,
as applicable) less accumulated
depreciation, and less any provision
for imparment

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment, excluding freehold land,
1s provided to write off the difference
between the cost and their residual
value over therr estmated liveson a
straight-line basis The current range
of useful hves Is as follows

Freehold property 50 yrs

The peried
Long leasehold property| of the lease

The pencd
Short leasehold property | of the lease
Fixtures & fittings 2-10 years
Plant & machinery 3-10 years

Residual values, remaining useful
economic lives and depreciation
periods and methods are reviewed
annually and adjusted if appropriate

Capital work in progress is
not depreciated

Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount These are
included In the iIncome staterment

Intangible assats — software
Where computer software 15 not

an integral part of a related item of
computer hardware, the software

15 classified as anintangible asset
The capitalised costs of software for
internal use include external direct
costs of matenals and services
consumed 2 developing or obtaining
the software and payroll and payroli-
related costs for employees who are
directly associated with and who
devote substantial time to the project
Capitalisation of these costs ceases

no later than the point at which the
software 1s substantially complete
and ready for its intended internal
use These costs are amortised cver
therr expected useful lives, which
are reviewed annually The expected
useful ife 1s four years

Impairment of assets

The carrying amount of the
Group’s assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine
whether there 1s any indication of
impairment If such an indication
exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount I1s estimated

For goodwill assets that have

an indefinite life and intangible
assets not yet avaiable for use, the
recoverable amounts are estimated
at each balance sheet date

Apart irom in the case of trade and
other receivables, an impairment
loss 15 recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount
Impairment losses are recognised
in the Income statement

For trade and other recevables
which are considered to be
impared, the carrying amount

18 reduced through the use of

an allowance for estimated
Irrecoverable amounts Changes
in the carrying value of this
allowance are recognised in

the Income statement

Current tax

The tax expense represents the
sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax

The tax currently payable 1s based
on taxable profit for the financial
penod Taxable profit differs from
net profit as reported In the income
statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other
financial years and i further
excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible The Group's
hability for current tax 1s calcutlated
using tax rates that have been

enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date

Additronal income taxes that anse
from the distnbution of dividends are
recognised at the same time as the
liability to pay the related dividend

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s provided in full using
the balance sheet hability method

It 1s the tax expected to be payable
or recoverable on the temporary
difference between the carrying
amounts of assets and habihties for
finaneizl reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes
The following temporary differences
are not provided for goodwill not
deductible for tax purposes, the
inhal recognition of assets and
liabwhities other than in a business
combination that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit, and
differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries, to the extent that they
will not reverse In the foreseeable
future The amount of deferred tax
provided I1s based on the expected
rmanner of realisation or settlerment
of the carrying amount of assets and
liabihties, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date

A deferred tax asset 1s recognised
only to the extent that it 1s probable
that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset
can be utilised The carrying
amounts of deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the
extent that 15 no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the
asset to be racovered

Deferred tax s charged or credited
to the iIncome statement except
when it relates to items charged

or credited directly to equity, in
which case the deferred tax Is

also recognised 1in equity
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Foreign currancies

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currency are
translated at the foreign exchange
rate ruling at the date of the
transaction Monetary assets and
habiities denominated in foreign
currencies at the balance sheet date
are translated at the exchange rate
ruling at the date Foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in
the incorme statement

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign
operations, including geodwill and
fair vatue adjustments arising on
consolidation, where applicable,

are translated into sterling at foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date The results and cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries and
the results of joint ventures are
translated into sterling on an average
exchange rate basis, weighted by
the actual results of each month

Exchange differences arising from
the translation of the results and net
assets of overseas subsidianes are
taken to equity via the statement of
comprehensive Income

Provisions

Provisions are recogrnised when
the Group has a present obligation
as a result of a past event, it1s
probable that the Group will be
required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount required to
settle the obligation Provisions
are measured at the directors’
best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obhigation at
the balance sheet date, taking into
account the rnisks and uncertainties
surrounding the obhgation, and are
discounted to present value where
the effect 1s material

Pensions

Payments to defined contnbution
retirement benefit scheme are
charged to the income statement
as they fall due

The Group operates a defined
benefit pension scheme The

Group’s net obligation in respect
of the defined benefit pension
scheme is calculated by estimating
the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return
for therr service in the current

and prior penods That benefitis
then discounted to determine its
present value, and the fair value of
any scheme assets s deducted
The discount rate used 1s selected
50 as to closely approximate the
yield at the balance sheet date on
AA rated bonds that have matunty
dates approximating to the terms of
the Group’s obligations Because
there are no AA rated bonds with
maturity dates which are as long
as those of the Group's retirement
benefit obligations, the discount rate
15 derived using the rate of return
of zero-coupon Gilts which have
the same matunty as the Group's
obligations, to which 1s added a
premium which i1s calculated to
account for the difference n nisk
between Gilts and AA rated bonds
The calculabion 1s performed by a
qualified actuary using the projected
unit method Scheme assets are
valuad at bid price

Current and past service costs are
recognised in operating profit and
net financing costs include interest
on penston scheme habiities and
expected return on assets

All actuanal gains and losses as

at 26 December 2004, the date of
transition to IFRSs, were recognised
Actuarial gains and losses that
arise subsequent to 25 December
2004 in calculating the Group’s
obligation in respect of a scheme are
recogrised immediately in reserves
and reported 1n the statement of
comprehensive Income

Goodwill

Goodwill ansing on consolidation
represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group's interest
in the fair value of the identifiable
assets and labilittes of a subsidiary
at the date of acquisition Goodwill
1s Initially recognised as an asset at
cost and 1s subsequently measured

at cost less any accumulated
impairment fosses Goodwill which
1S recognised as an asset Is reviewed
for impairment at least annually

Any impairment 1s recognised
immediately in profit or loss and

15 not subsequently reversed

For the purposes of iImpairment
testing, goodwill Is allocated

to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units which 1s expected
to benefit from the synergies of

the combination Cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been
allocated are tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit
may be imparred If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit
15 less than the carrying amount

of the unit, the iImpairment loss 1s
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets
of the unit pro-rata on the basis

of the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit An.impairment
loss recognised for goodwill 1S not
reversed In a subsequent period

On disposal of a subsidiary, the
attnibutable amount of goodwill 1s
included in the determination of the
profit or loss on disposal

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries 15
accounted for using the purchase
method The cost of the acquisition
1s measured at the aggregate of far
values, at the date of exchange, of
assets given, llabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity Instruments
1ssued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquired company
The acquired company's identifiable
assets, labilihes and contingent
tlabilthes that mest the conditions for
recognition under IFRS 3 (2008) are
recoghised at therr far values at the
acquisition date

Goodwill arising on acquisttion

1s recognised as an asset and
iitially measured at cost, being the
excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group's
interest Iin the net fair value of the



identifiable assets, kabilities and
contingent ltabilites recognised

If after reassessment, the Group's
interest in the net fair value of the
acquired identfiable assets, lablities
and contingent liabilities exceeds the
cost of the business combination, the
excess 1s Immediately recognised in
the income statement

Leased assets

Leases are classified as finance
leases when the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group All other leases are
classified as operating leases
For property leases, the land and
building elements are treated
separately to determine the
appropnate lease classification

Finance leases

Assets funded through finance leases
are capitalised as property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over
therr estimated useful lives or the
lease term, whichever 1s shorter The
amount capitalised I1s the lower of the
fair value of the asset or the present
value of the minimum lease payments
dunng the lease term at the inception
of the lease The resulting lease
obligations are included in labiities
net of finance charges Finance

costs on finance leases are charged
directly to the income statement

Qperating leases

Assets leased under operating leases
arg not recorded on the balance
sheet Rental payrments are charged
directly to the income statement

Lease incentives

Lease incentives primanly include
up-front cash payments or rent-
free pericds Lease incentives are
capitalhised and spread over the
period of the lease term

Leases with predetermined

fixed rental increases

The Group has some leases with
predetermined fixed rental iIncreases
These rental increases are accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the
perod of the lease term

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarly take a substanttal
period of time to get ready for ther
intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially
ready for thewr use or sale

All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the
penod in which they are incurred

Investments
Investments are stated at cost
less any provision for impairment

Other payables
Other payables are stated at
therr farr value

Share-based payments

The Group has applied the
requirements of IFRS 2 Share-based
payments In accordance with the
transitional provisions, IFRS 2 has
been applied to all grants of equity
instruments after 7 November 2002
that were unvested at the date of the
Group's transition to IFRS

The Group 1ssues equity-settled
share-based payments to certain
employees Equity-settled share-
based payments are measured at
fair value at the date of grant The
fair value determined at the grant
date of the equity-settled share
based payments 1s expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group’s
estimate of sharaes that

will eventually vest

Fair value 1s measured by use of a
binemial modei or a Black-Scholes
model, according to the relative
complexity of the type of share-
based payment to be measured
The expected life used in the model
has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for
the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions, and
behavioural considerations

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial
llabilities are recognised on the
Group's balance sheet when
the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of
the instrument

Trade receivables

Trade recevables do not carry
any interest and are stated at
their nominal value, as reduced
by approprate allowances for
estimated Irrecoverable amounts
Such allowances are raised based
on an assessment of debtor
ageing, past experience, or
known customer circumstances

Cash at bank and in hand and
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand, which 1s
the term used in the balance sheet,
comprises cash on hand together
with demand deposits, and other
short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to a
known amount of cash and are
subject to an insignificant nsk of
changes in value

Cash and cash equivalents, which
15 the term used in the cash flow
statement, comprises cash at bank
and In hand, as defined immediately
above, together with any overdrafts
repayable on demand

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial habiities and equity
instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into An
equity instrument 1s any contract
that ewidences a residual interest

in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its habilities

Bank borrowings

Interest-beanng bank loans and
overdrafts are recorded as the
proceeds received, net of direct
Issue costs Finance charges,
Including premiums payable on
settlement or redemption and

direct 1ssue costs, are accounted

for on an accrual basis to the income
statement using the effective interest
rate method and are added to the 71
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carrying amount of the instrument
to the extent that they are not settled
in the penod in which they arise

Trade payables

Trade payables are not interest
bearing and are stated at their
nominal value

Derwvative financial instruments
The Group does not currently use
denvative financial iInstruments

to reduce its exposure to interest
or exchange rate movements

The Group does not hold or issue
dervatives for speculative or
trading purposes

Derivative financtal instruments are
recognised as assets and habilities
measured at therr far values at the
balance sheet date Changes in
thewr fair values are recognised in
the income statement and this Is
ikely to cause volatility in situations
where the carrying value of the
hedged item Is either not adjusted
to reflect the fair value changes
ansing from the hedged risk or Is
s0 adjusted but that adjustment

1S not recognised in this Income
statement Provided the conditions
specified by IAS 39 are met, hedge
accounting may be used to mitigate
this iIncome statement volatiity

The Company expects that hedge
accounting will not generally be
applied to transactional hedging
relationships, such as hedges of
forecast or commutted transactions

Where the hedging relationship

1s classified as a cash flow

hedge, to the extent the hedge 1s
effective, changes in the fair value
of the hedging instrument will be
recognised directly in equity rather
than in the iIncome statement When
the hedged item i1s recognised

in the financial statements, the
accumulated gamns and losses
recognised in equity will be either
recycled to the income statement
or, if the hedged item results

in a non-financial asset, will be
recognised as adjustments to its
imitial carrying amount

Exceptional items

Certain items do not reflect

the Group’s underlying trading
performance If such items are
significant in terms of size or
nature, they would be classified as
exceptional Gamns and losses on
these discrete items, such as profits
on disposal of assets, operations,
and property interests, restructuring
costs, and other non-operating
items can have a material impact on
the absolute amount of and trend

in profit from operations and the
result for the period Therefore any
material gains and losses on such
items are analysed as exceptional
nnote 6 Where there are any
immaterial amounts ansing from
such rtems dunng a period, they are
not presented as exceptional items

Discontinued operations

Cash flows, incorme and expenses
that relate to a major component of
the business or geographical region
that has been sold or 15 classified as
held for sale are shown separately
from continuing operations, together
with any related tax

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The Group makes judgements

and assumptions concerning the
future that impact the application
of policies and reported amounts
The resulting accounting estimates
calculated using these judgements
and assumptions will, by definition,
seldormn equal the related actual
results but are based on historical
experlence and expectations of
future events The judgements
and key sources of estimation
uncertainty that have a significant
effect on the amounts recognised
in the financial statements are
discussed below

Impairment of assets

Financial and non-financial assets
are subject to impairment reviews
based on whether current or future
events and circurmnstances suggest
that their recoverable amount may
be less than their carrying value

Recoverable amount I1s based on a
calculatron of expected future cash
flows which includes management
assumptions and estimates of
future performance

Post-employment benefits

The Group operates a defined
benefit scheme for its employees
The present value of the scheme's
llabiities recognised at the balance
sheet date is dependent on interest
rates of high quality corporate
bonds The net financing charge
recognised In the income statement
1s dependent on the interest rate

of high qualty corporate bonds

and an expectation of the weighted
average returns on the assets within
the scheme Other key assumptions
within this caleulation are based on
market conditions or estimates of
future events, including mortality
rates, as set out in note 22

Provisions

Descriptions of the provisions held
at perrod end are given at note 23
These provisions are esttmates and
the actual costs and timing of future
cash flows are dependent on future
events Any difference between
expectations and the actual future
hability 1s accounted for In the period
when such determination 1s made

The property provisions require
Jjudgement and estimation in
determining management's best
estimate of the following main
areas the length of time 1t rmight
take to find a tenant for a vacant
property, the hkely rent which
could be achieved from letting

a vacant property, the amount
which the landlord of a property
may accept as a lump sum n
order to release the Group from

its future obligations, the amount
and timing of likely future increases
in rent and other property costs,
the extent, and hence the likely
cost, of any assoctated legal and
professional advice which will be
reguired, future maintenance costs
and dilapidations, and an estimate
of future costs of capital 1n order to
arrive at a suitable discount rate




Income taxes

The Group recognises expected habilities for tax based on an estimation of the likely taxes due, which requires
significant jJudgement as to the ultimate tax determination of certain items Where the actual lability ansing from
these 1ssues differs from these estimates, such differences will have an impact on income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the peried when such determination 1s made

Allowances against the carrying value of inventories

The Group reviews the market value of and demand for Its Inventories on a penodic basis to ensure that recorded
Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value In assessing the ultimate realisation of inventaories,
the Group is required to make judgements as to future demand regquirements and to compare these with the current
or committed inventory levels Factors that could impact estimated demand and selling prices are the timing and
success of product ranges

Allowances agalnst the carrying value of trade receivables

Using information avaitable at the balance sheet date, the Group reviews its accounts recewvable balances and makes
Judgements based on an assessment of debt ageing, past experience, or known customer circumstances in order to
determine the appropriate level of allowance required to account for potential uncollectable trade receivables

4 REVENUE
An analyss of the Group’s revenue is as follows

53 weeks to 52 weeks to
28 December 2012 24 December 2011
£m £m

Continuing operations
Sales of goods 8871 8538
Finance income 02 -
Total revenue 8873 8538

There is no revenue disclosed from discontinued operations Discontinued operations, which are explained in more
detal! at note 6, were 100% owned subsidiaries which had no significant external income

5 SEGMENTAL REPORTING

{a) Basis of segmentation, and other general information

Information reported to the Group’s Exacutive Committee 1s focused on one operating segment, Howden Joinery
Thus, the information required in respect of profit or loss, assets and habilities, can all be found in the relevant pnmary
statements and notes of these consclidated financial statements

The Howden Joinery business denves its revenue from the sale of kitchens and joinery products, along with the
associated procurement, manufacture and distnibution of these products

{b) Other information

53 weaks to 52 woaks to

29 Decomber2012 24 December 2011

£m £m

Capiltal additions 242 187
Depreciation and amortisation (16 9) {176)
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{c) Geographical information

The Group’s operaticns are located in the UK and France The Group has depots located in both the UK and France

The Group’s manufacturing is located in the UK

The following table analyses the Group's revenues from external customers by geographical market, irrespective of

the origin of the goods

53 waeks to 52 weeks to
20 Decomber 2012 24 Decembor 2011
£m £m

Revenues from external customers
UK B725 8387
France 1486 151
8871 8538

The following s an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets, and additions to property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets, analysed by the gecgraphical area in which the assets are located

29 December 2012 24 December 2011
£m £m
Carrying amount of segment assets
UK 4414 3973
France 76 82
4490 405 5
29 December 2012 24 December 2011
£m £m
Non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets)
UK 835 gs 2
France 08 07
943 889
53 weoks to 52 weoeks to
29 December 2012 24 December 2011
£m £m
Additions to property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets
UK 238 184
France 04 03
242 187




6 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

(a) Discontinued operations and exceptional items for current and prior periods

53 weeks to 52 waoks to
29 December2012 24 December 2011
Note Em £m
Discontinued operating loss
Relating to the closure of Howden Joinery Supply Division (Asia) Ltd
Expenses (11) 10
Pre-tax loss of discontinued operations (11} am
Tax thereon 03 03
Post-tax loss of discontinued operations {08§) 07N
Discontinued exceptional items
Relating to the closure of Howden Joinery Supply Division {Asia) Ltd:
Loss on closure of operation B({b) 35) -
Tax thereon 6(b) 04 -
Loss for the period on closure of discontinued operation (31) -
Relating to the closure of Southon Insurance Company Ltd
Profit on closure of operation 6(b) 04 -
Tax thereon 6(b} 1) -
Profit for the period on closure of discontinued operation 6(b) 03 -
Accrual for potential interast
Agccrual for potential interest 6(b), 6(c) 02 {0 6}
Tax thereon 6(b), B(c) - 02
02 04)
Increase to property provision
increase to property provision B(c) - 77}
Tax thereon &(c) - 03
- 74
Total pre-tax loss for the period from discontinued operations (4 4) °3)
Total tax on discontinued operations 06 o8
Post-tax loss for the period from discontinued operations (3 8) 8 5)
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(b) Exceptional items for the 53 weeks to 29 December 2012

£m £m
Closure of Howden Joinery Supply Division (Asia) Ltd
Impairment of goodwill (2 5)
Other costs of closure (10} 35)
Closure of Southon Insurance Company Ltd
Value of liabilities commuted [o):]
Commutation premium 0 4} 04
Accrual for patential interest
Interest accrual 02
Total discontinued exceptional items before tax @a3)
Tax credit on discontinued exceptional items 03
Total discontinued exceptional item after tax 30}

Cash flows from discontinued operations are shown in note 25

Closure of Howden Joinery Supply Division (Asia) Ltd:

During the current penod, the Group made the decision to close the Hong Kong registered 100% owned Group
subsidiary company Howden Joinery Supply Dvision (Asia) Ltd, which had previously carned out sourcing operations
for the Group in Asia By the end of the period, the management of all sourcing from Asia had been transfered to the
Group's UK sourcing team

Prior to the decision to close the company, the Group was recognising associated goodwill with a carrying value of
£2 5m Once the decision had been made to close the company, this goodwill was written off in full, as shown above
and in note 14

Closure of the company had begun by the end of the current period, and it i1s anticrpated that the company will
be placed into administration durning 2013 A provision for closure costs has been set up in the current period,
and utiisation of the prowviston has begun Maore details of the provision are given in note 23

The company did not have any external customers The cost of the goods which it sourced were recharged within
the Group and accordingly were eiminated on consolidation Thus there s no revenue shown for this discontinued
operation The only expenses which are shown in both current and prior penods are the incremental costs which
the Group Incurred as a result of carrying cut business through this company (e g the salanes, office rent, and other
similar admirustrative costs of running the scurcing operation in Asia)

Closure of Southon Insurance Company Ltd

Southon Insurance Company Ltd was a 100% owned Group subsidiary company, registered and licensed to carry

on nsurance business in Guernsey In the past, the company had reinsured potential labilittes under certain product
guarantees 1ssued by farmer Group compames It bad also reinsured certain legacy Group employers' liabilities and
public lability The company ceased underwnting in December 2007, and during the current period it has terminated
all residual habilities As part of the process of terminating these habilities, it paid a commutation premium of £0 4m to
dispose of liabilities with a book vafue of £0 8m, as shown above

By the end of the current penod, the company had receved approval from the Guernsey Financial Services
Commission to surrender its insurance licence, and the company had been put into the hands of liquidators

The company did not have any external customers in either the current orprior period lts only income and expenses
in both pencds were insignificant amounts of investment iIncome and administration expenses, therefore there 1s no
significant revenue, costs, or pre-tax or post-tax profit or loss to disclose in either penod




Accrual for potential interest:
The accrual for potential interest relates to interest which would be payable if the Group lost a tax dispute with HM

Revenue & Customs, relating to the Group’s legacy properties The tax which i1s in dispute has already been provided
for in prior penods

All of the above items relate to discontinued operations There are no exceptional items relating to continuing operations

(c) Exceptional items for the 52 weeks to 24 December 2011
The exceptional items for the prior period relate to operations which had been discontinued in 2008, as detalled below

£m
Increase to property provision {77
Interest 086)
Total exceptional itemns before tax (8 3)
Tax on exceptional items 05
Total exceptional Items after tax (78}

The increase to the property provision in the prior period relates to future rent, rates, surrender fees and associated
costs In respect of legacy properties More detalls of the provision itself can be found at note 23 of this Annual
Report The originat provision was created as a discontinued exceptional item in the 52 weeks to December 2008,
and the events surrounding its creation are descnbed in more detatl on page 55 of the Annual Report for that period

Interest relates to interest which would be payable If the Group lost a tax dispute with HM Revenue & Customs,
relating to the legacy properties The tax which s In dispute has already been provided for in prior periods

Both of the above items relate to discontinued operations There are no exceptional tems 1n the prior period relating
to continuing operations

7 OPERATING PROFIT
Operating profit has been arnved at after (charging)/crediting

53 wesoks to 52 waeks to
28 December 2012 24 December 2011
£m £m
Net foreign exchange gamn 50 -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
—on owned assets {15 8) (16 2)
- on assets held under finance lease 01 o1
Amortisation of intangible assets {included in adnunistrative expenses)
- on owned assets (12 13
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense (345 3) (344 7)
Write down of inventones {15) 04
Loss on disposal of fixed assats - €2
Decrease in allowance for doubtful debts (hote 19) 06 05
Staff costs (note 8) (241 4) {223 9)
Minimum lease payments under operating leases (55 6) (50 3)
Auditor's remuneration for audit services (see page 78) 03) {03)

All of the items above relate to conunuing operations
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A maore detailled analysis of auditor’s total remuneration i1s given below

53 weeks to 52 weeks to
29 Decomber 2012 24 December 2011
£m £m
Audit services
Fees paid to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts o) 01)
Fees paid to the Gompany's auditor and their associates for other
services to the Group
- the audit of the subsidiary companies pursuant to legislation 02 02
Total audit fees 03) {03)
Other services
Audtt related assurance services {01} 01
Tax compliance services {01) ©n
Tax advisory services ©02) 02
Total non-audit fees (0 4) 04

Fees payable to Delcitte LLP and therr associates for non-audit services to the Company are not required to be
disclosed because the consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis

Details of the Group's policy on the use of auditors for non-audit services, the reasons why the auditor was used
rather than ancther suppler and how the auditor's independence and objectivity were safeguarded are set out In
the Corporate Governance Report No services were provided pursuant io contingent fee arrangements

8 STAFF COSTS
The aggregate payroll costs of employees, including executive directors, were

53 weeks to 52 weeka to

29 December 2012 24 December 2011

£m £m

Wages and salaries 208 4 19589
Sociaf secunty costs 208 178
Pension ocperating costs (note 22) 122 02
2414 2239

Wages and salaries includes a charge in respect of share-based payments of £2 7m (2011 £2 7m)

The average monthly number of persons (full time equivalent, including executive directors) employed by the Group

during the period was as follows

53 woeks to 29 52 weeks to 24
December 2012 December 2011
Number Number
6,441 6,276
9 FINANCE INCOME
53 waeks to 52 weeks to
29 December 2012 24 December 2011
£m £m
Bank interest receivable D2 -
Total finance income 02 -




10 FINANCE EXPENSES AND OTHER FINANCE EXPENSE - PENSIONS

53 weeks to 52 weeks to
29 Decamber 2012 24 December 2011
£m £m

Finance expenses
interest payable on bank loans {0 4) 10
Finance charge on remeasuring creditors to fair value 02 {02)
Total finance expenses (06) 12

Further details of the finance charge on remeasuring creditors to fair value in the current penod are given in note 23

53 waaks to 52 weoks to
29 December 2012 24 December 2011
£m £imy
Other finance expense - pensions (73) (31)
11 TAX
{a) Tax in the income statement
Continulng operations Discontinued operations Total

53 woeks to 52 weoks to 53 wooks to 52 weeks to 53 weeka to 52 woeks to
29 Decomber 24 Decembeor 20 December 24 December 25 December 24 December
2012 2011 2012 201 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Current tax
Current period 214 223 (0 6) 06) 208 217
Adjustments in respect
of previous penods {11 {1 8) - - a1 (18)
Total current tax 203 205 ©6) 06) 197 199
Deferred tax
Current period 40 61 - 02) 40 59
Adjustments in respect
of previous periods 02) 26 - - {0 2) 26
Total deferred tax 38 87 - 02 38 85
Total tax charged/{credrted)
In the iIncome statement 241 292 {C 6) 08) 235 284

UK Corparation tax 1s calculated at 24 5% (2011 26 5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the penod Tax for
other countnes 1s calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective junsdictions
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(b) Tax relating to items credited to equity

53 wooks to 52 woeeks to

28 December 2012 24 December 2011

£m £m

Deferred tax credit to equity on actuarial lcss on pension scheme (130) 85
Deferred tax credit to equity on share schemas (19) 03)
Current tax credit to equity on share schemes 20) -
Charge to equity re tax rate change* 79 85
(9 0) 23)

The tax relating to items credited to equity all relates to continuing operations

(¢) Reconciliation of the total tax charge

The total tax charge for the period can be reconciled to the result per the ncome statement as follows

53 wooks to 52 wooks to

29 December 2012 24 December 2011

£m £m

Profit before tax

Continuing opetations 1121 Mo
Discontinued operations 4 4) €93
1077 1017

53 weoks to 52 wooks to

29 Dacember 2012 24 December 2011

£m £m

Tax at the UK Corporation tax rate of 24 5% (2011 26 5%) 264 268
IFRS 2 share scheme charge™* 06) o1
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes™* 20 24
Reassessment of deferred tax asset on general provisions 03 09
Change of tax rate* 39 3.4)
Non-qualifying depreciation 06 08
Tax adjustments in respect of pravious years 13 09
Total tax charged in the income statement 235 284

On 17 July 2012 Parliament approved the Finance 8ill which reduces the UK Standard rate of Corporation tax from 26 % to 24% with effect from

1 Apnl 2012 and 23% from 1 Apri 2013 All deferred tax assets and liabiibes have been recognised at 23% (2011 25%)

-

Permanent differences anse in relation to share schemes rasulting from a difference between the accounting and tax treatments In accordance

with IAS 12 the excess of current and deferred tax over and above the related cumulatve ramuneration expanse under IFRS 2 has been recognised

directly in equity

*** This anses mamnly dus to the Group assuming no tax relef for the payments and provisions made in association with the legacy properties unti

the tax position 1s agreed with HMRC




12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

53 wooks to 20 December 2012

52 weeks to 24 December 2011

Waelghted Waighted
average average
number of Earnings number of Earnings
Earnings shares  per share Earnings shares per share
£m m p £m m p
From continuing operations
Basic earnings per share 880 627 0 14 Q B18 606 3 1356
Effect of dijutive share options - 42 {01) - 167 (0 4)
Diluted earnings per share 880 6312 139 818 6230 131
From discontinued operations .
Basic loss per share 38) 627 0 {0 8) (8 5) 606 3 (14
Effect of dilutive share options - 42 - - 167 -
Diluted loss per share 38 6312 {0 6) (8 5 6230 (14)
From continuing and discontinued operations
Basic earnings per share 842 627 0 134 733 606 3 121
Effect of dilutive share options - 42 o1 - 167 03)
Dituted earmings per share 842 6312 133 733 6230 18
13 DIVIDENDS
53 weoks to 52 weoaks to
29 December 2012 24 December 2011
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period £m £m
Final dwvidend for the 52 weeks to 24 December 2011 - 0 5p/share 31 -
Intenm dividend for the 53 weeks to 29 December 2012 - 0 3p/share 19 -
50 -

The final dmdend for the 52 weeks to 24 December 2011 was paid on 22 June 2012 The intenm dividend for the 53

weeks to 29 December 2012 was paid on 30 November 2012

Dividends proposed at the end of the penod (but not recognised in the penod)

53 weeks to 52 woeks to

20 December 2012 24 December 2011

£m £m

Proposed final dwvidend for the 53 weeks to 29 December 2012 - 2 7p per share 167 n/a
Proposed final dividend for the 52 weeks to 24 December 2011 - O 5p per share n/a 31

The directors propose a final diwidend in respect of the 53 weeks to 29 December 2012 of 2 7p per share, payable to
ordinary shareholders who are on the register of shareholders at 24 May 2013, and payable on 21 June 2013

Dividends have been waived indefinitely on all shares held by the Group's employee share trusts, which have not yet

been awarded to employees

The proposed final dividend for the current pencd 1s subject to the approval of the shareholders at the 2013 Annual
General Meeting, and has not been included as a hability in these financia! statements
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14 GOODWILL

Cost
At 25 December 2010 and 24 December 2011 25

Derecognised on closure of subsidiary {2 5)

At 29 December 2012 -

Accumulated impairment losses
At 25 December 2010, 24 December 2011 and 29 December 2012 -

Carrying value
At 29 December 2012 -

At 25 December 2010 and 24 December 2011 * 25

The goodwill was ongmally recognised on the acquisition of the remaining 50% of Howden Joinery Supply Division
{Asia) Limited (“HJ Asia™), durthg the period ended 27 December 2008 Prior to that, HJ Asia was a 50% owned joint
venture, with no associated goodwill

During the current penod, the Group has made the decision to close the operations of HJ Asia, and has accordingly
derecognised the associated goodwill The derecognition of goodwill, together with other costs related to the closure
of HJ Asia, have been treated as a discontinued exceptional item in the current penod {(see note 6 for further details)

15 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The other intangible assets shown below all relate to software, as detailed further in the accounting policies note

£m
Cost
At 25 December 2010 144
Additions 12
At 24 December 2011 156
Additions 05
At 29 December 2012 161
Amortisation
At 25 December 2010 96
Charge for the penod 13
At 24 December 2011 109
Charge for the period 12
At 29 December 2012 121
Net book value at 29 December 2012 40
Net book value at 24 December 2011 47

There are no intangible assets held under finance leases



16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Short-term Plant,
Freehold leasehold machinery Fixtures & Capital
property property & vehicles fittings wIP TOTAL
£m £m Em £m £m £m
Cost
At 25 December 2010 213 280 164 9 703 o8 2853
Additions 01 32 53 45 44 175
Disposals - 04 682 02) - {6 8)
Reclassifications - 01 06 - 07 -
At 24 December 2011 214 309 164 6 746 45 2960
Additions 02 49 41 52 92 236
Disposals - 07N 21 11 - B9
Reclassifications - 01 19 01 2 1) -
At 29 December 2012 216 352 168 5 788 118 3157
Accumulated depreciation
At 25 December 2010 19 90 1372 56 4 - 2045
Charge for the period - 20 91 52 - 163
Disposals - o1 ©62) 02 - 65
At 24 December 2011 19 109 1401 614 - 2143
Charge for the period 03 23 79 52 - 157
Disposals - (04) 21) {11 - 36)
At 29 December 2012 22 128 1458 6565 - 2254
Net book value at 29 December 2012 194 224 228 133 1186 893
Net book value at 24 December 2011 195 200 245 132 45 817

The Group has pledged its property, plant and equipment to secure bank borrowings More details are given in note 21

At 29 December 2012, the Group had entered into contractual commitments to acquire property, plant and equipment
amounting to £5 2m {2011 £11 6m)

Analysis of assets held under finance leases

28 December 2012 24 December 2011
Plant, machinery Plant, machinery
& vehictes Total & vohicles Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost 05 05 ar 07
Accumulated depreciation ©2) {02 {06) 08B)
Net book value 03 03 01 01
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17 DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the Group, and the movements on them

during the current and prior reporting penods

Retirement Accelerated Company
benefit capital share  Other timing

obligations sch ditferences Total

£m £m £m £m £m

At 25 December 2010 366 €2 45 39 448
{Charge)/credit to income 82 04 {10} [N (11 9)
Credit to equity 85 - 03 - 88
Effect of tax rate change — Income statement 38 - {3} o1 34
- Equity (5 5) - - - 6 5)

At 24 December 2011 342 02 35 07 386
(Charge)/credit to ngcome (886) 03 05 Q1) 7 9)
Credit to equity 130 - 19 - 149

Effect of tax rate change — Income statement 44 - {01) 02) 41
- Equity 7 5) - {0 4} - (79

At 29 December 2012 355 05 54 04 418

Deferred tax arising from accelerated capital allowances, Company share schemes and short-term timing

differences can be further analysed as a £10 6m asset and a £4 3m lability (2011 £9 2m asset and £4 8m liability)

The presentation in the balance sheet 1s as follows

29 December 2012 24 December 2011

£m £m

Deferred tax assets 461 434
Deferred tax Labilihes 43 (48)
418 386

At the balance sheet date the Group had unused trading tax losses with a potential value of £12 1m {2011 £13 2m)

No deferred tax asset has been recognised as it I1s not considered probable that future taxable profits will be
avallable against which the unused tax losses can be utiised The Group also has catried forward capial losses

and the related potential deferred tax asset of £19 6m (2011 £21 3m) which has not been recogrised Both of these

losses may be carried forward indefiritely




18 INVENTORIES

29 Docember 2012 24 December 2011

£€m £m

Raw matenals 30 37
Work in progress 26 28
Fimshed goods and goods for resale 1210 1235
Allowance against carrying value of inventories (107) (115)
1159 1185

The Group has pledged its inventories to secure bank borrowings More details are given in note 21

19 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Trade and other receivables

29 December 2012 24 December 2011

£m £m

Trade receivables {net of allowance) 712 730
Prepayments and accrued income 231 210
Other receivables 17 13
960 953

Trade and other receivables are not interest-bearing, and are on commercial terms Their carrying value approximates to
their far value

An analysis of the Group's allowance for doubtful recevables I1s as follows

53 weoks to 52 weaks to

29 December 2012 24 December 2011

£m £m

Balance at start of period 87 92
Decrease in allowance recogrused in the Income Statement (0 6) (0 5)
Balance at end of period g1 87

The Group’s exposure to the credit nsk inherent 1n its trade receivables i1s discussed in note 28 The Group has no
sigrificant concentration of credit nsk, with exposure spread over a large number of customers Interest 1s charged
at appreopriate market rates on balances which are in itigation

Before accepting any new credit customer, the Group obtains a credit check from an external agency to assess the
potential customer's credit quality, and then sets credit imits on a customer-by-customer basis These credit limits
are reviewed regularly In the case of one-coff customers, the Group's pelicy 1s to require immediate payment at the

point of sale, and not to offer credit terms
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The historical level of customer default 1s low, and as a result the “credit quality” of year end trade recewvables

Is considered to be high The Group reviews trade receivables past due but not imparred on a regular basts and
considers, based on past expenence, whether the credit qualty of these amounts at the balance sheet date has
detenorated since the transaction was entered into and therefore whether the amounts are recoverable or require
provision Regular contact Is mamntained with all such customers and, where necessary, legal action 1s taken

to recover the recevable An allowance for impairment 1s made for any specific amounts which are considered
Irrecoverable or only partly recoverable There 1s also a separate allowance, which 1s calculated as a percentage of
sales At the period end, the total bad debt provision of £8 1m (2011 £8 m) consists of a specific provision of £3 8m
(2011 £4 2m) which has been made against specific debts with a gross carrying value of £4 8m (2011 £4 8m), and
a provision of £4 3m (2011 £4 5m) based on sales and on the hustoric default rate To the extent that recoverable
amounts are estimated to be less than their assocrated carrying values, mpairment charges have been recorded In
the consolidated income statement and the carrying values have been written down to their recoverable amounts

£5 6m debts were written off in the penod (2011 £5 9m) Included within the Group's aggregate trade receivables
balance are specific debtor balances with customers totalling £13 6m befere bad debt provision {2011 £13 7m before
provision) which are past due as at the reporting date The Group has assessed these balances for recoverability and
believes that therr credit quahty remains intact

An ageing analysis of these past due trade receivables 15 provided as follows

29 December 2012 24 December 2011

£m £m
1-30 days past due 73 69
31-60 days past due 10 13
61-90 days past due 08 07
90+ days past due 45 48
Total overdue amounts, excluding allowance for doubtful receivables 136 137

There were no trade receivables which would have been impatred at either period end were it not for the fact that
therr credit terms were renegotiated The Group does not renegotiate credit terms

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand, which 1s the term used n the balance sheet, comprises cash on hand together with
demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount

of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value Cash at bank is ether in current accounts, or 1s
placed on short-term deposit with maturity penods of less than three months Interest on short-term deposits 1s pard
at prevailing money market rates The carrying amount of these assets approximates to their far value As explained
1n the accounting policy note, and as noted at the foot of the consolidated cash flow statement, this definition

differs shghtly from the defimtion of cash and cash equivalents, which i1s used in the cash flow statement, and

which includes overdrafts repayable on demand

Assets pledged as security
The Group has pledged its other financial assets to secura bank borrowings More detalls are given in note 21



20 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

29 Decombor 2012 24 December 2011

£m £m

GCurrent habilities
Trade payables 60 4 681
Other tax and social secunty ar7 382
Other payables 21 28
Accruals and deferred income 369 302
1371 1391

Trade payables, other payables, and accruals principally compnse amounts due in respect of trade purchases and
ongoting costs Therwr carrying value in both penods approximates to their fair value

The average credit taken for trade purchases during the period, based on total operations, was 46 days (2011 48 days)

The Group’s policy on payment of creditors 1s to agree terms of payment prior to commencing trade with a supplter,
and to abide by those terms on the timely subrmission of satisfactory invaices

21 BORROWINGS
Total borrowings

20 December 2012 24 December 2011

£m £m
Current borrowings
Bank borrowings {net of prepaid fees) 11 11
Current portion of finance lease obligations a1 -
12 11
Non-current assets
Bank borrowings (net of prepaid fees) (10) -
Non-current borrowings
Bank borrowings (net of prepaid fees) - 12
Non-current portion of finance lease obligations 01 -
01 12
Total borrowings 03 23
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Bank borrowings
The bank borrowings are repayable as follows

2% December 2012 24 December 2011

£m £m
Disclosed under current liabilities
On demand or within one year 17 17
Less prepaid issue fees set against borrowings (0 6) {06)
11 11
Disclosed under non-current assets
In the second year 04 -
Less prepaid Issue fees set agalnst borrowings (14 -
{10) -
Disclosed under non-current habilities
In the second year - 17
In the third to fifth years inclusive - 04
Less prepaid issue fees set against borrowings - 09)
- 12
Total bank borrowings 01 23

The Group’s accounting policy 1s to capitalise prepad loan facility fees and to set them against the related
borrowings The fees are then amortised over the life of the facility During the current period, the Group extended its
facility, which had previously been due to expire in May 2014, to July 2016 The additional fees payable on extension
were capitalised, together with the unamoertised portion of the existing fees, and these fees are being amortised over
the period to July 2016 At the current penod end, the amount of fees relating to the period in excess of one year from
the balance sheet date were greater than the corresponding amounts drawn down under the faciity, thereby creating
a net debit balance as shown above

All bank borrowings are in stering, and are drawn under the £160m (2011 £160m) committed bank facility The terms
of this facility are explained further in the final paragraph of note 29(a)

This faciity 1s secured on the property, other assets, and investments of the Group The carrying values of each of
these classes of assets are as presented in the balance sheet and notes to these consolidated financial statements

The available facility hmit 1s calculated every week, based on the asset backing at the time and can never exceed
£160m In accordance with the terms of the facility agreement this imit will be reduced to £140m in May 2014 As at
29 December 2012, the Group had available £126m of undrawn committed borrowing facihties, in respect of which all
condittons precedent had been met (24 December 2011 £145m)

In June 2012 the faciity was extended until July 2016 The loan carnes interest at a rate of LIBOR plus a margin From
March 2011 to matunty, the margin will vary between 200 and 250 basis points and will be determined by the Group’s
roling Adjusted Profit Before Tax




Finance lease obligations
The finance lease obhgations are repayable as follows

29 Docomber 2012 24 December 2011

£m £m
Current liabilities
Within one year 01 -
Non-current lizbilities
In the second year 01 -
In the third to fifth years inclusive 01 -
Total finance lease obligations 02 -

At the previous period end, there were no finance lease obligations All of the finance lease cbligations are in

sterling Each lease contract 1s at a fixed interest rate The finance lease obligations were unsecured, and the average

remaining lease term at the pericd end was 3 years and 3 months

The reconciliation items between the total future minimum lease payments and their present value 1s as follows

Minimum tease payments

Present value of minlmum
lease payments

29 December 2012 24 December 2011

29 December 2012 24 Decoember 2011

£m £m £m £m
Amounts payable under finance leases
Within one year 01 - 01 -
In the second year 01 - 01 -
In the third to fifth years inclusive 01 - 01 -
03 - 02 -
Less future finance charges ©1n -
Present value of lease obligations 02 -
Disclosed as
Current 01 -
Non-current 01 -
02 -
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Interest rate and fair value information for bank borrowings and finance lease obligations
The weighted average interest rates paid were as follows

53 weeks to 52 woeks to

29 Decomber 2012 24 Decomber 2011

% %o

Finance lease obligations 50 N/A
Bank borrowings 29 34

The directors estimate the fair value of the Group’s horrowings 1s as follows

29 December 2012 24 Dacember 2011

£m £m
Finance lease obligations 02 -
Bank borrowings 01 23

22 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Defined contribution auto-enrolment plan

From July 2013, the Group will be required to operate an auto-enrolment defined contribution scheme for employees,
in ine with recent UK Government legisiation Under the terms of this scheme, employees will make pension
contnbutions out of thewr salares, and the Group will also make additional contributions  The Group decided to gve
employees the option to enter this scheme earlier than the mandatory start date, and so the auto-enrolment scheme
was open to employees from November 2012 on a voluntary, opt-in, basis

The total cost charged to Income in respect of this scheme in the current pericd of €0 1m (2011 £nil} represents the
Group's contntbutions due and paid in respect of the period

Tihe Group operates a defined contnbution scheme for its employees The assets of this scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, and are under the control of the scheme trustees This scheme began operation dunng 2006

The total cost charged to iIncome in respect of this scheme in the current period of £0 9m (2011 £11m) represents
the Group’s contributions due and pad in respect of the period

The Group operates a funded pension scheme which provides benefits based on the pensionable pay of participating
employees This scheme will be closed to new entrants from April 2013 The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, being invested with independent fund managers Contnbutions are charged

to the consolidated income statement so as to spread the cost of pensions over the employees’ working hives with
the Group The present vatue of the defined benefit obligation, the related current service cost, and past service

cost are determined by a qualified actuary using the projected unit method The most recent completed actuanal
valuation was carried out at 5 Apnl 2011 by the scheme actuary The actuary adwvising the Group has subsequently
rolled forward the results of the 5 April 2011 valuation to 29 December 2012, and has restated the results onto a basis
consistent with market conditions at that date

Total amounts charged in respect of pensions in the period

53 weeks to 52 weoks to
29 December 2012 24 December 2011
£m £m

Charged to the income statement
Defined benefit scheme — total operating charge 12 91
Defined benefit scheme — net finance charge 73 N
Defined contributton scheme - total operating charge 10 11
Total net amount charged to profit before tax 195 133

Charged to equity

Defined benefit scheme — net actuarial losses, net of deferred tax 3380 229
Total pension charge oS85 B2




Key assumptions used in the valuation of the scheme

53 weeks to 52 weeks to
29 Decomber 2012 24 December 2011
Rate of increase of pensions in deferment capped at lower of CPl and 5% 225% 2 95%
Rate of CARE revaluation capped at lower of RP] and 3% 230% 2 55%
Rate of increase of pensions in payment
- pensions with increases capped at lower of CPl and 5% 305% 295%
- pensions with increases capped at lower of CPl and 5%, with a 3% minimum 375% 350%
= pensions with increases capped at the lower of LPl and 2 5% 215% 215%
Rate of increase in salaries 415% 4 35%
Inflation assumption - RPI 315% 3 35%
Inflation assumption - CPI 245% 2 65%
Expected return on scheme assets (weighted average) 493% 507%
Discount rate 445% 505%

The following mortality tables were used

Mortality before retirement Males AMOC Ultimate
- 2011 and 2012 Females AF00 Ulumate

Mortality in retlrement for
current and future pensioners  Males S1PMA, CMI 2010 core projections with a long-term improvement rate of 1 5% p a
- 2011 and 2012 Females S1PFA, CMI 2010 core projections with a long-term improvement rate of 15% p a

Note
*The underlying S1PMA and S1PFA tables are also adjusted by scaling factors Separate scaling factors apply to males and females and to the different
categones of members

The mortality assumption adopted by the Group in 2012 and 2011 1s equivalent to the following hfe expectancies

2012 2o
Male (yrs} Female (yrs) Mala (yrs) Female (yrs)
Non-pensioner (age 45) 892 g16 891 ais
Pensioner (age 65) 884 89 4 g8 2 892

If there was an Increase/decrease in the discount rate of C 25%, there would be a corresponding decrease/increase
in the scheme liabilities of around 4 7%, or £41m, and a decrease/increase in the current service cost of around 6%
or £0 7m

An increase of 0 25% to the inflation rate would increase scheme habiltties by around £18m, or 2%, and would
Increase current service cost by around £0 6m or 5% A decrease of 0 25% to the inflation rate would decrease
scheme lrabilties by around £13m, or 1 5%, and would reduce current service cost by around £0 4m, or 3%

The effect of changing the assumption regarding life expectancy by one year longer than shown above would be to
Increase the assessed value of abilities by around 3% or £25m, and would increase current service cost by around
£0 3m or 2%

o1




Analysis of scheme assets and the expected rates of return

Expected rate of return Fair value of scheme assets
53 woeks to 52 weeks to

29 December 2012 24 Decomber 2011 29 December 2012 24 December 2011

% % £m £m

Equities 620 625 3142 2723
Government bonds 250 255 1756 1724
Corporate bonds 445 505 915 846
Cash 250 260 292 51
Alternative growth assets 620 630 786 756
Property 620 6 30 33 Joe
Werghted average 493 507 7204 6408

The Group establishes the long-term expected rate of return on scheme assets by developing a forward-looking
long-term return assumption for each asset class, taking into account factors such as market yield on bond
nvestments of appropriate duration, and the expected outperformance for other asset classes based on analysis
of long-term histoncal trends A single long-term assumnption I1s then calculated as the weighted average of the
actual asset allocation and the long-term assumption for each asset class

Balance sheet
The amount included in the balance sheet ansing from the Group’s obhgations in respect of the defined benefit
retirement benefit scheme is as follows

29 December 2012 24 December 2011

£m £m
Present value of defined benefit ocbligations (874 9) (7777)
Farr value of scheme assets 720 4 6408
Deficit in the scheme, recognised In the balance sheet (154 5) (138 9)
Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows

53 woeks to 52 wooks to

29 December 2012 24 December 201t

Em £m

Present value at start of perlod 7777 7306
Current service cost 12 91
Interest on obligation 392 400
Contnibutions from scheme members 02 02
Actuanal losses 669 129
Benefits paid 203) (151)
Present value at end of period 8749 7777
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Movements in the far value of the scheme's assets Is as follows

53 weeks to 52 weeks to

29 December 2012 24 December 2011

£m £m

Farr value at start of pened 6408 5949
Expected return on assats 319 369
Contnbutions from scheme members 02 02
Contnbutions from the Group 529 42 4
Actuanal gains/(losses) 149 {18 5)
Benefits pard (20 3) (151)
Fair value at end of pernod 7204 6408

Movements in the deficit dunng the penod are as follows

53 weeks to 52 weeks to

28 December 2012 24 December 2011

£m £m

Deficit at start of penod (136 9 (1357}
Current service cost 112) 91)
Employer contributions 529 42 4
Other finance charge (73) 31)
Actuanal losses gross of deferred tax 52 0) {31 4)
Deficit at end of penod {154 5) (136 9)

Income statement

Amounts recognised in the income statement ansing from the Group's obligations in respect of the defined benefit

scheme are shown below

Amount charged to operating profit

53 weoks to 52 woeks to
29 December 2012 24 December 2011
£m £m
Current service cost 12 91
Net cost 12 91
The current service cost 1s included in the statutory accounts heading Staff costs
Amount credited to other finance charges
53 weoks to 52 weeks to
20 December 2012 24 Decemnber 2011
£m £m
Expected return on pension scheme assets 319 {36 9)
Expected charge on pension scheme habilities 382 400
Net charge 73 31

The actual return on scheme assets was £46 8m (52 weeks to 24 December 2011 £18 4m)
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Statemnent of recognised income and expense
Amounts taken to equity via the statement of recognised income and expense n respect of the Group's defined
benefit scheme are shown below

53 weeks to 52 weeks to

29 Dacember 2012 24 December 2011

£m £m

Actuanal gain/(loss) on scheme assets 149 {18 5)

Actuarnial loss on scheme liabilities {66 9) (12 9)

Net actuarial loss (52 0} 314)
History of scheme deficit and expenence adjustments

29 24 25 26 27

December Decembeor December December December

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

£m £m £m £m £m

Present value of defined benefit obligations (874 9) 777 7 (730 6) (737 6) (568 5)

Fair value of scheme assets 7204 6408 5949 5413 446 3

Deficit in the scheme (154 5) (136 9) (1357) {196 3) {122 2)

Experence adjustments on scheme habilities - difference between actual and expected returns

Cumulative
29 24 25 26 27 since
December December 0Oecember December December adoption of
2012 201 2010 2009 2008 IFRS
Amount of expenence (lossl/gan
on scheme habilities {Em) (66 9) (12 9) 386 (1491) 738 {80 4)
Pergentage of scheme liabilities (%6) (15% 17% 53% 202% 13 0%
Experience adjustments on scheme assets - difference between actual and expected returns
Cumulative
29 24 25 26 27 since
pPecamber December December December December adoptionof
2012 20m 2010 2009 2008 iFRS
Amount of experience gain/{loss)
on scheme assets (Em) 149 (18 5) 19 621 (140 1) &5)
Percentage of scheme assets (%) 21% 29% 03% 11 5% 314%
Total cumulative actuarlal loss since adoption
of IFRS —all recogrised through the SOCIE (Em) (88 9)

In accordance with the transitional provisions for adopting the amendments to IAS 19 1ssued in December 2004,
the disclosures above relating to expenence adjustments are shown prospectively from the period
ended 24 December 2005, being the first annual period in which the Group adopted the IAS 19 amendments

Expected future contributions
The Group's estimated contnbutions to the defined benefit scheme in the 52 weeks ending 28 December 2013 are £49m
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23 PROVISIONS

Property provision Other provision  Business clasure Total

£m £m £m £m

At 25 December 2010 544 15 - 559
Additional provision in the period 80 33 - "3

Utlisation of prevision in the period (29 4) 25 - (31 9)
At 24 December 2011 330 23 - 353
Additional provision in the perlod 13 32 10 55

Provision released In the period o1 - - 01

Utilisation of provision In the penod (16 4) 21 o1 (18 €)
At 29 December 2012 178 34 09 221

Property provision

The property provision covers onerous leases on any non-trading leased properties For some properties, the provision
15 based on the shortfall between rent payable and rent receivable For other properties, where negotiations to
surrender the lease are in progress, the provision is based on the amount which the landlord has indicated that they are
willing to take as a premium in order for the Group to surrender the lease The provision 1$ based on the penod until the
end of the lease, or until the Group considers that it can cover the shortfall by subletting, assigning, or surrendering the
lease Throughout the course of the penod the Group reviews the range of options for unused properties, and maintains
ongoing discussions with landlords and external agents, with a view to identifying possible leass surrenders and finding
tenants The property provision also Includes amounts for any related shortfalls in business rates on these properties,
and for dilapidations, agents' fees and other professional fees

During the current penod, the property provision has been increased by £0 2m ansing from an unwinding of the
discount rate over time None of this amount relates to a change in the discount rate This amount 1s shown as a
finance charge in note 10 Theres a discussion of the main sources of estimation and uncertainty which apply to
this provision at note 3 The amount of the expected future cash flows has been adjusted to reflect the expected
range of possibilities and, as the outfiows under this provision are expected to take place over a number or years,
the provision has been discounted to its present value

The timing of cutflows from the provision 1s varable, and i1s dependent on property lease expiry dates and on
opportunities to surrender leases

Othear provision

The other provision relates to amounts due in respect of product warranties As products are sold, the Group makes
provision for claims under warranties As claims are made, the Group utilises the provision and then uses this data to
penodically revise the basis on which it makes further provision

Business closure provision
The prowision for business closure relates to the costs of closure of the Group subsidiary company Howden Joinery
Supply Division {Asia) Ltd More details of this are provided tn note 6

The provision represents management's best estimate of the costs of closing the business, which are mainly staff
costs and the costs of closing the Company’s office in Hoang Kong

The decision to close the business was made in the current period, and some expenses related to the closure
have already been incurred in the current period and set against the provision, as shown above The timing of
the remaining cutflows from the provision is expected to occur within the next 12 months
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24 SHARE CAPITAL

53 weeks to 52 weeks to 53 weeks to 52 weeks to
29 Decomber 2012 24 December 2011 29 December 2012 24 December 2011
Ordmary shares of 10p each Number Number £m £m
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Balance at the beginning of the perod 633,915,329 633,915,329 634 634
Issued during the penod 8,100,734 - 08 -
Balance at the end of the penod 642,016,063 633,915,329 64 2 634
25 NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(a) Net cash flows from operating activities
53 woeks to 52 woeks to
29 December 2012 24 December 2011
Em £m
Net cash flow from operating activities comprises
Continuing operating activities 665 M2
Discontinued operating activities (11) 10
Discontinued operations ~ exceptional items 0 5) -
649 402
{b) Reconciliation of net cash
53 weeks to 52 weeks to
25 Decomber 2012 24 December 2011
£m £m
Net cash at start of pened 571 350
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 373 208
Net decrease in current asset investments - 02
Decrease in bank borrowings 22 11
{increase)/decrease in finance leases 02 04
Net cash at end of penod 96 4 571
Represented by
Cash and cash equivalents a6 7 594
Bank lcans 01 2 3)
Finance leases 02 -
96 4 571




{c) Analysis of net cash

Cash and cash
equivalents Bank loans Finance leases Net cash
£m £m £m £m
At 24 December 2011 594 {23) - 571
Cash flow 373 22 02 393
At 29 Dacember 2012 967 ©1) 02 96 4

26 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments

29 December 2012 24 Decembor 2011

£m

£€m

Contracted for, but not provided for in the accounts

52
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Operating lease commitments
The Group as lessee

Payments under operating leases during the penod are shown at note 7 At the balance sheet date, the Group had
outstanding lease commitments for future mimmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which

fall due as shown below

Properties Other loases Total
29 December 24 December 28 December 24 December 29December 24 December
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Payments falling due
Within one year 450 430 118 17 568 547
In the second to fifth
year inclusive 1488 1451 156 223 164 4 167 4
After five years 878 992 06 10 88 4 1002
2816 2873 280 350 3096 3223

The Group as lessor

The Group sublets certain leased properties to third parties At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted

with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments

29 December 2012 24 December 2011

£m £m
Payments receivable
Within one year o8 11
In the second to fifth year inclusive 25 26
After five years 06 Q7
39 44

Finance lease commitments are analysed in note 21
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27 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

1) Details of each scheme

The Group recognised a charge of £2 7m (2011 charge of £2 7m) in respect of share-based payments during the
penod The Group has vanous share-based payment schemes, which are all equity-settled The matn details of all
schemes which existed during the period are given below

a) Co-investment Plan
This I1s a co-investment plan where each participant is permitted to invest a imited amount of shares on an annual
basis for the purposes of the Plan

2011 award 25% of the award will vest if PBT growth at the end of the 2013 financial year 1s at a rate of 6% p a, based
on the December 2010 accounts 100% of the award will vest if PBT growth on the same basis 1s 12% p a or above
2012 award 25% of the award will vest if PBT grov(rth at the end of the 2014 financial year 1s at a rate of 6% p a, based
on the December 2011 accounts 100% of the award will vest if PBT growth on the same basis 1s 12% or above

b) Executive Share Options
This i1s a discretionary share option plan These options are granted with an exercise price equal to market value

The vesting period Is three years from the date of grant with an exercise period of seven years (1 o a total Iife

of ten years} In the mformation below, these options have been further subdwided according ta thew different
performance conditions, in order to give more meaningful information The different subdivisions and performance
conditions are as follows

(1} 40% vesting If EPS growth equals RPI + 40%, nsing to 100% vesting for EPS growth of RPI + 100%

{n) EPS growth must equal RP1 + 9% I this 1s achieved there will be full vesting I this 1s not achieved thers will be
no vesting

() Full vesting will accur if the Group’s cumulative profit before tax 1s atleast £90m over the three financial years
ending December 2009, 2010, and 2011 If this 1s not achieved there will be no vesting

¢) Howden Joinery Group Long-Term Incentive Plan

This 1s a discretionary plan under which the Group may grant different types of share award including market value
and nil cost options, conditional awards of shares and restricted shares (where the employee is the owner of the
shares from the date of award but subject to forfeiture) Unless otherwise specified all awards have substantially the
same terms

(i) Market value options, the vesting period for which 1S three years from the date of grant with an exarcise period
of seven years {1 e a total ife of ten years) Options will vest if cumulative PBT of £90m 1s achieved over the three
financia! years ending 2009, 2010 and 2011

{n) Market value options which vest after a three year period from the date of grant 15% of the options will vest if the
Group achieves growth in pre-excephonal PBT equivalent to RF1 over the performance period 100% will vest If pre-
exceptional PBT growth equivalent to RPI + 8% 1s achieved

(1n) Condittenal Share Award - shares will vest at the end of a three year period commencing on the date of grant
subject to continuing employment

(v} 2011 Grant 25% of the award will vest If PBT growth at the end of the 2013 financial yearisat arateof 6% p a,
based on the December 2010 accounts 100% of the award will vest if PBT growth on the same basis1s 12% pa or
above 2012 Grant 25% of the award will vest if PBT growth at the end of the 2014 financial year 1s at a rate of 6%

p a, based on the December 2011 accounts 100% of the award will vest if PBT growth on the same basis 1s 12%
pa orabove

d) Share Incentive Scheme (Freeshares)

This 1s an ‘all-employee’ share incentive plan whereby participants receive a grant of free shares  the Group If
the employees are still employed by the Group three years after the grant, then the shares vest Dividends are paid
out on the shares between award date and vesting date There are no other performance conditions attached to
these awards




2) Movements in the period

a) Executive Co-Investment Plan: 2011 & 2012 awards

53 weeoks to 53 weeks to 52 waeks to 52 weeks to
20 Decomber 2012 26 December 2012 24 December 2011 24 December 2011
Number WAEP (E) MNumber WAEP (£}
Inissue at start of penod 4,121,495 - - N/A
Granted in period 4,382,287 - 4,121,485 -
Lapsed in penod - N/A - N/A
Exercised in period - N/A - N/A
In 1ssue at end of petiod 8,503,782 - 4,121,495 -
Exercisable at end of period - - - -
Number of options In the clgsing balance
that were granted before 7 Novemnber 2002 - -
Weighted average share price for
options exercised during the penod N/A N/A
Weighted average contractual ife remaining
for share opttons outstanding at the period
end {years) 175 225
Weighted average fair value of
options granted during the period (£) 122 105
Range of exercise prices for options
outstanding at the penod end (€)
- from - -
—to - _
b) Executive Share Options
{1) 40% vesting If EPS growth = RPI + 40% rising to 100% vesting if EPS growth = RPI + 100%
53 weoks to 53 weeks to 52 weeks to 52 weeks to
20 December 2012 29 December 2012 24D ber2011 24D ber 2011
Number WAEP (£} Number WAEP (£)
In issue at beginning of period 803,425 107 803,425 107
Granted in penod - N/A - N/A
Lapsed in penod - N/A - N/A
Exercised in period {119,473) 107 - N/A
In issue at end of penod 683,952 107 803,425 107
Exercisable at end of pernod 683,952 107 803,425 107
Number of options In the ¢losing balance
that were granted before 7 Novemnber 2002 - =
Weighted average share price for
aptions exercised durthg the pened 137 N/A
Weighted average contractual life remaining
for share options ocutstanding at the penod
end (years) - -
Weighted average fair value of
options granted during the period {£) N/A N/A
Range of exercise prices for options
outstanding at the penod end (£)
— from 107 107
~-to 107 107

I

29




100

b) Executive Share Options

(n) Full vesting if EPS increases by RPIl + 9%

53 weoks to 53 weoks to 52 woeks to 52 weeks to
29 December 2012 29 December 2012 24 Docomber 2011 24 December 2011
Number WAEP (€) Number WAEP (£)
In 1ssue at beginning of penod 751,193 100 2,107,273 103
Granted in penod - N/A 5,000 103
Lapsed in pencd (25,000) 100 (813,190) 108
Exercised in pertod (124,500} 100 (547,890) 102
In1ssue at end of period 601,693 100 751,193 100
Exercisable at end of period 601,693 100 751,193 100
Number of options in the closing balance
that were granted before 7 Novemnber 2002 - -
Weighted average share price for
options exercised during the penod 144 112
Weighted average contractual ife remaining
for share options outstanding at the pencd
end {years) - -
Weighted average fair value of
options granted during the perlod (£} N/A N/A
Range of exercise prices for options
outstanding at the period end (£)
- frem 100 100
-to 100 106
b) Executive Share Options
{in} Cumutative PBT of £90m over three financial years ending 2008, 2010 and 2011
53 weoks to 53 weeks to 52 waeks to 52 woeks to
28 Decomber 2012 29 December 2012 24 December 2011 24 December 2011
Number WAEP (£) Number WAEP {£)
In 1ssue at beginning of penod 9,557,430 038 9,557,430 038
Granted in period - N/A - N/A
Lapsed in penod - N/A - N/A
Exercised in period (1,431,486) 038 - N/A
In1ssue at end of period 8,125,944 038 9,557,430 038
Exercisable at end of period 8,125,944 038 - N/A
Number of options in the closing balance
that were granted before 7 November 2002 - -
Weighted average share price for
options exercised during the period 137 N/A
Weighted average contractual life remaining
for share options cutstanding at the period
end (years) - 033
Weighted average fair value of
options granted dunng the penod (£) N/A N/A
Range of exercise prices for options
outstanding at the penod end (£)
- from 025 025
-to 050 050




¢) Howden Joinery Group Long-Term Incentive Plan

(1) Cumulative PBT of £80m over three financial years ending 2009, 2010 and 2011

53 weeks to 53 woeks to 52 weeks to 52 weoeks to
29 December 2012 28D ber 2012 24D 2011 24 Dacember 2014
Number WAEP (£} Number WAEP (€)
in1ssue at beginning of period 12,192,032 037 12,412,032 037
Granted in penod - N/A - N/A
Lapsed in period (70,000} 036 {220,000} 037
Exercised in penod {10,290,067) 036 - N/A
In issue at end of period 1,831,965 042 12,192,032 037
Exercisable at end of penod 1,831,965 D42 - N/A
Number of opticns In the closing balance
that were granted before 7 November 2002 - -
Weighted average share price for
options exercised during the pericd 125 N/A
Welghted average contractual Iife remaining
for share options outstanding at the penod
end (years) - ¢33
Welghted average fair value of
options granted durlng the period (€) N/A N/A
Range of exercise prices for options
outstanding at the penod end (£)
- from 038 025
-t 050 050
c) Howden Jeinery Group Long-Term Incentive Plan
{n) 2012 PBT increase by between RPl and RPI| + 8%
53 weaks to 53 waeks to 52 weaks to 52 weeks to
29 December 2012 26D ber 2012 24D ber 201% 24 December 2011
Number WAEP (£} Number WAEP (£)
In issue at beginning of pencd 5,885,738 081 6,015,106 o8
Granted in penod - N/A - N/A
Lapsed in period {68.,215) 0.81 (129,368) o0&
Exercised in penod (25,456) [¢R:21 - N/A
In 1ssue at end of period 5,792,057 081 5,885,738 081
Exercisable at end of period - N/A - N/A
Number of options in the closing balance
that were granted before 7 November 2002 - -
Weighted average share price for
options exercised during the period 145 N/A
Welighted average contractual life remalning
for share options outstanding at the period
end (years) 033 133
‘Welghted average fair value of
options granted dunng the period {£) N/A N/A
Range of exercise prices for options
outstanding at the peniod end (£)
- from 081 081
-to 081 081
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{a) Credit risk
The Group's principal financial assets are cash and cash equivalents, other assets, and trade and other
receivables The Group’s credit nsk 1s mainly confined to the nsk of customers defaulting on sales mnvoices raised

The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a way of mitigating the nsk of
financial loss from defaults

The Group's policy on dealing with trade customers 1s described in the accounting policies and in note 19 Trade
receivables consist of a large number of customers Ongoing credit evaluation ts performed on the financial condition
of accounts racevable The Group does not have any significant credit nsk exposure to any single counterparty

The Group limits exposure to credit risk on hquid funds through adherence to a policy of minimum long-term
counterparty credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies (Standard & Poor’s A and Moody's A2)

Full disclosure of the Group's maximum exposure to credit nsk i1s presented in the following table

29 December 2012 24 Docember 2011

£m £m
Trade receivables (net of allowance) 712 730
Cash and cash equivalents 967 584
Total credit risk exposure 1679 1324

(A Liquidity risk

Liguidity nsk 1s the nsk that the Group could expenence difficulties in meeting its commitments to crediitors as financial
lrabshities fall due for payment The Group manages its hquidity nsk by using reasonable and retrospectively-assessed
assumptions to forecast the future cash-generative capabilities and working capital requirements of the businesses it
operates and by maintaining sufficient reserves, committed borrowing faciihes and other credit lines as appropnate
Ultimate responstbifity for iquidity risk management rests with the Board of directors, which has agreed an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group's short, medium and long-term funding and
iquidity management requirements The Group manages iquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities and reserve borrowing facilities by continuously monitonng forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
matunty profiles of financial assets and liabilities as far as 1s possible Included in note 21 1s a description of addibional
undrawn faciities that the Group has at 1ts disposal to further reduce liquidity sk In addition, the Financial Review
contans a section describing the interaction of hquidity nsk and the going concern review




d) Share incentive scheme (Freeshares)

53 weeks to 53 weeoks to 52 weeks to 52 weoks to
29 December 2012 29 December 2012 24 Decamber 2011 24 December 2011
Number WAEP (£) Number WAEP (£)
tn issue at beginning of period 218,394 - 244169 -
Granted in period - N/A - N/A
Lapsed in period - N/A - N/A
Exerclsed In pericd (23,755) - (25,775) -
In 1ssue at end of penod 194,639 - 218,394 -
Exercisable at end of perod 194,639 - 218,394 -
Number of options in the closing balance
that were granted before 7 November 2002 194,639 218,394
Weighted average share price for
optlons exercised dunng the penod 134 109
Weighted average contractual life remaining
for share options outstanding at the penod
end (years) - -
Weighted average falr value of
options granted during the penod (£) N/A N/A

Range of exerclse prices for options
outstanding at the pencd end (€)

- from -

—-t{o -

3) Fair value of options granted

The fair value of all options granted 1s estimated on the date of grant using either a binomial option valuation model or
a Black Scholes model depending on the complexity of the option

The key assumptions used in the models were

53 weeks to 52 weeks to

29 December 2012 24 Decomber 2011

Dividend yield (%6) 15 18
Expected share price volatiity (%) 54 54
Histoncal volatility (%) 54 54
Risk-free interest rate (%) 16 30
Expected life of options (years) 475 475

Historical volatility 1s measured for each scheme over the penod equal to the vesting period of the scheme The figure

arrived at 1s then used as the best estimate of expected future volatility
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28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Companies which are related parties

Transactions between Group companies, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and
are not disclosed in this note All transactions between the Group and the Group’s pension schemes have been
disclosed in note 22

Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personne! comprise the Board of directors {including non-executive directors) and the Executive
Committes Detalls of the aggregats remuneration 1o these personnel Is set out below The figure disclosed for share-
based payments represents the gain realised on the exercise of share options In the year, albeit that those options
will have been granted In previous penods All figures include employer’s National Insurance

53 woeks to 52 wooks to

29 Docember 2012 24 December 2011

£m £m

Short-term employment benefits 71 64
Share-based payments a7 -
168 64

Cther transactions with key management personnel
There were no other transactions with key management personnel

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Capital risk management
The Group manages its capital structure to maximise the return to shareholders through the optimisation of its debt
and equity balance, trading-off the benefits of financtal leverage with the expected future costs of financial distress

The caprtal structure of the Group consists of debt {including the borrowings disclosed in note 21 offset by cash and
cash equivalents) and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent {including 1ssued share capital and reserves
as disclosed in the Consolidated Statement of Changes n Equity, and in note 24)

The Board of directors reviews the capital structure regularly, including, but not imited to, at the time of preparing
annual budgets, preparing three year corporate plans, and considering corporate transactions As part of this review,
the Board reviews the cost of capital and the nsks assoctated with each class of capital The Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share 1ssues and share buy-backs, as well as the
1ssue of new debt or the repayment of existing debt

At the pened end, the Group had a £160m committed bank facility secured aganst the assets of the Group and
based on four sub-facilities (stock, trade recevables, property and a cash flow facility) The facility it was the
lower of £160m and the sum of the four sub-facilihes The property component {nitially £17 4m) amortrses at the

rate of £141,667 each month, whereas the other components act as a revolving credit facility with no amortisation
Under the terms of the facility, none of the Group’s principal subsidiary compantes can sign up to additional secured
borrowings, other than those expressly permitted within the terms of the faciity The facility (1) permits normal trade
credit granted to it in the ordinary course of business, (1) allows up to £20m of additional secured borrowings, and (i)
allows up to £10m of finance lease borrowing During the penod the matunty of the facility was extended from May
2014 to July 2016 As part of that extension the facility was reduced from £160m to £140m in May 2014 The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from 2011




{b) Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the cntena for recognition, the basis
of measurement and the basts on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial
asset, financial hability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements

(c) Categories of financial instruments

289 December 2012 24 December 2011

£m £m
Financial assets {current and non-current}
Trade receivables 72 730
Cash and cash equivalents 967 594
Financial liabilities (current and non-current)
Trade payables 604 6681
Borrowings 03 23

{d) Financial nsk management

General

The Group 1s exposed In varying degrees to a vanety of financial instrument related nsks The Board has approved
and monitors the risk management processes, including documented treasury policies, counterparty imits,
controling and reporting structures The types of nsk exposure, the way in which such exposure 1s managed, and the
quantiication of the level of exposure in the balance sheet 1s shown below (subcategonsed into credit nsk, hquidity
nsk and market nsk) The Group 1s actively engaged in the management of all of these financial nsks in order to
mimimise their potential adverse impact on the Group’s financial performance

The principles, practices and procedures governing the Group-wide financial risk management process have been
approved by the Board and are overseen by the Executive Committee In turn, the Executive Gommittee delegates
authonty to a central treasury funchon (“Group Treasury”} for the practical implementation of the financial nsk
management process across the Group and for ensunng that the Group's entities adhere to specified financial nsk
management policies Group Treasury regularly reassesses and reports on the financial risk environment, identifying
and evaluating financial nsks The Group does not take positions on denvative contracts and only enters into
contractual bank deposit or lending arrangements with counterparties that have investment grade credn ratings

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand, which I1s the term used in the balance sheet, comprises cash on hand together with
demand deposits, and other short-term highly hquid investments that are readity convertible to a known amount of
cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value Cash and cash equivalents, which is the term used
in the cash flow statement, comprises cash at bank and in hand, as defined immediately above, together with any
overdrafts repayable on demand

Arrangements are In place to ensure that cash s ubhised most efficiently for the ongoing working capital needs of the
Group's operating units and to ensure that the Group eams the most advantageous rates of interest avallable The prime
consideration in the investment of cash balances Is the secunty of the asset, followed by hquidity and then yield

Management of trade receivables i1s discussed in note 19
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{e) Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are cash and cash equivalents, other assets, and trade and cther
recevables The Group’s credit nsk is mainly confined to the risk of customers defaulting on sales invoices raised
The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a way of miigating the nisk of
financial loss from defaults

The Group’s policy on dealing with trade customers Is described in the accounting policies and in note 19 Trade
receivables consist of a large number of customers Ongoing credit evaluation 1s performed on the financral condrtion
of accounts recevable The Group does not have any significant credit nisk exposure to any single counterparty

The Group Irnits exposure to credit risk on liquid funds through adherence to a policy of minimum long-term
counterparty credit ratings assigned by nternational credit-rating agencies (Standard & Poor's A and Moody's A2)

Full disclosure of the Group's maximum exposure to credt nsk s presenied in the following table

29 Decomber 2012 24 December 2011

£m £m
Trade recewvables (net of allowance)} 712 730
Cash and cash equlvalents 8967 594
Total credit nsk exposure 1679 1324

{f) Liguidity risk

Liguidity nsk is the nsk that the Group could expenence difficulties in meeting its commitments to creditors as financial
Irabihties fall due for payment The Group manages its Iquidity nsk by using reasonable and retrospectively-assessed
assumptions to forecast the future cash-generative capabiiities and working capital requirements of the businesses it
operates and by maintaimng sufhcient reserves, commitied borrowing faciities and other credit ines as appropriate
Ultimate responsibility for lquidity risk management rests with the Board of directors, which has agreed an appropriate
liquidity nsk management framework for the management of the Group's short, medium and long-term funding and
hquidity management requirements The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaning adequate reserves, banking
faciities and reserve borrowing facilities by continuously monitonng forecast and actual cash fiows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and hiabilities as far as 1s possible Included in note 21 1s a desenption of additional
undrawn facilittes that the Group has at its dispesal to further reduce liquidity nsk in addition, the Financial Review
contains a section describing the interaction of iquidty sk and the going concern review




Maturity profile of outstanding financial habilities
The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual matunty for its non-derivative financial habilities The

Group has no denvative financial habilities The tables have been drawn up on the undiscounted cash fiows of
financial habilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay The table includes both

interest and principal cash flows

Within 1 year 2-3 years
Floating Fixed Floating Fixed
Capital interast intarest Capital interest interest Total
At 29 December 2012 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Trade payables 60 4 - - - - - 60 4
Finance leases 01 - - 02 - 01 04
Bank lcan 17 - - 04 - - 21
62 2 - - 086 - 01 629
Within 1 year 2-3 yoars
Floating Fixed Floating Fixed
Capital Interest Interest Capital interest Interast Total
At 24 December 2011 £m £m Em £m £m £m £m
Trade payables 681 - - - - - 68 1
Bank loan 17 01 - 21 01 - 40
698 01 - 21 01 - 721

Note It has been assumed that where apphicable interest and fore:gn currency exchange rates prevailing at the reporting batance sheet date will not

vary over the tima periods ramaining for future cash flows
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(g) Market rnisk

This 1s the nsk that financial instrument fair values will fluctuate owing to changes in market pnces The significant

market risks to which the Group 1s exposed are foreign exchange nisk and interest rate nisk These are discussed

further below

Foreign exchange risk

The Group 1s exposed to several currencies, principally as a result of operating costs incurred In foreign currencies,
and to a lesser extent, from non-Stering revenues The Group’s policy is generally not to hedge such exposures The
exposure of the Group's financial assets and habilities to currency nisk Is as follows

29 December 2012 24 December 2011

£m £m
Euro
Trade receivables 156 26
Cash and cash equivalents 28 24
Trade payables (12 6} (89)
83) 39
US Dollar
Trade receivables - -
Cash and cash equivalents 40 37
Trade payables {(18) {19)
22 18
Hong Kong Dollar
Trade receivables - -
Cash and cash equivalents 01 01
Trade payables - -
01 01
Chinese Yuan
Trade receivables - -
Cash and cash equivalents - 01
Trade payables - -
- 01
Japanese Yen
Trade receivables - -
Cash and cash equivalents - -
Trade payables {01) 01
{01 01
Total ©Y) {18)

Interast rate risk

The Group Is exposed to interest rate nsk as the parent company has borrowed funds at floating interest rates
The Board has reviewed this risk of interest rate increases causing financial cistress and concluded that hedging
protection should only be considered if net borrowings or cash surpluses were to exceed £150m The Group's

exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial habilities are detarled 1n the hquidity nsk management

section of this note

Paymants on the Group’s finance leases are fixed on inception of the lease contract, and as such are regarded as

fixed rate borrowings




{h) Financial instrument sensitivities

Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings, deposits, trade receivables and trade payables
The following analysis, required by IFRS 7, 1s intended to illustrate the sensitivity of the Group's financial iInstruments
as at its period end to changes in market vanables, being exchange rates and interest rates The sensitivity analysis
has been prepared on the basis that the components of net debt and the proportion of financial iInstruments in
foreign currencies are all constant For floating rate liabilittes, the analysis 1s prepared assuming that the amount of
hability cutstanding at the period end date was outstanding for the whole period As a consequence, this sensitivity
analysis relates to the position as at the balance sheet date The following assumptions were made in calculating the
sensitivity analysis

* Debt and other deposits are carried at amortised cost and therefore carrying value does not change as Interest
rates move

* No sensitivity 1s provided for accrued interest as accruals are based on pre-agreed interest rates and therefore are
not susceptible to further rate movements

* Finance lease interest payments are fixed at the inception of the contract and are not subject to repricing They
have therefore been excluded from this analysis

+ Translation of foreign subsidiaries and operations into the Group's presentation currency have been excluded from
the sensitivity

Using the above assumptions, the following analyses show the illustrative effect on the iIncome statement and equity
that would result from reasonably posstble changes in the relevant foreign currency or interest rates

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for floating rate non-
denvative instruments at the balance sheet date The Group holds no dervative financial instruments Fixed rate
llabilities are not susceptible to changes in interest rates, and are omitted from the analysis below For floating rate
llabilities, the analysis 1s prepared assurming the amount of the llability outstanding at the balance sheet date was
cutstanding for the whole year A 50 basis points increase 1s used as this represents management’s assessment of
the possible change in interest rates

At the reporting date, if interest rates had been 50 basis points higher and all other variables were held constant,
the Group's net profit and profit and loss reserve would remain the same (2011 remain the same}

For a decrease of 50 basis points, the current year figures would remain the same (2011 remain the same)

Foreign exchange sensitivity

As noted above, the Group 1s mainly exposed to movements in Euro, US dollar, Chinese Yuan, and Japanese Yen
exchange rates (the Hong Kong dollar being effectively pegged to the US dollar) The following information detatls the
Group's sensitivity to a 10% weakening or strengthening in pounds Sterling agamnst the Euro, the US Dollar, the Hong
Kong dollar, the Chinese Yuan, and the Japanese Yen These percentages are the rates used by management when
assessing sensitivities internally and represent management's assessment of the possible change in foreign currency
rates The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the reporting date has been
determined based on the change taking place at the beginning of the financial penod and held constant throughout
the reporting period

28 December 2012 24 December 2011

£m £m
10% weakening of Sterling to Euro 09 o4
10% strengthening of Sterling to Euro 07 04
10% weakening of Sterling to US dollar 02 02
10% strengthening of Sterling to US dollar 02) 02)

The Group's sensitivity, on the basis above, to a strengthening or weakening of Sterling to the Hong Kong Dollar,
the Chinese Yuan and the Japanese Yen was less than £0 1m at both the current and pricr period ends
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Howden Joinery Group Plc

We have audited the Group financial statements of
Howden Joinery Group Plc for the 53 weeks ended

29 December 2012 which comprise the Consolidated
Income Statement, the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Balance
Sheet, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
related notes 1 to 29 The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in therr preparation 1s applicable
law and International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members,
as a bedy, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16

of the Companies Act 2006 Our audrt work has been
undertaken so that we rmight state to the Company's
members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the
fuliest extent perrmitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company
and the Company's members as a body, for our audit
waork, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDITOR

As explaned more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities
Statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the Group financial statements and for
being satistied that they give a true and far iew Our
responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinicn on the
Group financial statements in accordance with apphcable
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethweal Standards for Auditors

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit iInvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts
and disctosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from material misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error This includes an assessment of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
Group's circumstances and have been consistently
apphed and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness
of sigmficant accounting estimates made by the
directors, and the overall presentation of the financial
statements In addition, we read all the financial and
non-financial nformation in the annual report (o dentfy
matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial
staternents If we become aware of any apparent
rmatenal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider
the imphcations for our report

QOPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In our opinion the Group financial statements

= give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's
affairs as at 29 December 2012 and of its profit for
the 53 weeks then ended,

* have been properly prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and

* have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and
Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation

OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY
THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinien the information given In the Directors’
Report for the financial year for which the Group financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the Group
financial statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED
TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

We have nothing to report in respect of the foitowing
matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you iIf, in our opinion

s certain disclosures of directors' remuneration
specified by law are not made, or

* we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit

OTHER MATTER

We have reported separately on the parent company
financial statements of Howden Joinery Group Plc for
the 53 weeks ended 29 December 2012 and on the
information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that
ts described as having been audited

Edward Hanson (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Delaitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom
27 February 2013




Company balance sheet

29 December 2012 24 December 2011

Notes £m £m
Non-current asgets
Investments 3 6990 7086
Deferred tax 4 02 02
Bank borrow!ngs net of prepaid fees 7 10 -
7002 708 8
Current assets
Debtors 5 142 139
Cash at bank and in hand B56 400
998 539
Current habilities
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 6 (574 9) (490 0)
Net current habilities 4751} (436 1)
Total assets less current habilities 2251 2727
Non-current liabilities
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year - (4]
Provisions (89) (19 0)
Net assets 216 2 2525
Equity
Called up share capital 9 64 2 634
Share premium account 10 872 851
Retained earnings reserve 10 64 8 104 0
Total equity 216 2 2525

These financial statements were approved bythe Board on 27

Mark Robson
Chief Financial Officer

bruary 2013 and were signed on its behalf by

For and on behalf of Howden Joinery Groub Plc, registeredfpumber 02128710

Ehi|
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Notes to the Company balance sheet

1 SIGNIFICANT COMPANY ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General information
Howden Joinery Group Pic 1s a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006

Basis of presentation
The Company’s accounting period covers the 53 weeks to 29 December 2012 The comparative period covered the
52 weeks to 24 December 2011

Basis of accounting

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006 They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention and In accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Standards The principal accounting policies are presented below
and have been applied consistently throughout the current and prior perods They have alsc been prepared on the
going concern basis as described in the going concern statement in the Corporate Governance Report on page 56
of the Group's Annual Report

Investments
Fixed asset investments are shown at cost less provision for impairment

Taxation
Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, i1s provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered)
using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Cash flow statement

The Gompany 1s exempt from the requirement of FRS 1 (revised} to include a cash flow statement as part of its
Company financial statements because it prepares a consolidated cash flow statement which 1s shown as part of
the consolidated Group accounts

Related partias
The Company has taken advantage of paragraph 3(c) of Financial Reporting Standard 8 ("Related Party Disclosures”)
not to disclose transactions with Group entities or investees of the Group qualifying as related parties

2 PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no separate proht and loss account 1s presented for the
Company The Company result after tax for the 53 weeks to 29 December 2012 was a loss of £34 2m (52 weeks to 24
December 2011 loss after tax for the perod of £25 2m)

The Company has no employees (2011 none), did not pay directors’ emoluments (2011 £nil), and the fees payable
to the Gompany’s auditor for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts (210,000 n both current and prior periods)
were borne by a fellow Group undertaking

3 INVESTMENTS

Shares in subsidiary Long-term loans to
undertakings subsidiary undartakings Total
Cost and carrying value €m £m £m
At 24 December 2011 217 4369 7086
Disposal/write down of investments (9 6) - 96)
At 29 December 2012 2621 4369 6890

During the period, the Company wrote down the full carrying value of its investment in Southon Insurance Company
Ltd and Howden Joinery Supply Division (Asia) Ltd Both these companies were 100% owned subsidiaries, whose
businesses were closed durtng the period

More detail about the closure of these companies 1s given In note 6 to the consoldated Group accounts

Details of principal subsidiary undertakings are given on page 116

4 DEFERRED TAX
The deferred tax all relates to short-term timing differences




5 DEBTORS

20 December 2012 24 December 2011
£m £m
Other debtors 23 09
Corporation tax 13 125
QOther tax and social security 06 05
142 139

6 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
20 Dacember2012 24 Decoember 2011
£m £m
Current portion of long-term bank loan 11 11
Owed to subsidiaries 5728 488 6
Accruals and deferred income 10 03
5749 4900

7 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

200D ber 2012

24 December 2014

£m £m
LLong-term portion of bank loan - 12
Analysis of total borrowings
29 December 2012 24 December 2011
£m £m
The borrowings are repayable as follows
Disclosed under current liabilities
On demand or wathin one year 17 17
Less prepaid issue fees set aganst borrowings 06 (0 6)
On demand or within one year 11 11
Disclosed under non-current assets
In the second year 04 -
Less prepald 1ssue fees set against borrowings (14) -
(10) -
Disclosed under non-current habilities
In the second year - 17
In the third to fifth years inclusive - c4
Less prepaid issue fees set against cost of loan - 09)
- 12
Total borrowings 01 23

All borrowings are in sterling

The weighted average interest rates paid on the borrowings were as follows

53 waeks to 52 woeks to
29 December 2012 24 Dacember 2011
% %

29 34
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Notes to the Company balance sheet continued

The directors estimate the fair value of the Group’s borrowings are as follows

29 December 2012 24 Decomber 2011
£m £m
01 23

8 PROVISIONS

Property provision Total

£m £m

At 24 December 2011 180 190
Additional provision in the perniod 02 02
Utihsation of provision in the penod {10 3) (10 3)
At 29 December 2012 g9 89

The property provision covers onerous leases on any non-irading leased properties For some properties, the provision
15 based on the shortfall between rent payable and rent receivable For other properties, where negotiations to
surrender the lease are in progress, the provision 1S based on the amount which ihe landiord has mdicated that they are
willing to take as a premium in order for the Group to surrender the lease The provision 1s based on the penod until the
end of the lease, or until the Group considers that it can cover the shortfall by subletting, assigning, or surrendening the
lease Throughout the course of the penod the Group reviews the range of options for unused properties, and maintains
ongoing discusstons with landlords and external agents, with a view to identifying possible lease surrenders and finding
tenants The property provision also includes amounts for any retated shortfalls in business rates on these properhes,
and for dilapidations, agents’ fees and other professional fees

During the current period, the property provision has been increased by £0 2m ansing from an unwinding of the
discount rate over time None of this amount relates to a change in the discount rate The amount of the expected
future cash flows has been adjusted to reflect the expected range of possilities and, as the outflows under thus
proviston are expected to take place over a number or years, the provision has been discounted to its present value

The timing of outflows from the provision 1s vanable dependent on property lease expiry dates and alsc on
opportunities to surrender leases

9 SHARE CAPITAL

53 weeks to 52 weoks to 53 waoks to 52 weeks to
29 Dacember 2012 24 December 2011 29 December 2012 24 December 2011
Ordinary shares of 10p each Number Humber £m £m

Aliotted, called up and fully paid
Balance at the beginning of the period 633,915,329 633,915,329 63 4 63 4
Issued during the penod 8,100,734 - 08 -
Balance at the end of the penod 642,016,063 633,915,329 642 634

10 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

Called up Share premium Retained

share capital account earnings Total

£m £m £m £m

At 24 December 2011 634 851 104 0 2525
Retained loss for the period - - {34 2} (34 2)
Dvdend paid - - {50) 50)
Shares 1ssued 08 21 - 29
At 29 December 2012 642 872 648 2162




Independent auditor’s report to the members of Howden Joinery Group Pl¢

We have audited the parent company financial
statements of Howden Joinery Group Pic for the 53
weeks ended 29 December 2012 which compnse the
Company Balance Sheet and the related notes 1 to

10 The financial reporting framewaerk that has been
applied In their preparation 1s appiicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report is made sclely to the Company’s members,
as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16

of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we rmight state to the Company's
members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibilty to anyone other than the Company
and the Company'’s members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opimons we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDITCR

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities
Statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the parent company financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view
Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinicn on
the parent company financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards for Auditors

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the parent
company’s circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness
of significant accounting estmates made by the
directors, and the gverall presentation of the financial
statements In addition, we read all the financial and
non-financial information in the annual report to identify
matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements If we become aware of any apparent
matenal misstaternents or inconsistencies we consider
the implications for our report

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In our opinion the parent company financial statements

* give a true and fatr view of the state of the Company's
affairs as at 29 December 2012,

* have been properly prepared in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, and

s have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006

OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY
THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion

¢ the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited has been properly prepared in accordance
with the Compames Act 2006, and

« the information given in the Directors’ Report for
the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared 1s consistent with the parent company
financial statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED
TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

We have nathing to report in respect of the following
matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you If, in our opinion

the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by

|
|
+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by ‘
us, ar !

the parent company financial statements and the part
of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns, or

* certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration
specified by law are not made, or

* we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit

OTHER MATTER

We have reported separately on the Group financial
statements of Howden Joinery Group Pic for the
53 weeks ended 29 December 2012

Edward Hanson (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behaf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

London, UK

27 February 2013
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Parent company and principal subsidiary undertakings at 29 December 2012

Country of registration or incorporation

PARENT COMPANY
Howden Joinery Group Plc England and Wales

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS
Intermediate holding company

*Howden Joinery Holdings Limited England and Wales
Trading

Howden Joinery Limited England and Wales
Houdan Menuisenes SA France

Property management
Howden Joinery Properties Limited England and Wales
Howden Kitchens Properties Limited England and Wales

Admimstration and Employee Services

Howden Joinery Corporate Services Limited England and Wales
Howden Joinery People Services Limited England and Wales
Dormant

Howden Kitchens Limited England and Wales
Galiform Limited England and wales
“Howden Joinery Supply Divislon (Asia) Limited Hang Kong

The Company ultmately owns 100% of the ordinary share capital of all of the above mentioned companies

“The investment in the compamies marked with an asterisk are swned dwrectly by the Company




Five year record

Dec 2012 Dec 2011 Dec 2010 Dec 2000 Dec 2008
53 wooks 52 weoks 52 weeks 52 wooks 52 weeks
£m £m £m £m £m
Summarised Income Statement
Revenue - continuing operations 887 1 8538 8079 7695 8057
Operating profit - continuing pperations 1198 1153 107 4 794 806
Loss from discontinued operations {4 4} ©3) - {44) (108 8)
Share of joint venture operating profit - - - - 01
1154 106 Q 107 4 750 {28 1)
Profit on continuing ordinary activities before tax 1121 1110 1009 687 743
Dividend per share (pence) 30 05 - - -
Basic EPS - continuing operations (pence) 140 1356 111 83 92
Summarised Balance Shesat
Total non-current assets* 140 4 1323 140 2 1630 1567
Inventorles 1159 1185 10586 863 1213
Receivables 960 953 950 95 4 992
Payables and provisions {180 4) {196 1) (216 9) (224 5) (250 6)
Pension llabllity {154 5) (136 9) (135 7) (196 3) (1222)
(123 Q) {119 2) {152 1) (239 1) (152 3)
Net cash/(borrowings) 954 571 350 24 61 2)
Total net assets/(liabilities) 1128 702 231 (737) (57 8)

* In 2008, the balance sheet Included a small amount of assets held for resales which were held in the Balance Sheet as part of current assets.

Number of ocutlets at end of year

Howden Jomery 529 509 489 462 454
Houdan France 11 10 10 10 1"
Capital expenditure 24 20 18 8 19
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Shareholder ranges as at 29 December 2012

Number of Percentage of Number of Percentage of
holders holders shares shares

Corporate holders
0to 1,000 70 o8 24,685 -
1,001 10 5,000 121 13 359,348 -
5,001 to 10,000 58 06 418,778 -
10,001 to 50,000 17 13 2,892,831 05
50,001 to 100,000 37 04 2622151 04
100,001 to 250,000 58 06 9,626,020 15
250,001 to max 191 20 606,488,384 945
652 70 622,432,195 969

Indwidual holders
0 to 1,000 6,708 719 2,741,587 05
1,001 to 5,000 1,601 172 3,852,259 06
5,001 to 10,000 215 23 1,581,770 03
10,001 to 50,000 127 14 2,494,605 04
50,001 to 100,000 13 01 879,249 01
100,001 to 250,000 4 - 826,638 01
250,001 to max 7 01 7,207,760 11
8,675 930 19,583,868 31
Total 9,327 1000 642,018,063 1000
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Advisers and committees

PRINCIPAL BANKER

Lloyds TSB plc
10 Gresham Street
Lendon

EC2v 7AE

JOINT FINANCIAL ADVISERS
AND STOCKBROKERS

JP Morgan Cazenove
20 Moorgate

London

EC2R 6DA

UBS Ltd

1 Finsbury Avenue
Londen

EC2M 2PP

SOLICITORS

Freshfields Bruckhaus
Deringer LLP

65 Fleet Sreet

London

EC4Y 1HS

AUDITOR

Deloitte LLP

2 New St Square
London

EC4A 3BZ

REGISTRAR

Computershare investor
Services PLC

The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road

Bnistol

BS13 8AE

REGISTERED OFFICE

40 Portman Square
London
W1H B6LT

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Michael Wemms (Chairman)
Mark Allen

Angus Cockburn

Tiffany Hall

NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

Will Samuel! (Chairman)
Mark Allen ‘
Angus Cockburn

Tiffany Hall |
Michael Wemms

AUDIT COMMITTEE ‘

Angus Cockburn {Chairman) !
Mark Allen

Thiffany Hall

Michael Wemms

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Matthew Ingle
Mark Robson
Caroline Bishop
Rob Fenwick
Julie French
Davtd Hallett
Theresa Keating
Andy Witts
Chnis Youeil
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Corporate timetable

2013

Intenm Management Statement
Annual General Meeting

Half Yearly Report

Intenm Management Staternent

End of financial year

2 May

9 May

25 July

8 November

28 December




